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BUSINESS PROFILE

BAEBRABRE
(1) MEEER
) BERY (B2REBLERY  HREEREREXERY)

Y% E IR R
EERFERZRY ERRY - BERY  AARERERLY
LSRRI -

Our business model includes:

(1) property management services;

(2) Value-added services (including developer-related value-
added services, community-related value-added services and
professional services)

Property Management Services

Mainly include security services, cleaning services, horticulture
services, public facilities maintenance and other property
management related services.

4 FERERBR2AT XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018F F %R 2018 Annual Report




R BRTS Security services 2R Cleaning services

NHFEHERE Public facilities maintenance
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RISEE PR Sales office security services ZHIRZARTE Sales office cleaning services
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TERBRAMEHAERR{NHEERSHRY (REBEER
RESRERE R & FE $E3 ERRBEHE)
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Developer-related value-added services

Mainly include sales office services provided to property
developers (providing potential buyers with sample room
cleaning, security, reception, parking, guidance, organization
of service activities, etc.), consultancy services and building
inspection services before the delivery of the property.

IR R AR 2 8 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED 7
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XEREREELRS -

Community-related value-added services

We provide value-added services to residents and customers in the
communities we manage, including:

e Public resources management services:
We operate and manage public areas authorized by property owners,
such as the rental advertisement display areas.

¢ Ready-to-move-in services:
We provide off-line information services to residents of newly delivered
properties, including interior decoration and renovation and the
purchases of furniture and home electronics.

e Orange APP operation services:
Through our one-stop information services platform Orange APP, we
provide related online information services including online shopping;
home electronics warranty; cleaning, repair and maintenance; travel
information and domestic services.

e Asset management services:
We carry out sales services of delivered carpark spaces in our
communities, provide lease and sale agency services for the second-hand
apartments of property owners; as well as provide business soliciting and
operation services for shop owners.

8
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84t APP 42 N E/RZER Off-line demonstration zone for Orange APP

DHEREERY (BETAEES)

Public Resource Management Services (Unit hall advertisement)
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BAAMERERRYERBREESRDERLTRENEXTE
Ko MR RTS ©

BERERESCRBEREERE
BRAAHRANER  SRAHEBEHIETIFPANEZLRIE
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Professional services to create
a smart community

We provide professional engineering and maintenance services,
in relation to lifts and smart security equipment, for property
developers and property projects.

Elevator and smart facilities maintenance services:

We provide maintenance and repair services on lifts and various
types of public communities or on the smart facilities and
equipment in the residences of property owners;

Smart engineering construction services:
We provide smart engineering subcontracting services for the
newly-built property projects of developers.

IR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Orange Stores

e Our Orange APP integrates various community-related services

REXRZEZR
o BBHEIL APP LAEEH K BHL
REFREERAME SRR -
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AR i1 e BESs O AR 7

Orange Steward

e Provide our residents steward style
community-related services on demand
through our Orange App.

e Provide customized and immediate
services through the connection
between our service staff and our
residents.

MMRFE

% BRI E BRI RRRMIETH
WA RATHBERFEER  RB5
WE - EERE L ARMEE T
BAFRE -

Orange Parking

With the help of plate-recognition system
and WeChat Pay, our residents can pay
their parking fees automatically and
independently. We are trying to partly
save our labor cost and increase our
efficiency by using these features.

IR
BAETRERTEZTHOVNER  HEE
FE P BBEREEE SKUNEHER
EEEZEFNER-

Orange Stores

Provide our residents daily necessities and
home delivery services. We would like to
enrich the catalogs of our SKU to attract
more customers.

12
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We are a rapidly growing provider of property management services in
China. We have been providing property management services in China
for more than 23 years. According to China Index Academy (the “CIA")
statistics, we ranked seventh on the list of China's top 100 property
management services in 2018 in terms of growth. For four years in a
row, we made it to the list of top ten property services enterprises of a
growing nature in China. Based on the gross floor area (“"GFA") under
management in the Yangtze Delta region, we ranked sixth among the
top 100 property services companies in China in 2018. In addition,
according to the list of top 100 Chinese property management services
enterprises announced by the CIA, our ranking moved up from the
34th in 2010 to 16th in 2018. As of the end of 31 December 2018, the
property management services agreements we signed covered 90 cities
in 23 provinces, accounting for a total GFA of 112.2 million square
metres, with GFA under management of 42.9 million square metres in
total currently. We provide extensive property management services and
value-added services for property developers as well as residents and
tenants from the communities managed by us. We have also developed
a one-stop information services platform called Orange APP. Our
residents and customers can enjoy the services we provide through their
mobile devices. Based on our excellent services and enhanced market
reputation, we have built a property services brand emphasizing quality
and customers.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Past records show that our revenue has been primarily derived from two
business lines — property management services and value-added services.
Our value-added services cover three business categories comprised of
developer-related services, community-related services and professional
services.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We provide an extensive range of property management services to
residents and tenants, including property and facilities maintenance,
security services, maintenance and cleaning services, horticulture
services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property
management related services. We manage diverse property portfolios,
including residential and non-residential properties, from office
buildings, multi-purpose complexes and factories to parks and industrial
zones. From past records, the majority of our revenue came from
property management services.

IR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 F#R 2018 Annual Report
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¥ E R VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

BRI ERBBIE=HRE - MEME[E
ER - RIBERYE RBEER -

Our value-added services encompass three types of services: developer-
related value added services, community-related value added services
and professional services.

> FEEIBERY  RPETER{A=IASR >

Developer-related value-added services: We provide primarily
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three types of related services for property developers:

Sales office services: We provide onsite and standard
room maintenance and cleaning, security patrols and
surveillance, vehicle parking, reception and guidance
services to enhance the viewing experiences of potential
property owners. We also organize service activities and
other related customer services for potential property
owners.

Consultancy services: Our consultancy services include
property consultancy services for the entire property
development cycle, including design consultancy. After
property handover, we also provide property developers
with provisional assistance, such as property maintenance
as well as liaison and coordination with property
developers during period of quality coverage.

Building inspection services: Onsite inspection and
acceptance and risk evaluation services prior to property
handover.

Community-related value-added services: We provide value-added
services to residents and customers in the communities we manage,

including:

. DHEEEERE RIEER .
EREETBRHALES

. REBAERY : RARHIEE .
EMEFPREHEKTERARY &
EREARMHREREARKER R
BEHEEGEEERE -

Public resources management services: we operate and
manage public areas authorized by property owners, such
as the rental advertisement display areas.

Ready-to-move-in services: We provide off-line
information services to residents of newly delivered
properties, including interior decoration and renovation
and the purchases of furniture and home electronics.

IR =R AR 2D T XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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° Orange APP operation services: Through our one-stop
information services platform Orange APP, we provide
related online information services including online
shopping; home electronics warranty; cleaning, repair and
maintenance; travel information and domestic services.

o Asset management services: We carry out sales services
of delivered carpark spaces in our communities, provide
lease and sale agency services for the second-hand
apartments of property owners; as well as provide
business soliciting and operation services for shop
owners.

Professional services: We provide professional engineering and
maintenance services, in relation to lifts and smart security
equipment, for property developers and property projects.

° Elevator and smart facilities maintenance services: We
provide maintenance and repair services on lifts and
various types of public communities or on the smart
facilities and equipment in the residences of property
owners;

° Smart engineering construction services: We provide
smart engineering subcontracting services for the
newly-built property projects of developers.

IR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming (Chairman)
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhenhua
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. You Jianfeng
Ms. Lam Yuk Ling

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Zhang Yan (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhongming
Mr. Zhu Wei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Xinmin
Mr. Qi Xiaoming

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Xu Xinmin (Chairman)
Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

King & Wood Mallesons
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Merchant Bank, Changzhou Branch
Changzhou Branch Tower 1

No. 88, Tongjiang Road South Changzhou
Jiangsu, the PRC

Agricultural Bank of China, Changzhou
Hutang Branch

No. 14, Renmin Road Central Hutang
Woujin Changzhou

Jiangsu, the PRC

China Construction Bank, Beijing Road West
Branch of Nanjing

No. 43-6, Beijing Road West Nanjing
Jiangsu, the PRC

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Lam Yuk Ling
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REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

12th Floor, Future Holdings Tower B
No. 5, Lane 388, Zhongjiang Road
Putuo, Shanghai

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F, Tower Two

Times Square

1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER AGENT

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1755

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.xinchengyue.com
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2 A M 4 .
®I&1 REKE Table 1 Comprehensive performance
ANRBET T RMB ‘000 2015 2016 2017 2018
WA Revenue 400,257 573,372 866,370 1,149,949
EH % Annual growth % - 43.3% 51.1% 32.7%
EX Gross profit 100,445 161,935 242,246 338,976
FIE N % Annual growth % - 61.2% 49.6% 39.9%
ERE Gross margin 25.1% 28.2% 28.0% 29.5%
FIE N % Annual growth % - 3.1% -0.2% 1.5%
BRFEFB Net profit attributable to
parent company 22,209 43,333 73,406 150,397
FIBIM% Annual growth % - 95.1% 69.4% 104.9%
B HER Net profit margin* 5.5% 7.6% 8.5% 13.1%
FIHM% Annual growth % - 2.1% 0.9% 4.6%
SEREER=EREBISRAEFE A Net profit margin=net profit attributable to shareholders/revenue
RIG2 D EBRREL Table 2 Results by segments
ARBTT RMB '000 2015 2016 2017 2018

YERKEEEWRA  Revenue from property

management services 293,878 399,201 567,177 732,025
FIEIN% Annual growth % - 35.8% 42.1% 29.1%
BERBBRA Revenue from value-added services 106,379 174,171 299,193 417,924
FIEIN% Annual growth % - 63.7% 71.8% 39.7%
Hrp Including
BRERERB WA Revenue from developer-related
value-added services 74,442 108,641 175,497 296,746
FIBNN% Annual growth % - 45.9% 61.5% 69.1%
HEEERBUWA  Revenue from community-related
value-added services 17,190 27,273 43,304 47,890
FIEI% Annual growth % - 58.7% 58.8% 10.6%
BHERBWA Revenue from professional services 14,747 38,257 80,392 73,288
FHEIM% Annual growth % - 159.4% 110.1% -8.8%
MESERKEF  Gross profit from property
management services 62,943 96,457 143,468 203,503
EFMELE Percentage of gross profit 62.7% 59.6% 59.2% 60.0%
BERKEER Gross profit from value-added
services 37,502 65,478 98,778 135,473
EFELE Percentage of gross profit 37.3% 40.4% 40.8% 40.0%
Hr Including
BRI ERBEFR Gross profit from developer-related
value-added services 18,896 28,977 38,529 75,718
EFNELE Percentage of gross profit 18.8% 17.9% 15.9% 22.3%

IR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED 19
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HEZEREEF  Gross profit from
community-related value-added

services 15,361 23,851 36,803 39,118
EAMELE Percentage of gross profit 15.3% 14.7% 15.2% 11.6%
BERKER Gross profit from professional

services 3,245 12,650 23,446 20,637
EFNEEL Percentage of gross profit 3.2% 7.8% 9.7% 6.1%
YEEERFEFNE Gross margin of property

management services 21.4% 24.2% 25.3% 27.8%
BEREERE Gross margin of value-added

services 35.3% 37.6% 33.0% 32.4%
Hr Including
B B R IR E RS Gross margin of developer-related

ER=ER value-added services 25.4% 26.7% 22.0% 25.5%

HEZBERZKEFNZE Gross margin of community-related

value-added services 89.4% 87.5% 85.0% 81.7%
EERBENE Gross margin of professional

services 22.0% 33.1% 29.2% 28.2%
*E3 EEEERREE Table 3 Summary of balance sheet

BZ12A31HZEE
For the year ended December 31

AR¥F T RMB 000 2015 2016 2017 2018
BERESSEY Cash and cash equivalents 119,869 442,922 633,456 1,277,821
g 5 rEWFIE Trade receivables 28,518 52,518 76,918 128,873
RBEE Liquid assets 342,032 549,933 759,830 1,497,753
HWEE Total assets 364,510 595,489 813,573 1,552,192
BHEE Contract liabilities 74,743 108,413 180,714 248,764
BES5 REMPEFKIE Trade and other payables 228,461 283,673 345,327 407,559
RITER Bank loans - - _ —
meE Total liabilities 375,890 479,187 624,529 685,120
BEE Net assets (11,380) 116,302 189,044 867,072
ML= Financial ratio
FENLEE Liquidity ratios 91.0% 114.9% 121.8% 220.4%

20 #HHIRIERER D XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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xIZ4 BERERPE Table 4 Summary of cash flow statement
BZ12A31825E
For the year ended December 31

ARBET T RMB '000 2015 2016 2017 2018
1 EED Net cash generated from

EARESEE business operations 91,504 93,911 198,253 192,026
& ES (F/H),”  Net cash (used in)/generated from

EENIReFE investments (255,168) 285,272 (7,719) 3,962
BMEEBEEL S Net cash generated/(used in) from

({E/A) BEEFE  financing 119,253 (56,130) - 429,926

HEKIEEEEY  Net (decrease)/increase of cash and

CRt), /s hn%%8  cash equivalents (44,411) 323,053 190,534 625,914

®IES ERBERE Table 5 Summary of business data
TR 1,000 sq.m. 2015 2016 2017 2018
EIRHE GFA under management
MEE Takeover 4,453 8,151 8,874 7,530
Hr Including
T — MR Takeover —

Future Land affiliates 3,662 2,255 5,375 4,295
HEE -F=7 Takeover — third parties 791 5,896 3,499 3,235
2k Terminations 0 0 87 920
Hrp Including
k- FTR R Terminations — Future Land affiliates 0 0 0 0
BiE-%=7 Terminations — third parties 0 0 87 920
FREEEE GFA under management as at

the end of the year 19,339 27,490 36,277 42,887

EIBEE- $IN% GFA under management —

Net increase % - 42.1% 32.0% 18.2%
Hrp Including
EIEEE — FMEAE  GFA under management —

Future Land affiliates 18,548 20,803 26,178 30,473
EIEEIE — £=7 GFA under management- third parties 791 6,687 10,099 12,414

IR R AR 2 8 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED 21
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FEFAK 1,000 sg.m. 2015 2016 2017 2018
AHEE Contracted GFA
Ea] New engagements 8,912 15,410 20,232 45,311
Hrp Including
FEE]- WM AR New engagements —

Future Land affiliates 7,450 6,337 14,546 36,016
MR- =H New engagements — third parties 1,462 9,073 5,686 9,295
2k Terminations 0 0 87 920
Hr Including
B E- IR Terminations — Future Land affiliates 0 0 0 0
®Bit-8=7 Terminations — third parties 0 0 87 920
FREHNEE Contracted GFA as at the end

of the year 32,253 47,663 67,808 112,199
FE % Net increase % - 47.8% 42.3% 65.5%
Hrp Including
AAmIE — FWME  Contracted GFA — Future Land affiliates 30,790 37,127 51,673 87,689
A4mEE — £=) Contracted GFA — third parties 1,463 10,536 16,135 24,510
*ige WEER Table 6 Charge mode
FEFAK 1,000 sg.m. 2015 2016 2017 2018
EIEMEIE- B TH  GFA under management —

lump sum basis 18,659 26,834 35,505 42,115
EIEEE- B GFA under management —

commission basis 680 656 772 772
A&t Total 19,339 27,490 36,277 42,887
RHR7T BEYE Table 7 Operating efficiency
FFHK 1,000 sqg.m. 2015 2016 2017 2018
BEREE Collection rate of current year 93.9% 91.8% 92.5% 92.0%
BAIREH S Accumulative collection in later stages 4.4% 5.0% 2.4% 0.0%
HE2018F K Accumulative collection rate

Bl B as of year end of 2018 98.3% 96.8% 94.9% 92.0%
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To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 6 November 2018, the Company was successfully listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Landing in the capital markets has brought to
the Company new opportunities for development. The Company’s
management has fully seized the opportunity to further enhance the
influence of the Company’s brand and expand business with sustained
profitability. The Company’s management will continue to push
forward the application of technology in the property management
field to continuously meet the increasingly high customer requirements
for service. The Company’s management will continue to carry out
innovation in management mechanisms to improve the Company’s
operational and management efficiency, generating good returns for
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

2018 was an extraordinary year for the property management industry.
During the year, altogether five property companies were successfully
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and that the number
of property companies listed in 2018 exceeded the total number
of listed property companies in the past. Against the backdrop of
a still relatively robust property merger and acquisition market and
the continuous moves for mergers and acquisitions among listed
and to-be-listed companies, the property industry concentration
continued to rise. According to the CIA report, the Top 100 Property
Management Service Providers in China in 2017 accounted for 32%
of the market share in terms of total area under management,
representing an increase of more than 12 percentage points over
19.5% in 2014. In 2018, technological empowerment was another
bright spot in the property industry. Smart home security, smart
access control, smart parking, smart energy monitoring and so forth
were constantly being applied and promoted in property companies.
With the promotion of smart communities, the living experience of
property owners was greatly enhanced and the operational efficiency
of property companies was improved.
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Xinchengyue is positioned as a "high-quality service platform for

communities in China” and is committed to delivering the core

values of “professionalism, patience, sharing and trust” to every
property owner and business partner. Xinchengyue is primarily
engaged in business including property management services and
value-added services, among which, the value-added services have
covered three areas, namely, developer-related value-added services,
community-related value-added services and professional services.
Through the above comprehensive services, Xinchengyue practices the
values of creating value on “professionalism”, creating satisfaction
on "“patience”, “sharing” and creating a
win-win situation on hence achieving a win-win result for

property owners, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)

creating ecology on
“trust”,

and various business partners, including cooperative developers and
community-based service providers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, on the back of a relatively complex economic situation at
home and abroad, the real estate industry showed an upward and
then downward trend. In this macro context, Future Land Development
Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 1030, together with its subsidiaries, “Future Land
Group”), an associated company of Xinchengyue, recorded a good
result of a 95.2% year-on-year increase in contracted sales area.
Benefitting from the fast-growing contracted sales since 2016 and the
rapid growth in area newly taken over by us, the Company recorded
an overall revenue reaching RMB1,150.0 million in 2018, representing
a year-on-year growth of 32.7%. With the continuous improvement
in the percentage of the Company’s new projects and the effective
implementation of cost control, the Company's profitability was
significantly enhanced.
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In 2018, the Company achieved a relatively fast growth in
management scale, with revenue from property services increasing
by 29.1% year on year to RMB732.0 million. As at the end of
2018, contracted GFA of the Group exceeded 112.2 million sg.m.,
representing an increase of 65.5% compared with the end of 2017.
As at the end of 2018, GFA under management of the Group reached
42.9 million sg.m., representing an increase of 18.2% from the end of
2017. In 2018, the Company achieved good results in implementing
the acquisition of third-party projects of higher quality. Throughout
the year of 2018, contracted GFA and GFA under management
from properties developed by third party developers increased by
approximately 8.4 million sq.m. and by approximately 2.3 million
sq.m., respectively. Since the second half of 2017, the Company
has raised the community requirements for taking over properties
delivered by third parties, and has adopted the major expansion
strategy of taking over newly-developed real estate projects of small-
and medium-sized developers. As a result, the increase in GFA under
management from properties developed by third party developers
has slowed down. In 2018, we took the initiative in withdrawing
from some third-party projects and optimizing the third-party project
portfolios, hence bettering the overall project portfolio under our
management.

In 2018, the Company’s revenue from value-added services increased
by 39.7% year on year to RMB418.0 million. The Company is working
hard to launch a series of new attempts on the value-added services
front. Since the second half of 2018, we have focused on developing
the asset management business. After conducting trials in cities such
as Shanghai, Suzhou and Nanjing, we have established sound business
operation specifications for the business and we will replicate the asset
management operating model to more regions in 2019. As at the date
of this annual report, our Orange APP has a subscriber base of over
547,000, thanks to the Company’s continued implementation of the
strategy of promoting Orange APP to enhance service experience. We
promise that property owners will be able to get in touch with our
steward within five minutes after making a report through the Orange
APP. We also gradually expanded the APP business while solving the
needs of property owners for property management services through
the Orange APP.
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PROSPECTS

At the beginning of 2019, the domestic economic situation was still
unclear and a certain degree of uncertainty lingered over the real
estate industry. However, the property industry is expected to continue
to demonstrate its industry characteristics of not being affected by the
macroeconomic situation and remain relatively stable. Among which,
superior enterprises will maintain their growth.

In 2019, we will strive to quicken the increase in GFA under
management. On the one hand, we will make good preparation for
the arrival of new project delivery peaks by increasing personnel
reserves, stepping up staff training and other means to create positive
property service experience in new communities for property owners.
On the other hand, with the delivery of new property projects by
Future Land Group nationwide, the management team of Xinchengyue
will also penetrate into more cities, laying a good foundation for the
expansion of third-party projects. Xinchengyue's expansion strategy
will continue to focus on new projects of small- and medium-sized
developer or quality second-hand projects, while actively paying
attention to merger and acquisition opportunities, and under the
premise of being in line with the Company’s layout of the “1+3"
regional strategy in the Yangtze River Delta Region plus the Bohai
Rim Region, the Pearl River Delta Region and the central and western
regions of China, appropriately carrying out mergers and acquisitions
of quality property companies.

In 2019, we will further increase the allocation of high-calibre
personnel in community-related value-added services and professional
services to enhance operational capacity, striving for higher growth.
In the area of community-related value-added services, we will focus
on developing the asset management business, increasing investment
in the research and development of the Orange APP and smart
communities, and intensifying innovation of the business model of
ready-to-move-in. For professional services, we will actively participate
in the intelligent engineering construction business newly initiated by
developers for establishing business management models on a high
base to achieve a high-quality and rapid growth of the intelligent
engineering construction business.
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We are confident that, with the strong support of Future Land Group,
we will continue to grow rapidly in the next three years. We will
continue to increase investment in the area of community-related
value-added services and professional services, with the aim of
achieving revenue from value-added services exceeding 50% of the
total revenue. We will step up marketing efforts in the area of smart
community, further enhancing the experience of property owners,
business partners and other interested parties by combining smart
communities with the Orange APP, thus strengthening the appeal
of the community service platform to suppliers while improving the
satisfaction of property owners. We will continue to implement the
“1+3" regional strategy and increase expansion in cities where we
have a management team, striving to achieve the minor target of
managing GFA of 100 million sq.m. at an early date. As industry
consolidation continues to advance, we have to grow faster than
the industry and that entering the top ten of the industry in the
comprehensive ranking will become possible. While providing high
quality services to our communities and property owners, we have
always committed to creating maximum long-term value for the
Shareholders!
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a fast-growing national property management service provider.
According to CIA, we have been ranked among the Top 10 Property
Management Service Providers in terms of growth in China for four
consecutive years from 2015 to 2018, ranking sixth among the Top 100
Property Service Companies in China in terms of managed floor area
in the Yangtze River Delta region in 2018. In addition, we ranked 16th
among the Top 100 Property Management Service Providers in China
published by the CIA in 2018.

Our business can be divided into two major aspects and four businesses:
first, property management services; second, value-added services
(including developer-related value-added services, community-related
value-added services and professional services).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property management services - 63.7% of total revenue
and 60.0% of total gross profit

Property management services remain our largest source of revenue
and gross profit. Income from property management services provides
a stable cash flow throughout the year, and the quality of our services
is the basis for ensuring this cash flow. At present, projects in our
charge mainly adopt lump sum basis property management service
agreements and only a few projects adopt commission basis property
management service agreements. We believe that in the current
business environment, the charging mode of lump sum basis is more
conducive to the healthy development of the industry.

Throughout 2018, our property management services:

° Revenue amounted to RMB732.0 million, representing an
increase of 29.1% as compared to RMB567.2 million for the year
2017, which was mainly attributable to the continued increase in
the area under management.

° Gross profit amounted to RMB203.5 million, representing an
increase of 41.8% as compared to RMB143.5 million for the year
2017. The gross profit margin of new projects is much higher
than that of our overall property management services. With the
increase of the proportion of new projects in the whole project
portfolio, the growth of gross profit outperformed that of the
Group’s revenue in 2018.
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BZENANAREEZANLEE
As of or for the year ended 31 December
2018F 2017%
2018 2017
NEER (3IES mEER %
HEER RE it 0N EERH EEmE TR ERR%
(F¥EX) &% (AR¥TR) A% (FEok)  BREEES  (ARMTI) A%
Percentage Property  Percentage Percentage Property Percentage
GFA under in GFA  management in property GFA under inGFA management in property
management under services management  management under services  management
(thousand  management Income service (thousand ~ management Income service
ITERE%ME  Properties developed by sq.m.) % (RMB'000) income % sq.m.) % (RMB'000) income %
e Future Land Group 30473 nia 571,357 78.1 26,178 722 445,870 786
£=5 Third Party 12,414 289 160,668 219 10,099 218 121,307 14
o Total 42,887 100.0 732,025 100.0 36,277 1000 567,177 100.0
HENABREEARHLER
As of or for the year ended 31 December
2018% 2017%
2018 2017
nEER LI ESE EFE
BRBHA ERRH EEER g TR ERR% kEmE HEE
(AR®T7R) BA%  (FEFK) 8% (AR%TR) bA%  (FEAR) Hi%
Property ~ Percentage Percentage Property Percentage Percentage
management in property  GFA under in GFA  management in property GFA under in GFA
service  management  management under service  management  management under
Income services (thousand  management Income services (thousand ~ management
(RMB'000) income % sq.m.) % (RMB'000) income % 5q.m.) %
k=A Yangtze Delta 605,219 827 37,207 86.7 498,452 879 31,845 8738
HebTEE Of which: Jiangsu Province 454211 62.0 29,218 68.1 380,339 67.1 25,758 70
B8 Bohai Rim 14,250 19 708 1.7 722 0.1 515 14
HER Midwest 82,618 13 4,105 96 48,860 86 3237 89
%=A Pear| River Delta - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0
AR Other regions 29,938 4.4 867 20 19,143 34 680 19
st Total 732,025 100.0 42,887 100.0 567,177 100.0 36,277 100.0
3 R=A8E Ik & T Notes:  Yangtze River Delta includes: Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang
BEEEE  IWE - K2 4ER L Bohai Rim includes: Shandong, Tianjin, Beijing and Hebei
REEERERIE - L8 IE - R - B4t JAE Midwest includes: Anhui, Jiangxi, Hunan, Hubei, Henan, Shaanxi, Shanxi, Sichuan,
BRPE WP - W)l EE Chongging
hZAeE ER Pearl River Delta includes: Guangdong
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As of or for the year ended 31 December

20185

2018
EHEE
(FEAK)

Contracted

EENEE%

GFA Percentage

(thousand in contracted

20174

2017
BHEE
(FEFK)

Contracted

HAROEEY

GFA Percentage

(thousand in contracted

UTN&FREmE Properties developed by sg.m.) GFA % sq.m.) GFA %
R Future Land Group 87,689 78.2 51,673 76.2
=5 Third Party 24,510 21.8 16,135 23.8
W@t Total 112,199 100.0 67,808 100.0

BENAMBREZZHHLEE

As of or for the year ended 31 December
20185 20174
2018 2017

SHEE BHEE
(FEBXK) HENHEES (FFFK)  (HEDEE

Contracted Contracted
GFA Percentage GFA Percentage
(thousand in contracted (thousand in contracted
sg.m.) GFA % sq.m.) GFA %
r=A Yangtze Delta 71,928 64.1 54,236 80.0
Heh TH#E Of which: Jiangsu Province 54,566 48.6 40,985 60.4
R Bohai Rim 8,594 7.7 2,104 3.1
A Midwest 23,479 20.9 8,977 13.2
®K=A Pearl River Delta 2,489 2.2 617 0.9
Hibi @ Other regions 5,709 5.1 1,874 2.8
st Total 112,199 100.0 67,808 100.0
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As of the end of 2018, the GFA under management was 42.9
million sq.m., representing an increase of 18.2%, or 6.6 million
sg.m., from 36.3 million sq.m. in 2017. The net increase in
GFA under management and the rate of increase have slipped
compared with the previous, mainly because we have changed
our strategy of outward expansion since 2017. The expansion
strategy of third-party projects has changed from taking over
communities with owners committee to pre-sale communities.
The pre-sale projects cannot generate property service income for
us immediately, and can only be converted into our GFA under
management after the successful delivery of these projects.

Our contracted GFA consists of two parts, the GFA under
management and the reserved GFA. The contracted GFA
exceeded 100.0 million sq.m. during the year and reached 112.2
million sq.m. at the end of the year, representing an increase of
65.5% from 67.8 million sq.m. in 2017. There are two reasons
for the explosive growth in contracted GFA. One is that the rapid
development of our excellent partner, Future Land Group, has
enabled us to continue to obtain a large number of high-quality
property management contracts, and the other is due to the
rapid expansion in respect of properties developed by third party
developers. As mentioned above, the Company has adjusted
the development strategy for our third-party projects and has
shifted its focus to undelivered new communities, for which the
Company will record the contracted GFA of such projects after
the contract is signed. At the end of the year, our reserved GFA
accounted for more than 60% of the contracted GFA, which will
lay a good foundation for our rapid growth in the future.

We had 200 projects under management as of the end of
2018, representing an increase of 23 from the end of 2017.
The residential areas under our management had covered 23
provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China as of
the end of 2018. In the process of gradually covering the whole
country, we will continue to focus on key strategies and districts.
Of our contracted GFA, the “1+3" strategic area accounted for
94.9%.
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Value-added services — 36.3% of total revenue and 40.0%
of total gross profit

Value-added services are a symbol of diversification of traditional
property service enterprises. Revenue from value-added services
amounted to RMB418.0 million during the year, representing an
increase of 39.7% from RMB299.2 million in 2017, and the ratio of
value-added services to total revenue increased from 34.5% to 36.3%.
Value-added services have a higher gross profit margin than property
management services, and the increase in their contribution to our
revenue has brought us a more diversified and richer source of profit.
Our value-added services are divided into three types: developer-related
value-added services, community-related value-added services and
professional services. Below, we will introduce the various value-added
services in detail:

Developer-related value-added services — 25.7% of total
revenue, 22.3% of total gross profit

Developer-related services were our fastest growing segment of the
year, generating a revenue of RMB296.7 million, up 69.1% from
RMB175.5 million in 2017. We mainly provide consulting services,
sales office services and detail inspection services for developers, and
Future Land Group is our largest customer in this business. As stated
in our prospectus dated 24 October 2018 (the “Prospectus”), these
services are important to the overall property development and sales
process of our clients and contribute to the success and reputation of
the developers. Generally speaking, developers who are strict with their
own products will have the demand for this kind of service. The rapid
growth in revenue for the full year of 2018 was mainly attributable
to the performance of sales office services. Revenue of such services
is tied to the sales of the developers we served (e.g. number of
items on sale or number of sales offices). The cumulative contracted
sales volume of Future Land Group for the period from January to
December 2018 increased by approximately 74.8% as compared to the
corresponding period of 2017, and the cumulative sales area increased
by approximately 95.2% as compared to the corresponding period. The
rapid growth of Future Land Group has contributed to the improvement
of the performance of our business in this category.
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Community-related value-added services — 4.2% of total
revenue, 11.6% of total gross profit

Revenue from community-related value-added services amounted to
RMB47.9 million, representing an increase of 10.6% as compared to
RMB43.3 million in 2017. In 2018, only a small increase was achieved
in this service, mainly due to the business restructuring during the year.
In order to better tap the value of the currently managed community,
we now divide the value-added services into four categories, strive to
serve the entire life cycle of the community, and achieve full coverage
in all forms. Four types of services are community public resources
management, ready-to-move-in services, asset management services
and Orange APP operations. After the listing, as we actively recruit the
various types of business talents, we have seen some productive results
in some business areas, and believe that the revenue growth rate of
community-related value-added services will be on the right track in the
future. Below we will introduce these four types of services in detail:

° The revenue of the public resource management in the
community mainly comes from the advertising revenue in the
management project attributed to the property company. This
year, we signed a strategic partnership agreement with Focus
Media, a global pioneer in elevator media that will cover the vast
majority of our elevator advertising in the future. Focus Media’s
high market share and a large number of existing customers
make them have a high bidding ability, and cooperation with
Focus Media can bring value to public resources in our mature
communities.

° Ready-to-move-in service used to mainly serve the new
community we took over. Owners of these communities often
have needs for finishing and decoration after they get the new
houses. We will take this opportunity to provide owners with
brand furniture, appliances, decoration and other suppliers
for their selection. In the second half of 2018, we strategically
upgraded the business to become a branded product that
enhances the owner’s residential experience. In addition to the
one-stop decoration and purchase of the new apartment, we
have also introduced locally renovated loading products for
self-management and control, which are aimed at products
of rigid demand and used at home, such as balcony storage,
bedroom cabinets, balcony window seals. We aim to serve
owners of newly delivered houses as well as existing owners with
renovation needs. We hope that this service will not only bring
value to our owners in the new delivery phase, but will also be
available to our owners over a longer period of time.
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Asset management is a new business category that we launched
in the second half of 2018. It includes two major services,
parking lot sales and secondary property renting and sales.
Success has been initially achieved in parking lot sales. With
the steady improvement of living standards, the per capita car
ownership of residents is also gradually increasing. Statistics from
the Ministry of Public Security show that by the end of 2018,
there were 240 million vehicles in China, an increase of 22.85
million vehicles or 10.5% over 2017. Parking problems in some
of the old communities have begun to emerge, and the demand
for private car park is on the rise. In this case, we timely adjust
the strategy, the original passive sales strategy will be adjusted
to active selling. Accelerated sale of parking lot can help
developers get their money back more quickly, so it's not only a
very promising business category for us, but it also enhances our
relationship with developers. In August 2018, we first tried out
parking lot sales in Shanghai, and then gradually extended to
Suzhou, Nanjing and other places. This year, under this business
model, we sold 668 parking lots.

Orange APP operations are our online sales business. In addition
to operating close to the owner’s daily life, we tried to add some
products with high unit price and high gross profit during the
year, such as fingerprint locks and water purifiers. On the one
hand, we have a cost advantage in obtaining these products,
while on the other hand, these products which improve the
quality of life can better meet young owners’ tastes and needs,
who are the main force of Internet consumption.
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Professional services — 6.4% of total revenue and 6.1% of
total gross profit

Revenue from professional services amounted to RMB73.3 million
during the year, representing a decrease of 8.8% from RMB80.4
million in 2017. In the past, the focus of our professional services is
mainly on the intelligent transformation of the old residential area.
Now the new residential area will be equipped with the mature
intelligent system before delivery, which leads to the bottleneck of our
transformation business after undertaking the existing old residential
areas. The popularity of intelligent equipment in residential areas is
increasing; we believe that this is an unchangeable trend, penetrating
professional services into the new residential areas of the intelligent
field is imperative. In the fourth quarter of 2018, we have already
taken the first step on the intelligent engineering business of the new
residential area. Our intelligent company has successfully entered the
supplier catalogue of the developers and participated in the intelligent
engineering service of the residential area under construction, which is
a large market opportunity for us.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue amounted to RMB1,150.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, representing a year-on-year increase of 32.7% as
compared to RMB866.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The Group derives its revenue from two main businesses: (i) property
management services and (ii) value-added services. In 2018, (i) property
management services revenue remained as the Group’s largest source of
revenue and profit, amounting to RMB732.0 million, which accounted
for 63.7% of the Group's revenue and represented year-on-year increase
of 29.1% as compared to RMB567.2 million for the year of 2017; and
(i) revenue from value-added services amounted to RMB418.0 million,
representing 36.3% of the Group’s revenue. There is a year-on-year
growth of 39.7% compared with the year of 2017, which maintained
strong momentum of growth.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB811.0
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 29.9% as compared to
RMB624.1 million for the corresponding period in 2017 and a slight
decrease as compared to the Group’s revenue growth of 32.7%. This is
mainly due to the scale effect and management efficiency improvement
brought about by the expansion of our management scale. In the mean
time, the Group has been focusing and attaching great importance to
the cost control.

Gross profit margin

- Gross profit amounted to RMB339.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, representing an increase of 39.9% as
compared to RMB242.2 million for the year of 2017. Gross
profit margin was 29.5%, up 1.5 percentage points from the
corresponding period in 2017. The increase in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the increase in gross profit margin
of property management services and developer-related
value-added services.
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Gross profit margin on property management services was
27.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018, up 2.5 percentage
points from 25.3% in 2017. During the year, the Group's
proportion of new projects under management continued to
increase, which was the dominant factor contributing to the
increase in gross profit margin of our property management
services. In addition, with the expansion of management scale,
the Group has spared no effort to provide property owners with
a better service experience through the investment in intelligent
equipment and the upgrading of management system. The
Group continues to promote the standardized management
system while rapidly expand the business nationwide. On
the premise of customer satisfaction, the Group achieved
excellent cost control capacity as well as quality assurance for
its rapid expansion thanks to the establishment of automation,
centralization, standardization management system.

Gross profit margin was 25.5% for Property developer-related
services for the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase in
gross profit margin by approximately 3.5% from 22.0% in 2017
was mainly attributable to 1) a significant increase in revenue
from detail inspection services in 2018 compared with 2017
which carried a relatively higher gross profit margin; 2) revenue
from on-site sales assistance services increased by approximately
88.2% as compared to revenue of RMB128.3 million in 2017,
resulting in an increase in sales office management efficiency
and gross profit margin due to the expansion of business scale
and the promotion of standardized management system.

Gross profit margin on community-related value-added services
was 81.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018, down slightly
from 85% in 2017. It is mainly due to the Group’s increase in
personnel cost for the purpose of talent reserve in respect of
developing asset management business, resulting in the decrease
of the gross profit margin.
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- Gross profit margin of professional services was 28.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2018, down 1% from 29.2% in 2017.
This is mainly due to the decline in maintenance and repair
business of elevators and intelligent equipment in residential
areas with a relatively high gross profit, and the rise in the
business proportion of new intelligent construction projects of
developers with a relatively low gross profit.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group amounted to RMB144.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase
of 21.7% as compared to RMB118.6 million in 2017. The increase was
mainly attributable to (i) the increase in the number of management
personnel and the corresponding increase in staff expenses due to the
rapid growth in revenue; and (ii) the substantial increase in professional
fees paid to the sponsor, counsels, auditors and other professional
parties for the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange as included in
the listing fees.

As the Group has put its emphasis on improvement of management
efficiency, the Group has launched various business management
systems, including revenue management system, comprehensive budget
management system and financial sharing center, resulting in the
Group’s administrative expenses growth rate lower than the Group’s
revenue growth rate in 2018.

Other gains/(losses)

Other gains include gains from foreign currency translation, while other
losses include the loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
The Group recorded a foreign currency translation gain of approximately
RMB18.5 million in 2018, mainly due to the impact of the appreciation
of the Hong Kong dollar against the Renminbi during the year.
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Income tax

The income tax for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB47.4 million, representing an increase of 122.6% as compared to
RMB21.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, and the tax
burden increased from 18.8% in 2017 to 22.5% in the current year.
The increase in tax burden was mainly attributable to the increase in
the income tax rate applicable to Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services
Co., Ltd. ("Tibet Xinchengyue”) from 18.5% for the year ended 31
December 2017 to 20.0% for the year ended 31 December 2018 due
to the expiration of the exemption of income tax for local retention of
income tax attributable to the local tax generated from the Company’s
head office in Tibet for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Under the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
exempted from income tax in the Cayman Islands.

For the Group entities incorporated in Hong Kong, as the Group did not
derive any income subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the year ended
31 December 2018, accordingly, the Group did not make provision for
Hong Kong profits tax.
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The income tax provisions of the Group in respect of its operations in
the mainland China have been calculated in accordance with existing
applicable laws, interpretations and practices at the rate applicable
to the assessable tax profits for the year. The statutory tax rate for
the record period was 25%. After Tibet Xinchengyue, the principal
operating subsidiary of the Group, moved its place of incorporation
from Changzhou to Tibet on 17 December 2015, as part of its
development strategy for the western region, its Tibet headquarters has
adopted a preferential tax rate of 15% which is expected to expire in
the year ended 31 December 2020. Tibet Xinchengyue has a number of
branches throughout China. In accordance with the relevant tax laws
and regulations, the Group has filed income tax returns by consolidating
the taxable income of the Tibet headquarters and all its branches. 50%
of the total taxable income is apportioned to the Tibet headquarters,
which is subject to income tax at a rate of 15%, and the remaining
50% of the total taxable income is apportioned to branches, which
are subject to income tax at a rate of 25%, resulting in an average
applicable income tax rate of 20%. In addition, according to the Circular
of “Announcement on the Distribution of the Implementation Policy
concerning the Enterprise Income Tax in Tibet Autonomous Region
Tax Policy (ZZF [2014] No. 51)”, Tibet Xinchengyue was entitled to an
exemption of income tax for local retention of income tax attributable
to the local tax bureau generated from its head office in Tibet till 31
December 2017. As a result, the income tax rate applicable to Tibet
Xinchengyue was further reduced to 18.5% from 17 December 2015
to 31 December 2017. According to the Corporate Income Tax Law,
the corporate income tax rate applicable to entities located in mainland
China and outside the Tibet Autonomous Region is 25%.
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Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the profit of the Group was
RMB163.2 million, representing an increase of 77.9% as compared
to the corresponding period in 2017. Profits attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB150.4 million,
representing an increase of 104.9% as compared to the corresponding
period in 2017. Net profit margin (profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company divided by revenue) was 13.1%, up 4.6
percentage points from 8.5% in the corresponding period of 2017. The
increase in net profit margin was mainly attributable to the Group’s
rapid expansion in business and improved management efficiency and
effective cost control, resulting in a 1.5 percentage points increase in
gross profit margin and a 1.4 percentage points decrease in selling and
marketing, and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue in
2018 as compared to 2017. In addition, the Group recorded foreign
exchange gains of approximately RMB18.5 million in 2018, which
contributed approximately 1.6 percentage points to the increase in net
profit margin.

Liquidity, Reserves and Capital Structure

The Group maintained a healthy financial position during the year
ended 31 December 2018. Current assets amounted to RMB1,497.8
million as at 31 December 2018, representing an increase of 97.1%
as compared to RMB759.8 million as at 31 December 2017. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB1,277.8 million,
representing an increase of 101.7% as compared to RMB633.5 million
as at 31 December 2017. The Company has abundant cash, bearing no
bank loans and is in a net cash position. The current ratio was 2.2 at
the end of 2018, which was at a robust level.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB1,277.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 101.7% as compared to RMB633.5 million at the end of 2017. This
was mainly attributable to: (i) the increase in net cash from operating
activities of RMB192.0 million; (ii) an increase of RMB429.9 million
in financing activities; and (iii) exchange rate translation resulted
in an increase of RMB18.5 million. Net cash inflow from operating
activities remained stable and strong, contributing to a net inflow of
approximately RMB192.0 million in 2018, which remained stable as
compared to the year of 2017.
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The Group’s total equity amounted to RMB867.1 million as at 31
December 2018, representing an increase of approximately RMB678.1
million, or 358.8%, as compared to RMB189.0 million as at 31
December 2017. This is mainly due to the successful listing on the Stock
Exchange in November 2018 with a fund of approximately RMB538.4
million raised and the accumulation of profits of the Company for the
year 2018.

As all the Group’s businesses are conducted in the mainland China,
revenue and profits for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
denominated in Renminbi. The major foreign currency source for the
Group is the fundraising following the successful listing on the Stock
Exchange during the year, all of which were in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group is of the view that there is no significant foreign exchange risk.

Gearing ratio

Our Gearing ratio was calculated based on total borrowings divided
by total equity. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018, the
gearing ratio were 34.9% and O respectively, and the decrease in the
gearing was attributable to that we have repaid our borrowings due to
related parties.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB8.3 million as at
31 December 2018, representing a decrease of 47% as compared to
RMB15.6 million as at 31 December 2017. It is mainly because the
Group ultimately terminated its purchase of a building in Tibet during
the year ended 31 December 2018 of which the consideration was
RMB7.5 million due to the fact that it had not obtained the relevant
title certificates.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables amounted to RMB128.9 million as at 31 December
2018, representing an increase of 67.5% as compared to RMB76.9
million as at the end of 2017. The balances as at the end of both 2018
and 2017 remained within the range of 9%-11% as a percentage of
total revenue although the increase percentage appears to be on a high
level and exceeds the increase percentage in revenue. Trade receivables
as a percentage of total assets decreased from 9.5% as at the end of
2017 to 8.3% as at 31 December 2018, demonstrating the Group’s
ability to control and enforce recovery of due amounts.
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Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables mainly consists of other
receivables due from property owners, utilities, operational prepayments
and others. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables amounted to
RMB82.5 million as at 31 December 2018, representing an increase
of RMB36.8 million as compared to RMB45.7 million as at the end of
2017. The increase is mainly attributable to the significant increase
in pre-paid utilities and project deposits as a result of the increase in
number of projects under management.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables primarily include trade payables to third
parties, other payables to third parties and other taxes payable. Trade
payable to third parties mainly represents balances due to suppliers for
the purchase of services and goods related to property management.
Other amounts due to third parties mainly represent balances due to
third parties resulted from an increase in special project funds (including
elevator maintenance funds and public operation funds) received by
us on behalf of all property owners. Other taxes payable include taxes
other than income tax. As at 31 December 2018, trade and other
payables amounted to RMB407.6 million, representing an increase of
RMB62.3 million as compared to RMB345.3 million as at the end of
2017. The increase was mainly due to an increase in trade and other
payables due to third parties and an increase in accrued salaries. Trade
payables to third parties increased by 27.5% from RMB56.3 million as at
31 December 2017 to RMB71.8 million as at 31 December 2018, mainly
due to an increase in outsourcing of gardening and cleaning services.
Other amounts due to third parties increased by 13.5% from RMB214.6
million as at 31 December 2017 to RMB243.6 million as at 31 December
2018, mainly because of the increase in payments received on behalf of
property owners, which was in line with the increase in the number of
property under management. Our accrued salaries increased by 20.3%
from RMB59.8 million as at 31 December 2017 to RMB72.0 million as
at 31 December 2018, mainly because of the increase in the number of
employees and salaries of employees.
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Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities mainly representing customer advances for property
management fee amounted to RMB248.8 million as at 31 December
2018, which increased 37.7% as compared to RMB180.7 million in
2017, and was substantially in line with the growth in revenue.

Proceeds from listing

The Company successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 6 November 2018 with the issue of 220,000,000 new
shares (including the issue of 20,000,000 new shares upon the partial
exercise at the over-allotment option), with total net proceeds of
approximately RMB538.4 million from the listing after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses. As at the date of this annual
report, due to the Company’s sound business operations and ample
cash level, the Company has not utilised such proceeds.

The proceeds are and will continuously be used in accordance with
the plans as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds — Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus, namely:

- Approximately 60% for acquisition of property service companies
and acquisition of property management projects, which is
expected to be used up by 31 December 2021;

- Approximately 15% for expansion of our value-added services
business line, which is expected to be used up by 31 December
2021,

- Approximately 15% invested in advanced technology and
employees to provide more efficient services to households,
which is expected to be used up by 31 December 2021; and

- Approximately 10% for working capital and general business
purposes, which is expected to be used up by 31 December
2021.

Asset charges

As at 31 December 2018, none of the assets of the Group were
charged.
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DIRECTORS
Executive directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, aged 50, is our chairman, executive Director, chief
executive officer and general manager. He also serves as the chairman
and executive director of Tibet Xinchengyue. Mr. Qi joined our Group
in January 2015. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Qi served as the
assistant to the manager of the executive management department in
Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Future Land”) and the general
manager and assistant president in Changzhou Future Land Co., Ltd.
(“Changzhou Future Land”), Chengzhong Branch from September
2002 to March 2015. He also served as the assistant president of Future
Land Development Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Future Land Development
Holdings") from March 2015 to June 2016.

In July 1992, Mr. Qi graduated from Hefei Industrial University of
Technology with a bachelor degree in engineering.

Ms. Wu Qianqian, aged 35, is the executive Director and deputy
general manager (for quality assurance). Ms. Wu joined the Group
in August 2012 and has assumed multiple positions, including the
Company’s assistant manager and the assistant general manager and
general manager of Changzhou Branch. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Wu served as the customer manager and sales manager of Changzhou
Future Land from June 2007 to July 2012.

In June 2006, Ms. Wu graduated from Yancheng Teachers University
with a bachelor degree in management.

Mr. Lan Ziyong, aged 39, is the executive Director and deputy general
manager (for operation, administration and HR). Mr. Lan joined the
Group in March 2011 as an assistant manager of the Company. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Lan served as the deputy manager of sales
department and secretary to the president of Jiangsu Future Land from
January 2007 to February 2011.

Mr. Lan was conferred a bachelor degree in engineering management
and a master degree in management by Chongqging University in June
2004 and December 2006 respectively.
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Non-executive directors

Mr. Wang Zhenhua, aged 57, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Wang
joined Tibet Xinchengyue in March 1996 as the president and manager,
beginning to engage in property management services. As the founder
of Future Land Development Holdings, Mr. Wang has been serving as
the chairman of the board of directors of Future Land Holdings Co., Ltd.
("Future Land Holdings”) since 1996. In 2001, Mr. Wang became the
chairman of the board of directors of Jiangsu Future Land, a subsidiary
of Future Land Development Holdings. Jiangsu Future Land engages
principally in residential property development and its B-shares were
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE stock code: 900950). In
December 2015, Future Land Holdings absorbed and merged Jiangsu
Future Land by way of share swap and was listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (SSE stock code: 601155). In 2008, Mr. Wang founded Future
Land Wanbo Property Co., Ltd., which focuses on the development of
mix-use complex projects.

In July 2005, Mr. Wang graduated from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business with an EMBA degree. At present, Mr. Wang serves as
the vice president of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce and as
president of Shanghai Real Estate Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Wang
was named “National Model Worker” by the State Council in 2010 and
was appointed as a representative of Jiangsu Province for the National
People’s Congress of the PRC in January 2013.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping, aged 57, is our non-executive Director. Since joining
the Group in April 2016, Mr. Lv has been serving as a director of Tibet
Xinchengyue. Before that, he served as the deputy general manager of
Jiangsu Xincheng Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. from September 2001 to
August 2004, and as the general manager of Future Land Holdings from
30 March 2015 to 15 December 2015. From August 2004 to February
2013, Mr. Lv served as the director and the president of Jiangsu Future
Land, principally responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
residential property development business carried out by Jiangsu Future
Land. From February 2013 to January 2016, Mr. Lv served as the vice
chairman of Jiangsu Future Land and has been acting as the director
of Future Land Holdings since December 2015. In November 2012,
Mr. Lv was appointed as the non-executive director of Future Land
Development Holdings. He was appointed as the executive director and
CEO in January 2016 and has been holding the positions until now.

Mr. Lv graduated from Naval University of Engineering in July 1983 with
a bachelor degree in engineering and graduated from China European
International Business School with an MBA degree in June 2007.
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Mr. Lu Zhongming, aged 47, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Lu
joined the Group in April 2016. From December 2001 to May 2010, he
served as the general manager of the finance department of Jiangsu
Future Land. From June 2010 to March 2015, he was holding the
position of vice president of Future Land Holdings. In March 2015, Mr.
Lu joined Future Land Development Holdings and has been serving as
the vice president.

In June 1999, Mr. Lu graduated from Nanjing Institute of Finance &
Economics and was conferred an MBA degree by Tongji University in
December 2013.

Independent non-executive directors

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August,
2016 to February 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Zhang worked
for Changzhou Accounting Firm as a clerk, deputy director and director
between August 1992 and December 1998. From January 1999 to
December 2000, she served as the chairman and chief accountant of
Changzhou Zhengda Accounting Firm Co., Ltd. Later, she joined Jiangsu
Gongzheng Accounting Firm in January 2001 and had been serving
as the managing deputy chief accountant and director of the firm's
Changzhou branch until August 2008. Since August, 2008, Ms. Zhang
has been an associate professor at Business School of Jiangsu University
of Technology. From December 2011 to December 2017, Ms. Zhang
served as an independent non-executive director of EGing Photovoltaic
Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
SSE stock code: 600537) and is an independent non-executive director
of Jiangsu Changhai Composite Materials Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, SZSE stock code: 300196) since February,
2016.

In June 1992, Ms. Zhang graduated from Finance and Economics School
of Soochow University with a bachelor degree in economics. She was
certified as a senior accountant and registered appraiser in 2002 and
2011 respectively.
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Mr. Zhu Wei, aged 57, is our independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhu was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Since June 1994, Mr. Zhu has been working in
Jiangsu Zhuhui Law Firm and has served as a partner, director and the
chairman of partners’ meetings. Since December 2002, Mr. Zhu has
also been serving as a postgraduate tutor in Soochow University. Since
October 2015, Mr. Zhu has been an independent non-executive director
of Changzhou Langbo Sealing Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 603655).

In July 1983, Mr. Zhu graduated from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor degree in law. He was conferred
a diploma in law by University of London in December 1997 and a
doctor degree in constitutional law and administrative law by Soochow
University in June 2007 respectively. In August 1998, Mr. Zhu was
certified as a national first-grade lawyer.

Mr. Xu Xinmin, aged 68, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Xu has the title of economist and has accumulated over 20 years
of experience in the property industry. Mr. Xu served as the deputy
secretary-general of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
where he was in charge of the work under the research committee
for community services from December 2014 to December 2017.
From August 1992 to February 2001, Mr. Xu acted as the head of the
department of housing management under Jiangsu Changzhou Property
Management Bureau and subsequently the head of the department of
property management under Jiangsu Changzhou Property Management
Bureau. From March 2001 to April 2010, Mr. Xu served as the director
of Chinese Management Council General Department. Mr. Xu served
as the deputy secretary general for Chinese Property Management
Association, where he was mainly responsible for overseeing the
organization and implementation of the National Property Management
Examination from March 2001 to April 2010. In July 2001, Mr. Xu was
appointed as a senior consultant of the property management division
at Chinese Higher Education Council. Mr. Xu has been since September
2014 and continues to serve as an independent non-executive director
of Colour Life Services Group Co., Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1778).

In June 2005, Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Forestry University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tao Fajin, aged 55, joined the Group in June 2008 and has been
serving as the vice general manager since October 2015, responsible for
the supervision of the Company’s business development strategies. From
December 1992 to June 2006, Mr. Tao was the vice general manager
of Changzhou Tian’an Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. From June
2006 to June 2008, he was the vice general manager of Changzhou
Lujin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Tao served as the general
manager of Tibet Xinchengyue from June 2008 to April 2011. In May
2011, he joined Changzhou Juning Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
as the general manager and had been working there until April 2016.

In January 2013, Mr. Tao graduated from Nankai University. Since
November 1996, he has been a Certified Public Accountant of China.

Mr. Zuo Wei, aged 42, is the chief financial officer and deputy general
manager. Mr. Zuo joined the Group in April 2019 and has been
responsible for the finance and accounting of the Group. Mr. Zuo has
over 19 years of experience in professional accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zuo served as multiple
financial management positions in several branches of Vanke Group
from July 2001 to August 2015. From August 2015 to October 2017,
he served as deputy general manager (for financial management) in
Shanghai branch of CIFI Holdings Group. From October 2017 to April
2019, Mr. Zuo served as general manager of financial management
department in residential development business division of Future Land
Holdings.

Mr. Zuo graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
with a bachelor degree in accounting in July 2001 and a master degree
in business administration in December 2012.

Mr. You lJianfeng, aged 40, joined the Group in January 2016 as
the vice general manager. Before joining the Group, Mr. You worked
in Adfaith Management Consulting Inc. from July 2002 to August
2006, and served as a senior analyst in Shanghai Huijiang Real Estate
Consulting Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to February 2011. From February
2011 to April 2012, he was the product management director of Noah
Private Wealth Management Co., Ltd. and the product management
director of Shanghai Fanghui Equity Investment Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. between April 2012 and November 2013. From November 2013 to
December 2015, he served as the financing director and vice general
manager of the financial management department of Jiangsu Future
Land.

In July 2002, Mr. You graduated from Peking University with a bachelor
degree in economic management. In June 2008, he was conferred a
degree of MBA by Fudan University.
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The Board is pleased to submit the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended on 31 December
2018 (“Reporting Period”) to the Group.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities on 16 January 2018. The Company was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 November 2018
("Listing Date").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are property management
services, including property and equipment maintenance, security
services, cleaning services, gardening services, public area maintenance
and other property management related services, and value-added
services, including developer-related value-added services, community-
related value-added services and professional services. For the analysis
of the Group’s principal activities for the year ended 31 December 2018,
see the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

RESULTS

For the Group’s results of the year ended 31 December, 2018, see the
section headed “Financial and Business Summary” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMBO.1
per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 from the share
premium account. The final dividend is still subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on 20 May 2019 (the "AGM"), and is expected to be paid on 10 June
2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 28 May 2019.
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OUR DIVIDEND POLICY:

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, through a
general meeting we may declare dividends in any currency but no
dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”) provide that dividends may be declared and paid
out of our profit, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve of our
Company lawfully available for distribution including share premium.

The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our
Directors, and the amounts of dividends actually declared and paid will
also depend upon the following factors:

. our general business conditions;

° our financial results;

° our capital requirements;

. interests of our Shareholders; and

° any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Our future dividend payments to our Shareholders will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries in the
PRC. PRC laws require that dividends be paid out of the net profit
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in
certain aspects from HKFRSs. PRC laws also require enterprises located
in the PRC to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves
before they distribute the net proceeds. These statutory reserves
are not available for distribution as cash dividends. Furthermore,
distributions from our subsidiaries may be restricted if they incur debts
or losses or as a result of any restrictive covenants in bank credit
facilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter
into in the future.

Any final dividend for a fiscal year will be subject to our Shareholders’
approval.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year of 2018 and the
discussion regarding the future business development of the Group, the
principal risks and uncertainties which the Group is exposed to and the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are set out in the section of Chairman’s Statement
on page 24 to page 27, and the section of Management Discussion
and Analysis on page 28 to page 35 of this annual report respectively.
The analysis of the Group’s performance in the year of 2018 with key
financial performance indicators is set out in the section of Financial
Review on page 36 to page 44 of this annual report.

The Group firmly believes that sustainability plays an important role
in its development and is actively applying its ideas to every detail
of the business operations and devoted to delivering a better future
for the society and the Company as well. The Group will publish an
independent environmental, social and governance report according to
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results and summary of assets and liabilities of the Group during
the last four financial years are set out on page 19 to page 20 of this
annual report. The summary shall not constitute a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PURPOSES OF LISTED PROCEEDS

The net proceeds (after deduction of underwriting commission and
relevant expenses) from the listing of the Company on the Stock
Exchange are approximately RMB538.4 million, which are intended to
be used for the purposes set out on the Prospectus. None of the net
proceeds from the IPO has been used for any purposes as of the date of
this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the turnover with the top five
customers of the Group accounts for 32.5 % of the Group’s revenue
(2017: 27.3 %), while the turnover with the largest single customer of
the Group accounts for 31.8 % of the Group’s revenue (2017: 26.7 %).

During the Reporting Period, except Mr. Wang Zhenhua, none of the
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers.
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Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the turnover with the top five
suppliers of the Group accounts for 35.2 % of the Group’s cost of
sales for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 35.3 %), while the
turnover with the largest single supplier of the Group accounts for 22.2
% of the Group’s total procurement (2017: 21.4 %).

During the Reporting Period, except Jiangsu Hecheng Security Services
Company Limited in which the Company holds 6% equity, none of the
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's
five largest suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out on note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out on note 25 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out on note 26 to the
financial statements.

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

As of 31 December 2018, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB689.2 million (Nil as of 31
December 2017).
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DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report,
the directors were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Zhenhua
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, the Board
shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Therefore, Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Ms. Wu Qian Qian, Mr. Lan Ziyong, Mr.
Wang Zhenhua, Mr. Lv Xiaoping, Mr. Lu Zhongming, Ms. Zhang Yan, Mr.
Zhu Wei, and Mr. Xu Xinmin shall retire from office and have offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out
on the circular to be sent to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on page 45 to page 49 of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director made in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company with an initial term of three years effective from the
Listing Date. Any executive Directors or the Company may terminate
the contract by a prior written notice of at least three months. The
appointment of an executive Director shall be in accordance with
requirements on directors’ retirement by rotation under Articles of
Association.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. In accordance
with their respective letters of appointment, the independent
non-executive Directors are entitled to receive a fixed amount of
director’s emoluments while any non-executive Directors shall not
receive any remuneration. Relevant appointment shall be in accordance
with the requirements on directors’ retirement by rotation under Articles
of Association and applicable Listing Rules.

Except for those disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with any members of the Group, excluding the
contracts expiring within a year or may be terminated by the employers
without paying any compensation (legal compensations excluded).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The Company entered into a service framework agreement for the year
of 2019 with Mr. Wang Zhenhua, who is also a controlling Shareholder,
on 12 December 2018. Such transaction has been approved by the
independent Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on
15 February 2019.
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Save for the transactions, arrangements or contracts set out above
and in the sections titled “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under
of this annual report and note 35 to the financial statements, no other
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a person who was a Director or his or her connected

entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at any time

“Report of the Directors”

during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this
annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 5,050 full time
employees in the PRC. Total employee benefit expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately RMB358.1
million, which included (i) wages, salaries and bonuses, (ii) pension
costs, (iii) housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances,
and (iv) other employee benefits.

The Company persists in establishing and optimizing a value-oriented
unified remuneration system based on a proactive and effective
incentive mechanism, materializing optimization of resources allocation
and maximization of corporate efficiency; adhering to the philosophy
of market allocation based on value of position, contribution in terms
of capability and performance difference; maintaining competitiveness
of remuneration, attracting, motivating and retaining core staff. Staff
remuneration is mainly comprised of wages of different positions, wages
in terms of performance, allowances and grants, and social insurance.
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A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
remuneration policy and structure for the remunerations of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out on note 8 and note 36 to the financial
statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
PROGRAMS

The details of the Company’s retirement and employee benefit programs
are set out on note 8 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DENTURES

As of 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as
defined in Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of SFO,
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
("Model Code”) were as follows:

Long position of the Company’s ordinary shares

EEnE SO RERMEE FERAEE RESAIEIL
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Identity and nature of interest shares held shareholding
TiRE ([EX£%ED) ZREFENAIARA (FFEE) 600,000,000 73.17%
Wang Zhenhua (“Mr. Wang”) Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
BT Note:
1. F % & BHua ShengfE BRI Bl A » #&1L - Standard 1. Mr. Wang is the founder of Hua Sheng Trust, through which, Standard Chartered
Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited{E BEFEABBER Trust (Cayman) Limited held long position in 600,000,000 shares through its
2 43% M55 600,000,000 B (D B G A - controlled corporations in its capacity as trustee.
B EXFT#EEEE SN - RA2018F 128318 » & Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
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and chief executive of the Company held or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the
Company, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code.
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DIRECTOR’
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting
Period, there were no such rights to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were there
any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
controlled companies, or affiliates and their subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
corporations.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

ARREIEBR TR Long position of the Company’s ordinary shares
RERME SO REZEME FREERROEBE RESAEIL
Approximate
Identity and nature of Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholders

interest

ordinary shares held shareholding

73.17%

Infinity Fortune Development Limited

First Priority Group Limited

Wealth Zone Hong Kong
Investments Limited

Innovative Hero Limited

X EEER (M)

Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 1)

ZyEEAEERE (M)

Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 1)

HEEEEsE (EE2)

Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 2)

BEaEE A (HFE3)

Beneficial owner (Note 3)

600,000,000
73.17%

600,000,000

600,000,000 73.17%

600,000,000 73.17%
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Notes:

1. Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited, as trustee of Hua Sheng Trust, which
was established by Mr. Wang as settlor in favor of his family members, held, through
its nominee, Global Nominees Ltd., 100% of the issued share capital of Infinity
Fortune Group Limited, which in turn held 100% of the issued share capital of First
Priority Group Limited.

2. Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is 100% held by First Priority Group
Limited.

3. Innovative Hero Limited is 100% held by Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, and as of 31 December 2018, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any persons
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was conditionally
adopted by a written resolution of the Shareholders on 20 October
2018 (“Adoption Date”). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group. For further information regarding the Share Option Scheme,
see “Statutory and General Information — Share Option Scheme” of the
Prospectus. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is around 5
years and 7 months.

As of 31 December 2018, no share option has been granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no other share option schemes were entered
into by the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period, or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association and Company Law of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 20 October 2018, our controlling Shareholders entered into a deed
of non-competition in favor of our Company (for itself and on behalf
of all members of the Group), pursuant to which they have undertaken
that they would not and, would procure none of their associates (other
than any member of the Group) to directly or indirectly, engage in any
business which competes or is like to compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group’s business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC
or any other places where the Group carries on business (“Restricted
Business”).

For details regarding deed of no competition, see “Deed of
Non-competition” in the section of “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders and Future Land Group”in the Prospectus.

Pursuant to the information and confirmation provided or given by the
controlling Shareholders, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the performance of the deed of non-competition during the
Reporting Period and confirmed that the controlling Shareholders have
complied with the deed of non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or
their associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business
which competes or may compete with, directly or indirectly, the Group’s
business.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into four continuing connected transaction
agreements in 2018.

1. Office lease agreement dated 4 May 2018 (disclosed in the
Prospectus)
o Counterparties: Tibet Xinchengyue and Shanghai Future
Land Chuangyu Real Estate Company Limited (“Shanghai
Chuangyu”);
o Connected relationship: Shanghai Chuangyu is a

subsidiary of another listed company over which the
controlling shareholders of the Group have control;

o Transaction purpose: office lease;

o Total transaction price and terms: as disclosed in the
Prospectus, the term of the office lease was three years
beginning from 1 January 2018 and the maximum
aggregate annual amounts payable by the Group in
respect of the office lease for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2020 are RMB1,685,466.80,
RMB1,685,466.80 and RMB1,685,466.80, respectively..

On 14 December 2018, Tibet Xinchengyue and Shanghai Jiamu
Investment Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Jiamu"”) entered to an office
lease agreement, pursuant to which the office lease agreement
signed with Shanghai Chuangyu was terminated and ceased to
have effect on 17 December 2018.
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Service framework agreement with Mr. Wang Zhenhua for
the year of 2018 dated 12 October 2018 (disclosed in the
Prospectus)

o Counterparties: Tibet Xinchengyu and Mr. Wang Zhenhua

o Connected relationship: Mr. Wang Zhenhua is a
controlling Shareholder as well as a non-executive
Director;

° Transaction purpose: signing an annual services

framework agreement in relation to the provision of
certain properties related services to companies (including
the Future Land Group) in which Mr. Wang Zhenhua
can exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of
the voting power at their general meetings and their
subsidiaries (“Mr. Wang's Associated Companies”),
and agreeing on the annual cap on such connected
transactions;

o Total transaction price and terms: providing property
services and value-added services for Mr. Wang's
Associated Companies, with the maximum aggregate
annual transaction amount of RMB354 million.
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Office lease agreement dated 14 December 2018 (refer to the
Company’s announcement on 14 December 2018 for details)

o Counterparties: Tibet Xinchengyue and Shanghai Jiamu;

o Connected Relationship: Shanghai Jiamu is a subsidiary
of another listed company over which the controlling
shareholders of the Group have control;

o Transaction purpose: office lease;

o Total transaction price and terms: as disclosed in the
Company’s announcement on 14 December 2018, the
term of the office lease was three years beginning from
17 December 2018 and the maximum aggregate annual
amounts payable by the Group in respect of the office
lease for the period between 17 December 2018 and 31
December 2018, the year ending 31 December 2019,
the year ending 31 December 2020, and the period
between 1 January 2021 and 16 December 2021 are
RMB158,014.58, RMB1,896,180, RMB1,896,180 and
RMB 1,896,180, respectively.

Service framework agreement with Mr. Wang Zhenhua
for the year of 2019 dated 12 December 2018 (“2019
Services Framework Agreement”) (refer to the Company’s
announcement on 12 December 2018 for details)

o Counterparties: Tibet Xinchengyu and Mr. Wang Zhenhua

o Connected relationship: Mr. Wang Zhenhua is a
controlling Shareholder as well as a non-executive
Director.

o Transaction purpose: signing an annual services

framework agreement in relation to the provision
of certain properties related services to Mr. Wang's
Associated Companies and agreeing on the annual cap
on such connected transactions;

o Total transaction price and terms: providing property
services and value-added services for Mr. Wang's
Associated Companies, with the maximum aggregate
annual transaction amount of RMB1,180 million;

o The transaction was approved by the independent
Shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 February 2019.
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As disclosed in the Company’s circular on 18 January 2019, in order
to ensure that the transactions contemplated under the 2019 Services
Framework Agreement will be on normal commercial terms, and
that the relevant fees will not fall below the prevailing market rate,
the guidance price of such services for similar type of development
projects issued by the local government (if applicable) and the fees
charged to the third party customers independent of the Group, the
Group will adopt the following measures:

(i) the finance department of the Group will be responsible for
regular monitoring of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Services Framework Agreement
to ensure that the annual cap will not be exceeded, in
particular, the Group will cease to enter into any new subsidiary
agreement if such will cause the total contractual income to
exceed the annual cap for that financial year;

(i) internal review will be conducted by the finance department of
the Group to assess, on a monthly basis, whether the provision
of property management services and value-added services has
been made in accordance with the terms of the 2019 Services
Framework Agreement and in accordance with the aforesaid

pricing policy;

(iii) prior to entering into any subsidiary agreements, the personnel
of various departments including the legal department, finance
department and operation department of the Company
will review and assess the specific terms and conditions of
the transactions to ensure their consistency with the 2019
Service Framework Agreement. During such internal review
process, the relevant personnel will examine, among others,
(a) information of the parties; (b) the term of the agreement;
(c) the type and scope of services to be provided by the Group
thereunder; and (d) whether the contract price is in line with
the aforesaid pricing policy, in order to ensure comment (if
any) from various departments of the Group will be properly
addressed;

(iv) the Company will engage its auditors to conduct an
annual review of the continuing connected transactions to
be conducted pursuant to the 2019 Services Framework
Agreement; and
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(v) the independent non-executive Directors will review the
continuing connected transactions to be conducted pursuant
to the 2019 Services Framework Agreement on an annual basis
and confirm in the annual report of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2019 whether such continuing connected
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better, and in accordance with the 2019 Services Framework
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that such transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has carried out a number of scheduled auditing
procedures for the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 and confirmed
that nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
the continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board,;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the
Prospectus and the relevant announcements of the Company,
where applicable, for the financial year ended 31 December
2018.
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The related-party transactions set out in note 35 to the financial
statements did not constitute the connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company defined in Section 14A of
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period, the
Company has not involved in any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions subject to disclosure pursuant to the provisions
regarding disclosure of connected transactions set out in Section 14A of
Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Reporting period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

MATERIAL LEGAL ACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any
material legal actions or arbitrations. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company was not involved in any unsettled material legal
actions or claims or in any such material legal actions or claims that
might threaten the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY CLAUSES

During the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report,
no former or current permitted indemnity clauses have benefited the
directors (whether entered into by the Company or others) or any
directors of their affiliated companies (if entered into by the Company).
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering director and
officer liabilities for its Directors and officers.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has no
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee (“Audit Committee”), together with
the management and external auditors, has audited the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The information regarding the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
corporate governance report on page 69 to 92 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float approved by the Stock Exchange and allowed by
Listing Rules during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018. PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited
the attached financial statements, which were prepared pursuant to
International Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Qi Xiaoming

Chairman

Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 8 March, 2019
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018 (“Relevant
Period”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “CG Code”) as its own code of corporate governance. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the
Relevant Period. The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure the compliance with the CG
Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee the particular affairs of the
Company, the Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), and the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) (collectively, “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees the responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance covering
any legal actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wan Zhenhua
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”.

During the Relevant Period, the Board had met the requirements
of Rules 3.10 (1) and 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules regarding the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
(among which, at least one independent non-executive Director shall
possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise).

The Company has also met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that a diversified board of Directors is beneficial
to the Company’s performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted
a board diversity policy, specifying that the diversification of the Board
members will be considered in multiple respects while determining
the composition of the Board, including (but not limited to) age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All appointments of the Board will be based on the
principle of “the best person for the job” and take into account of
objective conditions and the benefits of a diversified Board in selection
of candidates. The summary of the board diversity policy is as follows:
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Policy vision

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial
to the improvement of the Company’'s performance. The
differences in ideas, background, ways of thinking and working
methods may create values for our stakeholders, particularly for
our customers, Shareholders, employees and the communities
managed by us.

Measurable targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
categories. The Company undertakes to implement the policy of
equal opportunity for all in all respects, without discrimination
due to gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and service term or
other factors.

Supervision and report

The Nomination Committee will report the composition of the
Board in terms of diversification in the corporate governance
report of the annual report and supervise the implementation of
the policy.

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1.

The Board comprises nine Directors, two of which are female;
and

The members of the Board have different cultural and
educational background; some of them have obtained diversified
professional qualifications.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of Directors in the section of
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, no Directors
have any personal relations (including financial, business, family or other
material relations/correlations) with any other Directors or the chief
executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, and Nomination Committee.

In regards to the CG Code provision of requiring Directors to disclose
to the issuer the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organizations and other significant commitments, as well as their
identity and the time involved in the issuer, all the Directors have agreed
to disclose their commitments and any change to the Company in a
timely manner.
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Induction and continuous professional development

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company's operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide all Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to seek continuous professional
development and thus develop and update their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries, from time to time, update and provide
written training materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of
directors.

According to the information provided by the Directors, they have
accepted the training as follows during the year ended 31 December
2018:

BESEREREMLE
Nature of courses for
continuous professional

EEHR Name of Directors development
U/ NBR SR A Mr. Qi Xiaoming A, B
REBXRT Ms. Wu Qiangian A B
BMTBELE Mr. Lan Ziyong A, B
FIRESRE Mr. Wang Zhenhua A B
BN FERE Mr. Lv Xiaoping A B
B BBRSE A Mr. Lu Zhongming A B
PRI L Ms. Zhang Yan A B
KRIEFE Mr. Zhu Wei A, B
FPETR S E Mr. Xu Xinmin A, B
B et Notes:

A 2NEMATRENE - BRREKE B A: Attend training courses provided by law firms and related to the Company’s business.
B: HMEZEBENZENME  ZRRELCEER ES B: Read documents covering a wide range of topics, including corporate governance,

R - ETR AN R EAARRE R director responsibilities, Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Mr. Qi Xiaoming is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the overall management of the Group
and guides the Group's strategic development and business plans.
Considering the Group's current development status, the Board believes
that the structure of the same person holding the two positions of
chairman and chief executive officer can provide the Company with
a strong and consistent leadership and benefit the implementation
and execution of the Group's business strategies. Nonetheless, we will
review the structure from time to time based on the circumstances at
that time. The Board will continue to evaluate relevant situations and
separate the two roles of chairman and chief executive officer at a
proper time taking into account the Group’s overall status.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company with an initial term of three years effective from the
Listing Date. The respective executive Directors or the Company may
terminate the contract by serving not less than three months’ written
notice to the other party.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. In accordance
with their respective letters of appointment, each of the independent
non-executive Directors is entitled to receive a fixed amount of director’s
emoluments while the non-executive Directors shall not receive any
remuneration.

Except for those disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with any members of the Group, excluding the
contracts expiring within a year or may be terminated by the employers
without paying any compensation (legal compensations excluded).
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
(or the nearest number but no less than one-third of the Directors,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three (3)) are subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting and each
Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years at an
annual general meeting. Any Director newly appointed by the Board to
fill a causal vacancy of the Board or serve as a new Director shall submit
himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the next general meeting
after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
and offering proposals regarding the appointment, re-election and
succession plans of Directors to the Board.

Board meetings

The Company will adopt the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately one time each
quarter. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend
regular meetings and discuss the matters on the agenda.

For other Board and Board Committees meetings, reasonable notices
will be given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committees members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
any Directors or Board Committees members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretaries
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail including the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, and
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committees meeting are sent to the Directors for
consideration within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting was held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.
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FHEMNBEAERTE Board meetings by individual Directors is as follows:
CHEEEGRE
EHEESERY
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
EE Directors required
BB A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 3/3
REERL Ms. Wu Qiangian 3/3
MFBELEE Mr. Lan Ziyong 3/3
FiRESLAE Mr. Wang Zhenhua 2/3
B/ FRE Mr. Lv Xiaoping 3/3
PR RA S A Mr. Lu Zhongming 3/3
SRR Ms. Zhang Yan 3/3
KRIZFEE Mr. Zhu Wei 3/3
TR LA Mr. Xu Xinmin 3/3

ESETESXINEETA

ARABERMSETAVEREBGARESHE
TEFXZFNITRTH - KAEBESFHA
BEMRKR SEFCHR RERNEBHMEA
—BEETRETAIMBNRERE

EEENRE

EFGURRRMBEAFERBRERE - 8
BoEREE-YBREKER  EERENLAE
B AMERERERERRES  EXXS (K5
EAREESNRERE)  MBHE  ZEEF
REMETEMBEREEEHE EFTRETRSE
BESAUSKBEYEXER  BRHAQAA
o MENMESKDAEARASREREETE
SIREH

il

AEENEEER  THRREEXTSRER
Bai BFgciiaMEERENBE -
EREILEAEARZAARSESSHE -

Model code for securities transactions by directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
inquiries with all the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that
he/she has complied with the Model Code during the Relevant Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its right to decide all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have
recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to access and
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management.
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Corporate governance functions

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance functions

include:

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

(e)

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with laws and regulatory requirements;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manuals applicable to the employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company’'s policies and practices on
corporate governance and offer proposals and report relevant
matters to the Board;

to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance rules and disclosure in its corporate governance
reports; and

to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with its
whistle-blowing policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Lu Zhongming, our
non-executive Director, and Ms. Zhang Yan and Mr. Zhu Wei, our
independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Zhang Yan is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of
an issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising
non-executive directors only, and at least one of them is an independent
non-executive director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Our Directors confirm that we had complied with
such requirements during the year ended December 31, 2018.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

Relations with external auditor

(a) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor and be primarily
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

(b) to review with the Group’s management, external auditor and
internal auditor, where an internal audit function exists in the
Company, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and system
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational
and compliance controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors of the Company to be included in the
annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board;

(o) before audit commencement (i) to review and monitor the
external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and (ii) to discuss with the external auditor the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation. The
Audit Committee should discuss with the auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;
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(d)

(e)

)

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should report
to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

to seek from the external auditor, on an annual basis,
information about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including provision of non-audit services and
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to evaluate the cooperation received by the external auditor,
including their access to all requested records, data and
information; obtain the comments of management of the
Company regarding the responsiveness of the external auditor to
the Group's needs; inquire of the external auditor as to whether
there have been any disagreements with management of the
Company which if not satisfactorily resolved would result in the
issue of a qualified report on the Group’s financial statements;

Review of financial information

(9)

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual reports and accounts, half-year reports
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them.
In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

IR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED 79

2018 F#R 2018 Annual Report



JJ:% "'\‘Ai

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(v) EAREE

(vi) REEETEFEL R

BETABY BRSO TR
A FERRE ¢

(vii)

A Ed(EME  (VERLZEGKREE
HELENEREBERE MBEZZ

BEAZLBFRARANZEMFAE
MR R(NEREREGREEZERS
KR B AT R B R R A (E T B K B
TEEER YREEZEREMALR
AAERS Y BHEBBENAR - &
HRER BRI ERNEE

EENBHREE  BREERAIBERE

£S5

(i)

WA ARRNFHEE - AR (FRIEE

ARNEFEETRRZBENHES
ARG ENEERIE) BIARAHER
BN NBEIE R -

HEEEIRAREELAGEZER
B MREEEBCETEREREILEN
E’J% o Rl ARERBARRESF
&ﬁﬁWEﬁ#&%%EEE’]ﬁﬁ -BITER
REBERRH  URBEIREZHE
JIRIENBAHBREXRERRE

IHHEEFTENERIR HEHERARE
BERANEEEENEZREERNE
BEY AR D EEITHE

WMARNBIZRAANEEZINEE - BIRAH
RONEIZ BN TIES R % - th/AR
f%W*B%VIjJ EEARNTINE RAE
FBE . WEBBEE ML - AR
M EEFREL AR

(h)

(v) sand any qualifications;

(vi) compliance with accounting standards; and
(vii)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

in relation to paragraph (g) above: (i) members of the Audit
Committee should liaise with the Board and the senior
management and the Audit Committee must meet, at least twice
a year, with the Company’s auditor; and (ii) the Audit Committee
should consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and accounts and should
give due consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or auditor;

Oversight of financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems

0]

)

(k)

()

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or by the Board
itself, to review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems;

to discuss with the risk management and internal control
systems with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditor, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has the
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;
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(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(9)

(r)

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to discuss with the external auditor any recommendations arising
from the audit (if necessary in the absence of management of
the Company); and to review the external auditor’s management
letter, any material queries raised by the auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in the code provision C.3.3
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

Others

(s)

®

(u)

v)

(w)

to review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure compliance with terms of approval by Shareholders;

to review the draft representation letter prior to approval by the
Board;

to recommend to the Board any appropriate extensions to, or
changes, in the duties of the Audit Committee;

to review the findings of internal investigations and
management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations;

to apprise the Board of significant developments in the course of
performing the above duties;
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to consider such other matters as the Board may from time to
time determine; and

to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for employees
and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in
confidence, with the Committee about possible improprieties in
any matter related to the Company.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As the Company was listed on 6 November 2018, the Audit Committee
did not convene any meetings during the Relevant Period.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Xu Xinmin and
Ms. Zhang Yan, our independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Lv
Xiaoping, our non-executive Director. Mr. Xu Xinmin is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(a)

(b)

(o]

(d)

review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
to determine their eligibility;

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;
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)

(9)

(h)

)

(k)

)

develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship,
including but not limited to evaluating the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board, and in the light of
this evaluation prepare a description of the role and capabilities
required for a particular appointment;

develop policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set
for implementing the policy and should disclose the policy or
a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report
annually;

keep under review the leadership needs of the organisation,
both executive and non-executive, with a view to ensuring the
continued ability of the organisation to compete effectively in
the marketplace;

keep up to date and fully informed about strategic issues and
commercial changes affecting the Company and the market in
which it operates;

ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out
clearly the expectations of them in terms of time commitment,
committee service and involvement outside Board meetings;

review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval,

do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Company’s constitution or imposed by legislation.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidates or incumbents
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and ability to commit
time and efforts to carry out duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations will then be submitted to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As the Company was listed on 6 November 2018, the Audit Committee
did not convene any meetings during the Relevant Period.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhu Wei and
Mr. Xu Xinmin, our independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Qi
Xiaoming, our executive Director. Mr. Zhu Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(c) either (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. This should include benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(9) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;
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(h)
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to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any service
contracts of Directors that require shareholders’ approval in
accordance with the Listing Rules;

to determine the criteria for assessing employee performance,
which should reflect the Company's business objective and
targets;

to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As the Company was listed on 6 November 2018, the Remuneration
Committee did not convene any meetings during the Relevant Period.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the details of the remuneration
of the Board members and the Company’s senior management set out
on page 45 to 49 are as follows:

FsE

Remuneration range

A

Number of person

0-1,500,000
1,500,000-3,000,000

"
1
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DIRECTORS’
REPORTING
STATEMENTS

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, which give a true
and fair view of the status of the Company and the Group and of the
results and cash flow of the Group.

The management has provided the Board with such explanations and
information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are submitted
to the Board for approval. The Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going-concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page F-93 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, the Audit Committee, the senior management and the
internal audit department are the four levels of structure of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining adequate risk management and internal control systems
to (i) safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and avoid inappropriate use or disposal; (ii) comply with
relevant laws, rules or regulations; and (iii) keep reliable financial and
accounting records in accordance with relevant reviewing standards
and regulatory reporting requirements and review the effectiveness of
such systems on an annual basis. Risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to be responsible for
the oversight of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a yearly
basis. Such review covers all important aspects of supervision, including
financial, operational and compliance monitoring. As disclosed in the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee
is responsible for monitoring the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring systems. The Audit Committee oversees the
risk management process and reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting the following
procedures:

o Review the Company’s risk management process and policy;

° Review with senior management at least annually reports
demonstrating the compliance with the risk management policy;

o Discuss with senior management at least annually the Company’s
major risk exposures and the steps the senior management has
taken or should take to assess and mitigate such exposures; and

° Review the ongoing effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management practices.

The senior management is responsible for administering the Company’s
risk management process and is accountable for ensuring that the
Company’s business operations are conducted in compliance with our
risk management policy, taking into consideration the changes in the
environment and the Company’s risk tolerance. Responsibilities of the
Company’s senior management include:

° Design and implement a Company-wide risk management policy;

o Review and update the risk management policy on a timely basis,
ensuring it remains relevant and adequate, taking into account
changes in the environment, industry and the Company’s
operations and risk profile and, where necessary, recommend
changes to the risk management policy for the Audit Committee
to review;
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o Ensure that the Company’s risk management process is aligned
and integrated with the annual strategic and business planning
process and vice versa;

o Design and establish a risk management methodology which
provides the appropriate tools to identify, evaluate, and manage
business exposures;

° Establish a Company-wide risk reporting process to ensure that
the Company’s senior management, the Audit Committee and
the Board are apprised of all material risk issues and business
exposures;

° Ensure that necessary management controls and oversight
processes are in place to monitor compliance with the risk
management policy and the risk management methodology;

° Approve and monitor key risk positions and exposure trends, risk
management strategies and risk management priorities;

° Review and discuss the Company's overall risk profile, key and
emerging risks and risk management activities through periodic
risk discussions among senior management; and

o Review the key business strategies and initiatives to assess their
impact on the Company’s overall risk position.

Risk management process

In addition to the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the Company
has developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks and to resolve material internal control defects
(if any). The senior management, through the Company’s internal
audit department, is responsible for the annual risk reporting process.
Members of the internal audit department meet with various members
of the senior management to review and assess risks and discuss
solutions to address material internal control defects (if any), including
any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are compiled, ratings are
assigned and mitigation plans are documented. The risk assessment is
reviewed by certain members of senior management and presented to
the Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

88

IR =R AR 2D T XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED

20184 %R 2018 Annual Report



TEERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXeLRAEEERBOARAMBERER
B BNBRERE - (hEBRELEMBE - Riii)
[EF FT BE 3% A B R R B AT AR L o

ARRWEAREENRANBIEFREN T ERSH
B(VEEEMMM BEARARBRERER
MNIEHENEE  BITRERL UHTRELE
U MPANEREABTERRECHRANRR
(N HFEAEEXBNELHNERNRR - &
EERARCRBUEENEE  LRGitERE
BRABEHNOERE  ABEZBFIREE
EMEZZ BGRIVBINESR

RBEHEAR > ARrEERETEEERT
AETHEREERAMEZEE - EFER
e\ e 3R e ) BB BR HE R A F S d v BRI R -
ARBGE - WEBE X RB#5 B REBAE T E
BR - BTEENKERBRRE -

ARHE

HEMMREFERDERIBRO R ZIENTME
BZIINMEREMN  ESSTHETRETE
WETEBEERRRE EMARAIZE13.096 %
F13. 101U RBH KT GRIIEXVAT AR E
BREXBABNEE  BEREFTHABEEATER
THRRELEE - YITESREFE R RWE IR
BEMAESETESSEREARATHHENE
FRER,/ SBEK -

A ER AR P

REENABBEZBFANERRNRRNAE
ATHDEEERAE AHMERSFINEE
BERBRNARB MR R ARREEE - &
BARRNAAED B R FRARETERR
EEZ °

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results,
(i) the probability that the risk will occur, and (iii) the velocity or speed
at which the risk could occur.

The main features of the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) exclusive departments are designated to be
responsible for the implementation of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and the heads of the major operational
units or departments are responsible for managing and mitigating the
risks identified; (ii) the management ensures that appropriate measures
have been taken against material risks that affect the Group’s business
and operations; and (iii) the internal audit department provides the
management and Audit Committee with independent confirmation
regarding the effectiveness of risk management and internal control.

During the Relevant Period, the Company has ensured that the risk
management and internal control provisions under the CG Code have
been complied with. The Board, during its annual review on the risk
management and internal control systems, has confirmed the adequacy
of the resources and staff qualifications and experiences of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Inside information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
events that may impact the price of the shares or their trading volume
and decides whether the relevant information is considered as inside
information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors
and the joint company secretaries also have responsibility for approving
certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the Company
under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

Internal audit department

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major responsibilities of
the internal audit department are reviewing the financial conditions and
internal control of the Company, and conducting comprehensive audits
of all branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control systems to be effective and
adequate during the Relevant Period.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor to the Company during the Relevant Period is
as follows:

SHE(AR¥ER)
R @R Service category Amount (RMB)
Bz Audit services 2,110,000
EEZRT Non-audit services 90,000
st Total 2,200,000
BEARWE JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
TRERE ([REE]) BEARRIMERE A GW Mr. You Jianfeng (“Mr. You”) is the Company’s joint company secretary,
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responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
has also engaged Ms. Lam Yuk Ling (“Ms. Lam”), manager of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial services provider), as its joint
company secretary to assist Mr. You to fulfill his duties as company
secretary of the Company. Her primary contact person at the Company
is Mr. You.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. You and Ms. Lam have undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training, respectively, in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of
the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make
informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity for
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The chairman
of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees will attend
the annual general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions. The
auditor of the Company will also attend the annual general meeting
to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.xinchengyue.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue (including election of individual
Directors) at general meetings.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each Shareholders’ meeting.
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Convening of extraordinary general meetings and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’'s general meetings according to Articles of Association. Any
Shareholder or Shareholders with the right to vote on the Company’s
general meetings and a paid-up capital of no less than one-tenth of the
total on the date of submitting a request shall have the right to call an
extraordinary general meetings at any time with such a written request
to the Board or any Company’s joint company secretaries to address any
matters stated in such request. Such meetings shall be held within two
months upon submission of such requests. If no such meetings are held
by the Board within 21 days upon submission, the persons submitting
such requests may convene a meeting according to normal procedures
and all expenses reasonably incurred to the persons submitting such
requests due to the Board’s failure to convene such a general meeting
shall be compensated by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, relevant
procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Inquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their inquiries about the
Company may contact the Board Office at the Company’s headquarters
via e-mail at xcy.ir@xinchengyue.com.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 20 October 2018, the Company adopted the amended and revised
the Memorandum and Articles of Association, effective on the Listing
Date. There was no change in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the Relevant Period.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Xinchengyue Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
F-101 to F-198, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

AR KA T 7 BT, BB PR KT K 22 #
Hif ¢ +852 2289 8888, fHE : +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is recoverability of trade
receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

B 5 EUGRIAR) AT YR Bl 1

Recoverability of trade receivables

FLBGE M BHREN T4 (ERGEHEET RAE) &MFE22
(B S REIEIE) -

Refer to note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and note 22 (Trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements.

2018F12A31H - BESENEZRWTIAREFER
ARB1208 8T (BREEFEARK166B 8T REREBA
R¥378ET)

As at 31 December 2018, the net carrying amount of trade
receivable of the Group is RMB129 million, including gross
amount of RMB166 million and allowance for impairment
of RMB37 million.

REHEE S RUGRIEN AT EE - EEERAEBMR
HREAFESRA A TN T E R AR ERRFERE
KIANE Z WAV R T LARER °

For assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the trade receivables.

BMNERNAEERREXSEER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

. HPHERBORET TRENMG LY SE5E
Z 5 &R IE 6 BT W E 1 Rk 60 BE S5 I E 1T TR
&

o We obtained an understanding and evaluated
management’s design and tested the key controls
over the Group's assessment of the recoverability of

trade receivables;

. BMMEETRARFTESH RRERGNELENX
BOLUMELRE  BREEHEEHABNFEERR
2R

o We agreed the historical data, including sales and
bad debts related to the sales information, on a
sample basis, used in the calculation of historical
default rate percentage to the accounting and
operation system;

. BARBERMEETPAETENTRIARZEIN LR
BORET L E IR B E RO M AT 1 E = AR

o We assessed management’s assessment of current
conditions and forward looking factors based on
our understanding of the client’s industry and with
reference to external data sources;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

EREERBEBANNTEAAERELENXENL - BF
HBRANEESEENHEEEER - BRFERELARE
N ERJE e BUBETTINE - W ETT 38 B DA R B E AT AR 5L 0 AT HE
MEZE -

The Group calculated the historical default rate percentage
based on the payment profile of debtors, including sales
and bad debts related to the sales in the observed period.
The expected lifetime loss is estimated based on internal
historical data with adjustment to reflect current conditions
and forward looking factors.

B E S RUGRIEN AT B AR ERZEE - THHR
HEEARERENEENEERERIELNERNS G
KA o

We consider recoverability of trade receivables a key
audit matter because the amount is significant and there
are significant management’s estimates and judgements
involved in the assessment of expected credit losses.

KN ERNAEERRERSE (B)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. HMEREEREREMBAXHEARAEESE
WH IR ERENEZ2018F 12 A31HE 5 EWKIE
B BR R E A THIBORI ¢

o We tested the aging profile of trade receivables as
of 31 December 2018 used in the calculation of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables, on
a sample basis, to sales invoices and other relevant
documents;

o BARFRRE T E S RYFIERE EEGHF LR
M

o We checked mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of allowance for impairment of trade
receivables as at year end;

. BMEHE HRIFIENBEEMBRETHER
& WS WRE R KRR B X -

o We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation.

ERMATORR  RMER  BEENLE S EUIANA]
Yo Bl 14 34 R {8 AR 0 i e S HIT 1S 21 TS B 08 2 S FF ©
Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s estimates and judgements used in the
assessment of recoverability of trade receivables were
supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kam Chin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

BZE2018%F HE2017F
12H31H 12A318
LtFEE IFFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
B5E ARBTT AR®ET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 6 1,149,949 866,370
THE RARTE A A Cost of sales and services 6,7 (810,973) (624,124)
ER Gross profit 338,976 242,246
HERZIHER Selling and marketing expenses 7 (6,943) (8,092)
THRER Administrative expenses 7 (144,405) (118,633)
S RVE ERREEEERE Net impairment losses on financial assets 3.1.2 (12,336) (10,682)
HAb A Other income 9 11,145 2,556
HiEA Other expenses 10 (436) (1,183)
Hib ez (E18) F58 Other gains/(losses) — net 1M 18,409 (8)
KeERHE Operating profit 204,410 106,204
U Finance income 12 6,156 6,811
R P18 B B 7 8 Profit before income tax 210,566 113,015
PRCT k- Income tax expense 14 (47,364) (21,273)
FREE Profit for the year 163,202 91,742
BTN AL EEFIE : Profit is attributable to:
—RAFEAA — Owners of the Company 150,397 73,406
— FEEAR R - Non-controlling interests 12,805 18,336
163,202 91,742
FREAZAKA Total comprehensive income for the year 163,202 91,742
MTALTEMGEZEEA : Total comprehensive income
is attributable to:
— RAREHEA A — Owners of the Company 150,397 73,406
— FEIEIR - Non-controlling interests 12,805 18,336
163,202 91,742
BREAN (UAR¥TERTR) Earnings per share(expressed in RMB)
— GRREAR R &R - Basic and diluted earnings per share 15 0.24 0.12

ElAR & 2T WA TR FE S Y P R — FBOAE o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2018412 H31H As at 31 December 2018

20184 20174
2018 2017
B sE AR®T ARBET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BMEREE Property, plant and equipment 16 8,323 15,643
B EE Intangible assets 17 12,031 10,797
FRIEFTISTREE Deferred income tax assets 30 24,220 17,309
e Deposits 23 2,812 2,256
BRARBER AR Financial assets at fair value through
2HWANSREE other comprehensive income 19 1,660 1,660
FETFIE Prepayments 20 5,393 6,078
FRBEEHATE Total non-current assets 54,439 53,743
REBEE Current assets
ey Inventories 21 8,597 3,764
B 5kl EoE Trade receivables 22 128,873 76,918
FERFIE - IRe R EMEWFIE  Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 23 82,462 45,692
RekIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,277,821 633,456
REEEHT Total current assets 1,497,753 759,830
BEALE Total assets 1,552,192 813,573
R Equity
KATHEEABEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
& A< Share capital 25 56,639 -
e Reserves 26 604,095 61,003
REB&EF Retained earnings 184,250 92,853
844,984 153,856
FEER RS Non-controlling interests 22,088 35,188
R Total equity 867,072 189,044

F-102
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2018412 H31H As at 31 December 2018

20184 20174
2018 2017
B sE AR®T ARBET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
aE LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
B Provisions 27 1,050 947
EEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 30 4,646 -
EFBEEAE Total non-current liabilities 5,696 947
REBEE Current liabilities
R B R Loans from related parties 28 - 65,900
AHEaE Contract liabilities 6 248,764 180,714
FERTIRE Dividend payable - 19,000
B LEMENFIE Trade and other payables 29 407,559 345,327
BNERFTS i B & Current income tax liabilities 23,101 12,641
REBEEEE Total current liabilities 679,424 623,582
EEHAE Total liabilities 685,120 624,529
ERREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 1,552,192 813,573
MBEESE Net current assets 818,329 136,248
s A B RS AR R FE B BE BB 5 — OFBARE o The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

FEF-101EF-198E MBI 15K M2019F3 A8H
KEESHAETRUTEERAEE

RNl
Qi Xiaoming
Director

EF

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

WrE

Lan Ziyong
Director

EF

The financial statements on pages F-101 to F-198 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 8 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

RRRERNER
Attributable to owners of the Company

A OLERE EtEE  RERN AFf FERIMES  EDE8

Non-
Share  Statutory Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  Reserves  Reserves  earnings Total interests Equity
M ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR AREBTL AREFT ARBTI
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
B2017F1 B 1AM Ee Balance at 1 January 2017 - - 54,427 26,023 80,450 35852 116,302
2EKRA Comprehensive income
FRHE Profit for the year - - - 73,406 73,406 18,336 91,742
BREANERBEN Transactions with owners in
SRETNRS their capacity as owners
EEREEN Appropriation of statutory reserves - 6,576 - (6,576) - - -
R R R Dividends declared by Tibet
BRARERNRE Xinchengyue Property
Management Co., Ltd. 31 - - - - - (19,000)  (19,000)
R20175128310M4%  Balance at 31 December 2017 - 6,576 54427 92,853 153,856 35,188 189,044
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE20185F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

KAAHEEAER
Attributable to owners of the Company
ke EERE  EtRE  REEA it FERMES EREE
Non-
Share Statutory Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  Reserves Reserves  earnings Total interests Equity
M AR®Tn ARTR AR%Tr ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
M2018F1 B 1AM & Balance at 1 January 2018 - 6,576 54,421 92,853 153,856 35,188 189,044
2EKRA Comprehensive income
FRFHE Profit for the year - - - 150,397 150,397 12,805 163,202
BREFANEFEED Transactions with owners in
SRETNRS their capacity as owners
THEHERAAEMRAGT  Dividends declared by Xincheng
ERARE Fuyue Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. 31 - - - (59,000)  (59,000) - (59,000)
TRERERZAEBLE  Capital contribution from the
ERERELE then shareholder of Xincheng
Fuyue Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. 26(b) - - 127,000 - 127,000 - 127,000
FERRRLE Contribution from
non-controlling shareholder 26(c) - - 2,07 - 2,0M 2,725 4,796
ERAEBALE Capital contribution from the
owners of the Company 26(d) - - 226,997 - 226,997 - 226,997
BEEFTAHEDERERR  Buy-back of minority interests
ARATNDEER of Tibet Xinchengyue Property
Management Co., Ltd. 26(e) - - (53,302) - (53,302) (28,630) (81,932
KB ERERRN Acquisition of Xincheng
BRAT Fuyue Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. 26(f) - - (241,455) - (241,455) - (241,455)
BB Capitalisation issue 25(d) 41,445 - (41,445) = - - -
REERARBERTEAER  Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to
AT RER e initial public offering and exercise ~ 25(e),
of over allotment option 25(f) 15,194 - 523,226 - 538420 - 538420
M2018F12 31 A &S Balance at 31 December 2018 56,639 6,576 597,519 184,860 844,984 22,088 867,072

bR & W R B B R B SLRE MY P R — GFBIFE o

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read
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MERETREBR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE20184%12 4318 [L4Z For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZE2018%F HE20175F
12B31HLFE 12A31HILEE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
e ARETR ARBETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHHBERSRE Cash flows from operating activities
KRR & Cash generated from operations 32(a) 231,194 230,903
2SR Income tax paid (39,168) (32,650)
RETFHEENRSTFHE Net cash generated from operating
activities 192,026 198,253
RETBAMEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
HEME - BEMKREFTSHIE  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment 7,996 7
WEFRARZANRE Cash payment for acquisition of subsidiaries
(OBR MBS 20 (net of payment for acquisition) - (300)
BEWE  BERREAR Payments for acquisition of property, plant
FEREN TR FR and equipment and non-current prepayment 16 (2,361) (3,753)
HBEETEE Payments for acquisition of intangible assets 17 (1,673) (3,313)
BEREOABERA Payments for acquisition of financial assets
Hih2EmBRARNSRHEE at fair value through other comprehensive
income - (360)
REZBES,(FHA) KW Net cash generated from/(used in)
HE&FH investing activities 3,962 (7,719)
RMEZTHMAERERE Cash flows from financing activities
ERFHBAR Capital contribution from the owners and
JEFERR R R B non-controlling interests 26 358,793 -
BRI ER Repayment of loans to related parties (65,900) -
{5 B B 78 4 T Ik AR W) 3 PR TS Payment for consideration of buy-back of
BRHERAB D BERNNKE minority interests of Tibet Xinchengyue
Property Management Co., Ltd. 26(e) (81,932) -
ST I R IR E B Payment for consideration of acquisition of
BRATMNARE Xincheng Fuyue Management Consulting
Co., Ltd. 26(f) (241,455) -
B FIE AR E A RS Dividends paid to previous shareholder of
Xincheng Fuyue 31 (59,000) -
2 F AR IR AR AL B Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
in subsidiaries 31 (19,000) -
BTE BRI B RIEEE Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares-net 25(e),
25(f) 538,420 -
BRETHELNRSEE Net cash generated from financing activities 429,926 -
REeRBLESEMENFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 625,914 190,534

IR =R B R Q7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MERETREBR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZE2018%F HE20175F
12A31ALFE 12A31HIEFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR¥T R ARBETT
RMB‘000 RMB’'000
R REEINES R Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
RWEEEY financial year 633,456 442,922
EREGEEIRS K Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and
HeZEEMNFE cash equivalents 18,451 _
REERNBEESRBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,277,821 633,456

EltaR & IR G R B A FE SLRE FY P AT — BFBOAE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in

MR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

1.1

—REH

—REH

W ERAER A (TARRA]D B
201851 A 16 R R BRI = A BIE (5§22
B 1961FF3IFED - KA RIERT)
EREHEIMKNIAEREARA
&) o AN AR R S B i B Maples
Corporate Services Limited, PO Box

309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104 Cayman Islands °

RARAR—RREERDR  BEFR
AlEERFEARKME ([HE]) 24
MEEBRRE LAEHEEERS - &REE
%A B &Infinity Fortune Development
Limited o A& B & ALIERAR B E IR
R4 ([E5R4E] 3 [ HBRERRER])

REBARABRODEIAREEBARS
AR AR (B R ET - A%
EEgTEA ((E4A]) Bt AQF
AR EEET FRBHZER AR -

RATRMER2018F 11 A6HERE
HEaXSARATE ([BAM]) TR E

-

m o

BRRBEERN  GAVBHRRUARE
T (TARETT] 25 -

1.1

GENERAL INFORMATION
General information

Xinchengyue Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 January 2018 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Cap.22, law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The ultimate controlling
company is Infinity Fortune Development Limited. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group is Mr. Wang Zhenhua (“Mr.
Wang" or the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

To prepare for the initial listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Group has undertaken a reorganization
(the “Reorganization”) pursuant to which the Company became
the holdings company of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.

The Company’s share were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “stock exchange”) on 6
November 2018.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.1

EXREGTHBREE

AU IR R AL TR M B MRE T
RN TBEHABRBE - BRAER

HIN REBERRBRNNFE—ERE
A -
RRE

ARAMELMBERDRET LG
B A g R EEMBREEL ([FE
MBwEEA]) BR - BELHBEERTS
RIBELRAZRE  IREGRAA
EBEFAEBEZERANSREEED
CHIE

RETEBEM B REERNE LM
ENFEERE THRRE G RE
EXEREEERAANEENGFHES
TR VR HIET - 5 RS2 E R HI ET 3
HEEMENED - SARRBERER R
HELTBERTEERN B RME
A -

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The Historical Financial Information of the Company has been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA. The Historical
Financial Information has been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

The preparation of Historical Financial Information in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
Historical Financial Information are disclosed in note 4.
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2 EARETBERE @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

21 REEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

211 B BRRBEESENEH 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
REFEIRIZEA2015F1A1BRIERER The Group had elected to early adopt the standards,
ME2018F 1 A1BREBMER] - & amendments and interpretations which became effective from
AIkRE REAAVBREENE 1 January 2018 including HKFRS9 — Financial instruments
KR TARBAYBREERES and HKFRS 15 — Revenue from contract contracts with
F—BPEHNNRE - Bt - BAEAX customers from 1 January 2015 and hence such standards and
BER2017F 20185 ER/ERA ° interpretations were consistently applied in year 2017 and 2018.
UTERRZERE AMER2019F1 The following standards and interpretations had been issued but
A1 B 2z A5 b6 6 B 7 6 S R R 9% A were not mandatory for the financial year beginning before 1
R B R RN o January 2019 and have not been early adopted.

RUT B 2%
FHRNFEHBENR
Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
BBV BIRE LRSS 1657 HE 201941 A1H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
B8 (MBmEREZES) FSTRER IR &) T 1t 20194F1 A1H
2357
HKFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment 1 January 2019
BB B ELERIF IR BEEEBMEZRAENRET 20191 AH
(EFT7)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayments features with negative 1 January 2019
compensation
EEGTEAFE285 (BR]AR) REEARREECECRIER 20191 AR
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in associates 1 January 2019
and joint ventures
BEMBREEN 2 FELE BEMBEMSERN2015FE2017FBH 2 201951 A1H
FEUE
Annual improvements Annual improvements to HKFRS 1 January 2019
to HKFRSs standards 2015-2017 cycle
EEGETEAE 195 (BATAR)  FHEHERT ~ BIREAEE 201941 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement 1 January 2019
BEMBIRELRENTHR RERaK 20221 A1H
HKFRS 17 Insurance contract 1 January 2022
BBV B ELRZE 109 & REEHEARBENTNAEREZHLN RE
ARG ERIFE285% BEHESLE
CCHEN),
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
and HKAS 28 an investor and its associates or
joint ventures
F-110 #HIRZEKRAEMRD T XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE20185F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.1
2.1.1

BEARETHERBE )

mEERE (8)
B BRREESHENEE ()
AEB AR TR REEFTE

- 2EREAINTZE HpETE
A  REREFTEASENKEEHRA -

REEFHEROVSHE - ZFENE
MILTBHT & B A KB MM BRI MR
MELBERFE - T XEHIIERI

=

2EMtE

BB REERE165E R20165F1
A - B EHARALEERER
NERLTHERE  RAAKERE
HEEREMNE D EWME o BRIEZH
R BE (RZHAEHEENFERE) B
NSNS E EWER - E—flsha
BRBMEEERE -

= a5

E

AEBAETEENEBEA EBA
DEARICENE  ZENBETEFE
AEEKERENGHRESFEZ - B
20184128318 » A £ B 7 Al B84 &
EHEAERARE989,0005T (3
WM FE33FTEL) - Rz S EAES -
4 N R #89,0007T Wy A FE B HATH &
BH o & ARBS59,0007T 8 & 4E E K
BEMEEH MEHBRESENRE
AWRARANERAER - RASETER
PR019F1ATERNFERAREEY
AR #6,369,0007C B # N E & E M
5 AE A’ AREE6432,0000T (&
FA2018% 12 A31B R M TE N A
LEAEERBEAZR) RELCHESE
EARMI000T - AR BHHBES
ERDEE  BEEFEBRIOAR
#54,0007C © RRBEEFEH DA
R #2,243,0007C - AE BB ALK
AR A - 2019F BRBIE AR AR A 4
AR#®73,000T - HREEHHHES
BEOERCEHEAREZTDANMSRESR
2 RKEBESREBEMEN Mg
HemnE 8 ARK2,308,0007T °

2.1
2.1.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’'d)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards, interpretation and
amendments, certain of which are relevant to the Group’s
operations. According to the preliminary assessment made by the
Directors, no significant impact on the financial performance and
position of the Group is expected when they become effective
except those set out below:

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the balance sheet by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

Impact

The Group is the lessee of certain buildings which are currently
classified as operating lease. The standard will affect primarily
the accounting for the Group’s operating leases. As at 31
December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB6,989,000, as set out in note 33.
Among the lease commitments, approximately RMB89,000 of
the commitments related to short-term leases and RMB59,000
of the commitments related to low value leases which will
both be recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in the
statement of comprehensive income. For the remaining lease
commitments the Group expects to recognise right-of-use assets
of approximately RMB6,369,000 on 1 January 2019, lease
liabilities of RMB6,432,000 (after adjustments for prepayments
and accrued lease payments recognised as at 31 December
2018) and deferred tax assets of RMB9,000. Net assets will be
approximately RMB54,000 lower, and net current assets will be
RMB2,243,000 lower due to the presentation of a portion of the
liability as a current liability. The Group expects that net profit
after tax will decrease by approximately RMB73,000 for 2019
as a result of adopting the new rules. Operating cash flows will
increase and financing cash flows decrease by approximately
RMB2,308,000 as repayment of the principal portion of the lease
liabilities will be classified as cash flows from financing activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.1
2.1.1

EASHHEHME @)

mBEE (F)
B ERRRRESENED (&)

FE ()

AEEER/REEARERNEDLTE
R A AEERA TS YU B HRRE
EEMEATE - AN S{/ELET
HA K -

AEBRIERAY B H

AEBEBEEFFEMBE2019F1 A18
FBFEFRRZ R - AEEBRERELIBE
ik MBTEENEXREARFED
LLESHE - FHEEEBRNEMEZRA
EaEMEENE (EEMBMES
HERZHARE) -

L Eo R R AE R M SR HA RS R AR B sk A
BRERPAYEBLARKRNONR ST
HEERFEHLEL -

2.1
2.1.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd)
Impact (Cont'd)

The Group’s activities as a lessor are not material and hence the
Group does not expect any significant impact on the financial
statements. However, some additional disclosures will be
required.

Date of adoption by Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption
date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets
will be measured at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that
would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in
the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

F-112

IR IER AR 23 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018F F %R 2018 Annual Report



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.2
2.2.1

BEARETHERBE )

TRAFH
a6t

FRAEEASESEEEEGIRNME
R (EREBEER) HAKERAE
SHEBRAGUELHRAERRKESE
BT RN ARER BN EE
RYEZSOR  AAKEHERER
HEEEGE  TARBEHEEBRER
SEZBRAHAR  BERERLZ
AEFLEAHARK -

HEZEHT BB E v

ESL s B R BIEE A K FEFIEA G
MEBKEBNMBHRRIER - BOH
EEZEERAEB G RBIESITES
Z BREMELR o

REETmAE  AHERBAEBEE
FENRARAEER - YERLRE
bR A TS R B R UE T R W 7
AEBEE BERIRAEEAAE
EH) R 8 H AR By B (AR 1 75 4
SR ERR) BREIMEE -

2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Subsidiaries
Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

The Historical Financial Information incorporates the financial
statement items of the entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
consolidated from the date when the entities or businesses first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognized in consideration for
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
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HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.2
2.2.1

BEARETHERBE )
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2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Consolidation (Cont'd)
Business combinations under common control (Cont'd)

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income include
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted by those entities.
All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between combining entities or businesses are
eliminated.

Business combinations not under common control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations not under common control. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.2
2.2.1

BEARETHERBE )

~R (&)
Bt (&)
#

T B FFBE O (&)

%
&
FF

WRBEHOEBET - WETREMR
R W 7 A g s O Wi BB B HARR (B
RYBAHNAARBEENE  ZE
et B EAMTAIRA KB BER B R E
AEBEE RN TAMAAREBRKE B
MAREEER - KRAREEXAEDN
SRRERABENREZHRETE
SRERIEIRNIRSIER - DERE
BORARETNTEHAE  HRES
ERREEAR -

FREERE  WRB T EEREESS
B R ST PR R AR T IR A R s U
BRI D A EER AT RE F R 8 E
FENAABENZEIRSEE - 5t
REBEMS  MAEREKE CER
FEREREREAEREAFEDR
FERFRBFAREESENAAE
B ZREERBARARER -

KANARERS - EBREEATH
ZHORERMASTHE - BRI D
RHECHAGEORERE  BAAS
RERNTHE - FRNLBLBR Y
BT L ARRERHEE -

2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Consolidation (Cont'd)

Business combinations not under common control
(Cont'd)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance
with HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the Group’s accounting policies.
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HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.2
2.2.1

2.2.2
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2.2
2.2.1

2.2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transaction with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transaction — that is,
as transactions with the owner of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners, the difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.3

2.4
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2.3

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"),
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive and non-executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”).
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

The consolidated

Transactions and balances

(b)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized within “Other losses — net” in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

MR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
20184 # 2018 Annual Report

F-117



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2 EASTHERE @ 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)
25 V¥ BERDE 2.5 Property, plant and equipment
Y R NSRS IRE S R AR T E S Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
B BYMABENESEEREERE depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
IHEE Y - attributable to the acquisition of the items.
1% 485 BN (2 4F BR 208 B AR RS Y ok SR S8 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
ﬂ SRATEL @ m AN =B R 42 7] 2= Hh 5t recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
BYHEAERANBRLT  TeHAR probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
ENEEESERAEBEYNEE (1E will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
®) o ABES BB IEEENTE S HE reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
EEREHRIEEDR o Fih Mg RIF as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
BN EA MRS RS AES o repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
WEDREGEEAERES () A Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
BEGEBERAD BE RSB ES allocate their cost to their residual values, over their estimated
=i useful lives as follows:
{HEta GEER Estimated Estimated net
FAEH tHEE useful lives residual value
g 304F 4% Buildings 30 years 4%
B 104 4% Transportation equipment 10 years 4%
B 54 4% Electronic equipment 5 years 4%
Hihise 54 4% Other machines 5 years 4%
NEREHFK  BEEENTILEEM The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
AMEAEE - WEREEHHEE - adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
NEEENEAESREGESTkE S An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
% A EREEENEEIEMRERET recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
e its estimated recoverable amount.
EEWAMER BB EFEZIESR Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
EHEAEET TREA2EBRAERN proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized within ‘Other
[HAinEE — 55 | B2 o losses — net’ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

Licences

Separately acquired licences are shown at historical
cost. Licenses acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have
a finite useful life (10 years) and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses.

Computer Software

Acquired software licences are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives (5 to 10 years).
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2 BEASFTHERBE 5 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
27 ¥FeRMEERE 2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets
EEGAEEE EAGFETREN Goodwill is not subject to amortization and are tested annually
o R AR EGRIERE WA for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
NEMRE L IREE - A E R HEITR circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
e HhBEEERBEEEHRIBERE assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
PR ELARTE B 7] A8 MR U Bl B 1T RL(E in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
B BEBEKREERTERDEA recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
el ey ZEER - IREEELAE by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
EAABEAEEN A REAEBHR amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
mE C BEAERENS  BEKRELA value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
BEReRANZEKTEHESEG (ReE of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
EBA)  REDRBVREMEEEE for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
HEEHEENRDMA - HERBENIE are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
TREE (MERIIN) gRSmERRS or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
ST EDRE R B 2 AT RE I © other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
28 S@WEE 2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 78 2.8.1 Classification
REBBHESREED RUATER The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:
EHTA Debt instruments
i) HEpREAREBESAEMEEK i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through other
AGTE comprehensive income;
ii) HigmAnBEFABRTE i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit
® or loss; and
iii) BN E - i) to be measured at amortised.
SDHEBAN BRSNS ENTEE The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
RURBEES TR YA YIEERTE - managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.
F-120 $#H1RZKRAEMR 2T XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED

20184 %R 2018 Annual Report



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.8
2.8.1

2.8.2

2.8.3

BEARETHERBE )

TREE (&)

2 ()

iz TH

) HERRAREEHAHEMRENK
AGHE R

ii) Higm AR EEFABGRE -

MARABEAENEEMS - WAR
EHERE AB SR H M 2 EA o

REBTAREME EHRFHER
B2 EBEAME - AR TAREM
5 HEHBRIFAEBERNLEREES
EHNATRGH 2 B 2 - ABRAIR 8%
RABEFAREMBZEEA

e

AEEEAEEERASEECEBE
AEPHEMOBEBRE -

R R AR
TREE-REFERXHA (XK
BAEBASLE E%éFZEI)ﬁ@wm

ENEREENDASREZENDE
mESEE MARECKEERIBAR
MoER R CREBE  FHSBREE
AL ERERR -

i

R HERE  REBELQAEEMN
(W TAYFRARBEFAR
o) BERERKRBEREENI K
AFECREE - BBABEREAAEE
FIRRH SR E BN R HRAR BRI -

EHFTEARATELAN SR EED
REnETRE/IMNARSMAEE
FHERMEENRBETERE

2.8
2.8.1

2.8.2

2.8.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Classification (Cont'd)
Equity instruments

i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income; and

ii) to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit
or loss.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2.8.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Measurement (Cont’d)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

o Fair value through OCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through OCIl. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income and recognised in ‘other gains
- net’. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.

o Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in ‘other gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.
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2.8
2.8.3

2.9

2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Measurement (Cont'd)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in ‘other income’ when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in ‘other gains — net’ as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instrument carried at
amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through OCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.2 details
how the Group determines whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Deposits and other receivables due from related parties, are
considered to have low credit risk, and thus the impairment
provision recognised during the period was limited to 12 months
expected losses.

For other receivables other than those from related parties, the
Group adopted a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarized
below:

o The receivable is not credit-impaired on initial recognition
is classified in “Stage 1" and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

o If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified, the receivables is moved to
“Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit impaired.

o If the receivables is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

Receivables in Stage 1 have their expected credit loss measured
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their expected credit
loss measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
basis.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group considers
forward-looking information.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and banks,
deposits held at call with financial institutions and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
Deferred income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

(i)

(ii)

2.17 Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution pension
plans. In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group participate
in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organized by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administrated funds managed
by the governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurance
plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability
in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each year. Contributions to the housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.
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217 EEEF (&) 2.17 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
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(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to present
value.

(iv)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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2.18

2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Provisions (Cont'd)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

The Group provides property management services, property
developer-related services, community-related services and
professional services. Revenue from providing services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered. The following is a description of the accounting policy
for the principal revenue streams of the Group:

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group acts as
principal and is primary responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners, the Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from property owners
as its revenue and all related property management costs as
its cost of service. For property management services income
from properties managed under commission basis, the Group
recognises the commission, which is calculated by certain
percentage of the total property management fee received or
receivable from the property units, as its revenue for arranging
and monitoring the services as provided by other suppliers to the
property owners.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Property developer related services include mainly i) on-site
sales assistance services, which includes cleaning and
maintenance services to property developers, which are billed
and settled monthly based on actual level of services provided
at pre-determined price and revenue is recognized when such
services are provided; ii) property delivery related and other
consulting services, which are fixed amount contract with
property developers and are billed and settled on a monthly basis
and revenue is recognized when the services are provided; and
iii) commission income for sale of car parks, which are billed to
property developers on a monthly basis and were recognized on
a net basis when the car parks were delivered to the customers.

Community related services include mainly i) Commission from
information services, which are those business from the on-line
and off-line platforms of the Group, and is recognized on a
net basis when the services providers secures the business; ii)
Commission from public resources management services, which
is recognized on a net basis over the time when such services
are rendered; iii) Revenue from other community convenience
services are charged for each services provided and recognized
when the relevant services are rendered. Community related
services are normally billable immediately upon the services are
provided.

Professional services mainly include engineering and maintenance
services of elevator and intelligent security equipment. Revenue
from professional services are recognized when the contracts
have been approved and the services are rendered. Professional
services are normally billable immediate upon the delivery of the
services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the standard-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated
based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market
assessment approach, depending on the availability of observable
information.

MR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
20184 # 2018 Annual Report

F-131



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.19

2.20

BEARETHERBE )

WARER (%)

E-ERBENENE  REBERT
AEBNREAEEPNROBESE D
EREBNEEXLANABER2IINUBR

BHEEDARERRBALEERNTP
BRREORENERN - BEANME
ERIRERAR (INAIIRE) BB A R AE
REEZY > REEREARBBAERE
iy -

MEPXNREIANEEH K ESEHE
BEGEEN  AIRTEEREFEE
MR AT - AN B W RIS R RIS B
FAE (UREERE)  BANENA
BHAE - AWARBRARERSARHE
EREPKRIAE (KRESEIH) &
RIGERTEPHET -

EAREEB A EREE BRI - &
BRYEFE - HREXNEIHAERTE
B - BIWERC B RO R R E G -

BRER
(i) EREXEF

BERERENTRAATEEB®
AERH  ARREEA ABET
B (T RREEE BRI A
ERENA) RAMBEREAD
BITEBRIETFOE - XHF
RERTEAR (TEEERFR
n) BRAAE -

2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the statements of financial position
as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for services that the Group has transferred to a customer.
Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact, if recoverable, are
capitalized and presented as assets and subsequently amortised
when the related revenue is recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers services to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment is received or
a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability
is the Group’s obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the
profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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2.20

2.21

2.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Earnings per share (Cont'd)

(ii)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account: the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares, and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI (2017 - available-for-sale securities,
held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables)
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Leases

(a)

The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Leases (Cont'd)

(b)

The Group is the lessor

When assets are leased out under operating lease,
the assets are included in the statements of financial
position based on the nature of the assets. Rental
income is recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants related to assets refer to government grants
which are obtained by the Group for the purposes of purchase,
construction or acquisition of the long-term assets. Government
grants related to income refer to the government grants other
than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are either deducted against
the carrying amount of the assets, or recorded as deferred
income and recognised in profit or loss on a systemic basis over
the useful lives of the assets. Government grants related to
income that compensate the future costs, expenses or losses are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss, or
deducted against related costs, expenses or losses in reporting
the related expenses; government grants related to income
that compensate the incurred costs, expenses or losses are
recognised in profit or loss, or deducted against related costs,
expenses or losses directly in current period. The Group applies
the presentation method consistently to the similar government
grants in the financial statements.
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3.1.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall

risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance.

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services
in the PRC with almost all the transactions denominated
in RMB, except for proceeds from certain financing
activities, including the initial public offering, which are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar ("HKD") or United
States Dollar (“USD"). As of 31 December 2018, majority
of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB except that certain cash is denominated in HKD or
UsD.

The Company and all of its subsidiaries’ functional
currency is RMB. Accordingly, cash denominated in HKD
or USD is subject to foreign exchange risk. Fluctuations
in the exchange rates of HKD and USD against RMB
will affect the Group’s result of operations. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management closely monitors the foreign

exchange exposure and will take actions when necessary.

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10%, against HKD with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB55,760 (2017: nil) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of HKD denominated bank deposits.
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3 HMBEREBRERE @ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 MEBEBEZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.1 TERKE (&) 3.1.1 Market risk (Cont'd)
(i) BRERE (ii)  Price risk
RN EERERETESG The Group is exposed to price risk because of investments
USRSk RS AR A & Bl held by the Group and classified on the consolidated
AE M2 A (FEE19) - # statements of financial position as FVOCI (Note 19).
REEAZERER
EE A . A EE D IR In the opinion of the directors, the Group's exposure to
SHERRART TEA - BEA price risk with regard to its investments is not significant
EETARE  TeErEAs since it is the Group’s policy not to invest significant
B B 7 S 48 AT AL SRR R 2 2 amounts that might have a detrimental impact to
EARE - IEREAERESES the Group’s financial results. All investments must be
RIS T AT approved by the Chairman of the Board before they may
be entered into.
T3 4 ) R A T Uk A The following table summarises the impact of increase/
m WA REE . decrease on net profit and other comprehensive income.
RAARBEFARMBLZERA
FVOCI
BZE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
201845 20174
2018 2017
AR®T T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
— 5% - 5 percent higher 66 66
— T#5% - 5 percent lower (66) (66)
(iii)  FFE (iii)  Interest rate risk
K2018F K&2017F12A31H - As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has no
AEEWEEMGEAE  Bm interest bearing liabilities and hence are not subject to
A AT B KA R @b o significant interest rate risk.
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3.1
3.1.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables; and cash and cash
equivalents. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables; and cash and cash equivalents represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Cash in banks

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits at banks since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned banks and other
medium or large size listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected credit loss also incorporate forward looking
information.

Deposits and other receivables due from
related parties

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with
deposits and other receivables due from related parties
to be low, since the majority of the deposits is due
from government authorities as pledge for the ordinary
business and related parties have a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term. Thus, the impairment provision recognised during
the period was limited to 12 months expected losses,
which was 1% allowance rate for deposits and other
receivables due from related parties.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iv)

Other receivables other than those from
related parties

The Group has large number of counter parties for its
other receivables other than those from related parties.
There was no concentration of credit risk. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverability of these receivables at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.
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3 MERRERE @
3.1 B¥EREREZE (&)
3.1.2 EERK (&)

(iv)

HttfERHE (TREXE
EaE ) (&)

T AR B B A
B

AEBEDETEL DT L& H
FEERERRIEHEEBEN
TELEEY YARASNA
B REBIERTEIEER - FHl=E
EMAATIER

. NEBEEFTAR -

. SNEREERTAR |

o ¥ BHIEERHT
ERLEERRENEX
THEBEBERERA
EEEHHENELEA

gt

o ERETRERADEE
SEEEREENRALE
e

. 18751 2 = s M FHE FRA Y
Hibe I EEERBRA
Z1m

. ERABSERLITAE
EEAE(  RIEEER
BRAR KBRS R
G ET LYo

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iv)

Other receivables other than those from
related parties (Cont'd)

Forward-looking information incorporated in the expected
credit loss model.

The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating;
. external credit rating;
o actual or expected significant adverse changes in

business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or
the borrower;

o significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual property
owner or the same borrower;

J significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
borrower.
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3 MERRERE @
3.1 B¥EREZE (&)
3.1.2 EERK (&)

A2018%F 20174128310 @ FEE %

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the loss allowance provision

HEEETOT - was determined as follow.
120185 12A31H 2017412 A31H
As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
AR¥®TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
5F =] &8
EHEEE [RELE EERE FEAE EREERE
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected Carrying allowance Carrying  allowance
Loss Rate Amount provision Amount provision
B 5 EWRIE
Trade receivables
B2k Related parties 1.00% 49,762 498 12,539 125
1R Within 1 year 5.00% 59,066 2,953 49,120 2,455
15824 1 to 2 years 35.53% 23,132 8,219 20,072 7,131
2E3F 2 to 3 years 53.99% 13,588 7,336 6,643 3,587
3E4F 3 to 4 years 67.05% 5,563 3,730 4,828 3,238
4E5F 4 to 5 years 88.98% 4,515 4,017 2,289 2,037
FBIASF Over 5 years 100.00% 10,657 10,657 8,592 8,592
166,283 37,410 104,083 27,165
BAARE - ZEREMERFUE (TEEREMRERE FHNRNEERESR)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be deducted)
s Deposits 1.00% 20,861 209 11,033 112
H th & W 3R IE Other receivables
14 R Within | year 5.00% 25,918 1,296 18,920 946
18245 1 to 2 years 35.53% 6,782 2,410 3,320 1,179
2E3F 2 to 3 years 53.99% 2,520 1,361 2,749 1,484
3E4F 3 to 4 years 67.05% 2,457 1,647 1,966 1,318
4% 5% 4 to 5 years 88.98% 656 582 385 343
FBIBSEF Over 5 years 100.00% 129 129 161 161
59,323 7,634 38,534 5,543
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3.1
3.1.2

BRRER &)
BREBEE (&)
FERR (8&)

20184 M2017F12A31H B 5 K
H b EUGIE (TREEMNRIE - B
ST A FIE R A T HUR A E RIS ER)
HEEEBRERTVBEEERED

SEBIN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2

Credit risk (Cont'd)

provision as follows:

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the loss allowance provision
for trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments,
receivables from payment platform and input VAT to be
deducted) reconciles to the opening loss allowance for that

BANFRE - RER

Hith R IE
(TEEAARER
BEZE # F R H9ETH
KR IE R BEHR) BE st
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits and
other receivables
(excluding
Allowance prepayments
for trade and input VAT
receivables to be deducted) Total
AR¥T T AR®T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A2018F181H At 1 January 2018 27,165 5,543 32,708
RérE 2 EBRARERD Provision for loss allowance
E R recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income 10,245 2,091 12,336
#2018 12A31H At 31 December 2018 37,410 7,634 45,044
n20171818 At 1 January 2017 18,550 3,476 22,026
RERE 2 EHA K ERA Provision for loss allowance
EIE R RE recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income 8,615 2,067 10,682
7A2017512H31H At 31 December 2017 27,165 5,543 32,708
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3 HMBEREBRERE @ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 BBEBRER (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 F&mE (&) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
M2018F12A31H - & 5 & H b & As at 31 December 2018, the gross carrying amount of trade
Wk as (B ¥E T8 1 I8 KA T R receivables and other receivables (excluding prepayments and
FEIEIEEN HEEAEAARE input VAT to be deducted) was RMB225,606,000 (31 December
225,606,0007C (2017412A31H : A 2017: RMB142,617,000) and the maximum exposure to loss was
R#142,617,00070) © AEEEN TS RMB180,562,000 (31 December 2017: RMB109,909,000).
[2 B 7 A R #180,562,0007T (20174
12A318 : AR¥109,909,0007T) °
3.1.3 KBESAKR 3.1.3 Liquidity risk
EREEEERARNRERREEE Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
Y SABTSENARHESEES equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
SHRE  BEEETER  UWnEA amount of available financing, including loans from related
HEKENZEEREL - parties to meet its daily operation working capital requirements.
TREFIREBRNEEE B REEEE The table below set out the Group’s financial liabilities by
HRlpENEemEE - TRAKENS relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date. The
BREHARUBERENE - ARITERD amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
FEAK  BUHEHEEERI2EAAR cash flows. Balances due within 12 months from the balance
B ERESRERT B R TR sheet date equal to their carrying amounts in the statements of
BRMEE © financial position, as the impact of discount is not significant.
DPR—F —EWMF st
Less than Between
1year 1 and 2 years Total
AR®TT ARBTT ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
720185 12H31A As at 31 December 2018
B 5 L EAM e FRIE* Trade and other payables* 315,435 - 315,435
R2017612A31H As at 31 December 2017
B 5 & EMER FRIE* Trade and other payables* 270,929 - 270,929
FEATIR B, Dividend Payable 19,000 - 19,000
Bzl Loans from related parties 65,900 - 65,900
o TRERAHELECEARASHECRA * Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued payroll and other taxes payable
&
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BRRER &)

ERERE

AEENEAEEE EREAEEEE
QMR RTARAE ARLEER
BEAMEDEIRER R WRFEREY
BARE AR EEARA o

RTHEFRARELEE  ~AKEAE
EHBARRINORESE - BITH
Befp ek ih & B E AR D ER -

AEBAERNBBLEREREZHE
o L RZFABRNBERTE -
FRERAABRRERREFEYT
8o MENREAMBIRARTARN
[tz | IFREFHE -

20184 M2017F12A31H A& E
BRI AR -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for owners and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group maintained at
net cash position.
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BRRER &)

DSBS

ERMEEN L SEEER

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets
E—E -l - £=E st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

i ARMTT ARBTRT ARBTR ARWTR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEMAREENE

3

Recurring fair value
measurements

#2018%12A31H At 31 December 2018
EREE Financial assets
FLEMRAES Un-listed equity securities 19 = = 1,660 1,660
F—IE BB E=[E FEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HiE ARETIT ARBTT ARETIT AR®TT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
BEMARLBETE Recurring fair value

A2017F12A31H
ERMEE
Ik TR ASFE 5

measurements
At 31 December 2017
Financial assets
Un-listed equity securities 19 - - 1,660 1,660
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BRRER &)
NAEEMGE (8)

RER REFUELABEFEME -
E—E B_EBURFE-"EzBRIES
B
AEENBREENMEHARERLAE
BERZENEARE -
BE-EBE:NERTHLEENEMIA

(A ﬁﬁgmmilﬁuﬁﬁﬂﬁ
B ARMEZEARANSRHEEHE
HREBEE) MDA BERERSH
ROMSHREINE - AEEFENDR
BENTSRE/EREREB - ZFT
BIIAE—E -

BB WINEEMBEENSRT
B (PInginz B2 TR) AR EE
KAMERNEE - HERTEEFA
AERMEHE S 0RBEENE
EfhF e METE—SMIANAREE
TR ERBABTEEEE A
ZIEIIAEZE -

F=E: W—EZEEAHALIER
%T%ﬁm%%ﬁ'w%IEWA%E
B ZBRBARIELTRARE

20184 &2017F12A31H A& E
HIELTRAZFHFGZREZZEMR
B BARELAZE - Al - WEZIT
MARE=EARBEFTENEKXNTH
BRG AENSLEE -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and level 3 for

recurring fair value measurements during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the

instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s unlisted equity
securities were all valued using recent transaction price without
adjustment. Accordingly, no quantitative information about
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measured
of Level 3 was presented.
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4 ERGEHETTRHE 4

AEBHRREL G RBR - ENH
SR RERROSEANEBERS
R UTRYTEMBRFENEERE
BEREAENEAFRBREREARRNGE
R BRERA R -

(a) ERREER

AEBRBEEZORR & IEHE
BERO R BB RIRERE -
AEEREHRERARRELBE
st BTN K ATHE B A
HZEBRRIEERETENE
ANERE R HE -

IMREHEFEAGTEER B
HERETERBE R ENRE
HME 5 R E M EW B KRR
R MEEEE - BEENGE
RETREABNFE 2B EX
Mf5E3.1.2 ¢

(b) BNHARIEIEFTSH

AEBAETHEBREXAE
Mo EEEMN AR B BERA
NIRRT IR RE - ZAfEHH
B - EFAEEBBIED  FER
LT ENSENAEEFED
AEIEER - EEBEENREHR
BERERASYCHENESETR
AFHERS ey BEFLARE
TE HA A /9 T 15 B S IR T A 0R B
=

EERERR/ARKERTFER
EEERFREAERAEREREX
MEBRE BRIEETE
FERRNEBRNELTCHEAER
E - BERERAERTETR -

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Allowance on doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group used judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed. For details of the key assumption and inputs
used, see Note 3.1.2 above.

(b) Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxations. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilized. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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2 EHER
EEEREHIZBEERKERMANE
ETEELENH  TERLERRERAE
REWATRIEATES BENKE
RN FHEEE DB RA -

HE2018F 128318 IEFE - AEH
FTEEFENEMIELEFRUEDEEE
AR7% RIGERTS - BIEMERE I
AR5 - +LEMABERS R BEERE - B12
EBRZBEEBIEAS—ELED I - FH
Hga 265 D ERMMA D BRIERR
e Al ARRIMEBLERKER
BEA— A EL BB MR R D0 o

AEENEERKLEEE
AEBREZE2018F12

2EHBRABKERE -

AR E - i
A318 L F

M2018F12A31H K&2017F12A31
B AEBMNMEERBEEHURF
°

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive and
non-executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group is principally
engaged in the provision of property management services
and value-added services, including property developer-related
services, community-related services and professional services
in the PRC. Management reviews the operating results of the
business as one operating segment to make decisions about
resources to be allocated. Therefore, the CODM of the Company
regards that there is only one segment which is used to make
strategic decisions.

The principal operating entity of the Group is domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue were derived in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, all of the
non-current assets of the Group were located in the PRC.

MR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
20184 # 2018 Annual Report

F-147



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

W A B 85 & B BR 35 AR

WAETEBREYESIEREMEERS
Fr {8 3018 - # 220184 N2017512 A
3TEIEFE - REBIZEER SIS KA
MHERADTOT

REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES

Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property
management services and value-added services. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue and cost of sales by category for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

BZE12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

2018%F 20174
2018 2017
ARBTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
WA SHE R A A SHERA
Cost Cost
Revenue of sales Revenue of sales

RAFFAE-—REBA

Revenue from customers

BRHWA and recognised over time:
MEEIEIRTS Property management Services 732,025 528,522 567,177 423,709
BERE Value added services:
— VIR - Property developer-related
services 296,746 221,028 175,497 136,968
— }[E AR AR TS — Community-related services 47,890 8,772 43,304 6,501
— HERB — Professional services 73,288 52,651 80,392 56,946

1,149,949 810,973 866,370 624,124

H F2018%F K2017412A318 1+ F
B BAEKREBRBEEZEHNERE LR
RIEBRBEROGECERBEDEE
AR A AR B A /I31.77% &
26.71% ° BR R IE IR R R IE B A H 88
REEERBRENEECERBEDE
G AEBHEARERF BREZRE
20184 M20175F12A31 B I FE I &
TRMEFPERMALBE10%K A EAIU
)\o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, revenue
from entities controlled by Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
and joint ventures and associates of the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder contributed 31.77% and 26.71% of the Group’s
revenue, respectively. Other than entities controlled by Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder and joint ventures and associates of the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder, the Group had a large number
of customers and none of whom contributed 10% or more of
the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.
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6 WARBEERBRERA @)

() BHWEE
AEECDEATIRARBNS

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (Cont'd)

(a) Contract liabilities

The Group had recognised the following revenue-related

HEE: contract liabilities:
M128318
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AXBaE Contract liabilities 248,764 180,714

(b) EBHNAEENEXEDH

AEENEHABRIEELARR
P XAV TEN SRR - 1A B AR T
WAREH - AEAEEBMBER
REBEFIBRATE -

(b) Significant change in contract liabilities

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from
the advance payments made by customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided. Such liabilities
increased as a result of the growth of the Group’s
business.
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6 WARBEERRBEE &) 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (Cont'd)
() WMENEEBERIANRA () Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
TRETARSHAERNEE The following table shows how much of the revenue
AHBEMNRA - recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities:
BZE12A318LFE
For the year

ended 31 December
2018%F 20174
2018 2017
AR¥ETF T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

EHRRIABRAFRELD Revenue recognised that was
FEANEBEHNED included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning
of the year
MEEIEIRT Property management services 149,275 87,801
Y 52 P AR R AR A Property developer-related services 2,425 1,045
= AR RS Community-related services 10,840 12,598
162,540 101,444
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6 WARBEERRBEEA &)

(d)

(e)

REITHENR

IMEEERS - MEMEEA
IR EAERBEREMS - &
SESALASFTHERESBEINA
HEREZERNRA (BIEAREE
BEHABONEFBEERY
EHERE) AEEDEEUT
BREZSRUAHNERBENER
T ERERBREEELH - K
BOMEEEREE D RYEFH
EEMARERS L EE TR - 44
EREREHR -RREF IR
M#BASHARETERERS
B} e ©

REERBME - HERERME
MEf  REEMRALERET
HIEHIETS

BEESENNHIERARER
HEE

» H E2018%12A318 It F
B WEAAESSKETSOM
FBHERRAN - AL ERER
EREE -

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services, property
developer-related services and community-related
services, the Group recognises revenue in the amount
that equals to the right to invoice which correspond
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly or quarterly basis.
The Group has elected the practical expedient for
not to disclose the remaining performance obligation
for these types of contracts. The majority of the
property management services contracts and property
developer-related services do not have a fixed term. The
term of the contracts for community — related services
is generally set to expire when the counterparties notify
several months in advance the Group that the services
are no longer required.

For professional services, they are rendered in short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied performance
obligation at the end of respective periods.

Assets recognised from incremental costs to
obtain a contract

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
significant incremental costs to obtain or fulfil a contract,
and accordingly no asset was recognized.
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7 BUEHIATHER

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BZE12A3MBLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

201845 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BERFIER (M:E8) Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 358,135 287,774
INBRE ~ B b OB IR AN Outsourced security, greening
and cleaning costs 411,405 297,677
BERB Lt = EERE Raw material and components
FIT FA R A1 K B 14 used in professional services and
community-related services 62,012 58,281
NS Utilities 35,742 34,382
| Professional fees 30,844 16,303
B FmAS Including: Listing expenses 29,428 1,500
HNB A Office expenses 11,945 11,274
ERE Travelling expenses 11,752 8,577
=gy L pIE = Taxes and surcharges 9,602 6,899
EBRBEE Business entertainment expenses 5,713 6,244
SR & Auditor’s remuneration 2,200 1,000
B FEERE Including: Audit services 2,110 1,000
B1E - IEEZIRF Including: Non-audit services 20 -
BT R KABEER Employee uniform and related expenses 6,961 4,869
IRITFEE Bank charges 4,855 3,933
EAES Operating lease payments 2,684 3,486
WEREHEER Depreciation and amortization charges 3,142 3,155
EENEEEA Advertising & Promotion expenses 1,371 2,399
ITHRAHE R EEE R IT system development and
maintenance expenses 760 1,887
Hit Others 3,198 2,709
962,321 750,849

HERATERFEETLRINER I8
RE -~ AL RIF R AIA R FHE RS R
[ AR AR TS T R R AR R AR A

Cost of sales include mainly employee benefit expenses,
outsourced security, greening and cleaning costs, utilities and
raw material and components used in professional services and
community-related services.
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8

EEEANEA 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
BZ12A318LEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
T& - #Fhe hEsd Wages, salaries and bonuses 266,262 209,386
BAIRE AR Pension costs 33,323 30,803
FEAES BERBK Housing funds, medical insurances
H it &R and other social insurances 32,647 23,174
Hivg B&F Other employee benefits 25,903 24,411
358,135 287,774

AEENTENRBARERES AL
73BT B RO B SUE KA 8 -
AREE R B E R R TR T T BT
ARENEEHFEE TED LA EH
B B RBRKER o

B Lt F Z RSN AEEBE A b B
ZEH AR R KRBT RNERE
£ -

Employees of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution scheme administrated and
operated by the local municipal government The group PRC's
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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8 EERINNEAR® 8
(a) ENESFMAL

H E2018%F N2017F12A31H
IFE - AEERN R &S H
ALTDRIBEMAR=MESE -
% 8 5 B 2 & 50 Rt sE36FT
TZDMA - RBLE2018F &
2017F12A31B L FE - FERA
H 4 =7 R AL E A A 9 37 B

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include 2 and 3 directors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
36. The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 and 2
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 are as follows:

m
BHZE12AMBLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT AREETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
e Salaries 2,029 1,188
TE4L Bonus 1,021 665
FTEAES  BERR Housing fund, medical insurances
MEMTgRE and other social insurances 289 179
3,339 2,032
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8 REERANEA® 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Cont'd)
() IHuUESFMAL (&) (a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)
ZEFWNEAT 2HEER : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
A8
BZ12A318LLEE

Number of individuals
For the year
ended 31 December

20184 20174
2018 2017
SRS E (BT Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
£ £500,000%8 7T Nil — HK$500,000 = -
500,001 L& HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/ 7T - 1
1,000,001/ T2 HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T 3 1
3 2
9 EHAplgA 9  OTHER INCOME
BZ12A31BLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB (BiE) Government grants (Note) 10,832 2,510
HAth Others 313 46
11,145 2,556
MeE: BNEBTIEAEMBFEMINESEN Note:  The government grants mainly represented tax refunds from local
RFH o government without attached conditions.
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10 HMEA 10 OTHER EXPENSES
BZ12A318LEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
MEFIELHEIIEE Compensation for casualties to
property owners 357 1,120
A, Others 79 63
436 1,183
11 Hftwz= (BE) - B8 11 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET
BZ12A318LEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT AR®ET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
P& H W F 58 Net foreign exchange gains 18,451 -
HEME - BEMSENEETE Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (42) (8)
18,409 (8)
12 BBBA 12 FINANCE INCOME
BZ12A318LEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ReMRSZEMHFIEWA Interest income on cash
and cash equivalents 6,156 6,811

F-156  #HRIZKRER A5 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018F F %R 2018 Annual Report



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

13 F42AFH 13 SUBSIDIARIES
NEE FR2018F K2017F 124318 & The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are set
FRAREHFNAT out below:
HMRL /B
FRRER BERAH BRARARRE  ARERRAAERER  FEREZFRAGEER IEEH/OEuE
Place and date Ownership Ownership interest
Names of the of incorporation/ Issued and interest held by held by non-controlling  Principal activities/place
subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital the Group interests of operation
12A318 128318
31 December 31 December
20185 0175 2018% 20178
2018 2017 2018 2017
BEERLEARAFY EBRRHE 1= 100.00% il = MR BRAF
Chief Global Enterprise Limited® 201851238 UsD? Holding company
British Virgin Islands
23 January 2018
EEMINERARLAY e 15T 100.00% el = MNER  BRAF
Hong Kong Xinchengyue 2018517318 HKD1 Holding company
Development Limited® Hong Kong
31 January 2018
TR ERERAT B 3000000057 100.00% TaR - TER R
Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings 2018528134 USD30,000,000 Investment
Company Limited Changzhou, the PRC
13 February 2018
TIERERHARRAA hERN ARE12929,929  99.00%  100.00% 1.00% - EREARRE
Xincheng Fuyue Management 0145128118 RMB129,292,929 Management consultation and
Consulting Co., Limited Changzhou, the PRC [nvestment
11 December 2014
ERAR N2 RERNERAR B AE®120000000  9372%  80.00% 628%  2000% YEEERH PEENAT
(Mt nzRE]) 199634250 RMB120,000,000 Property management services,
Tet Xinchengyue Property Management (20155 B EH) Cities across the PRC
Co. Ltd ( “Tibet Xinchengyue™ ) Changzhou, the PRC
25 March 1996

(moved to Tibet in 2015)
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13 F28 W) 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
HMRL /B
FRRAR BERAH BEARARRA  ARERREAEER  FERESFRAAEER IEED/OEuE
Place and date Ownership Ownership interest
Names of the of incorporation/ Issued and interest held by held by non-controlling  Principal activities/place
subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital the Group interests of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
2018% 0175 2018% 20178
218 2017 218 2017
HEHEENRRBARAA PELE AR®100000007T  9372%  8000%  628%  2000% MEEERH FELE
Shanghai Xin Cheng Wan Jia Property 2003117278 RMB10,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC Shanghai, the PRC
27 November 2003
BTSRRI RARAR hERM AR 10,000,000 93.72% 80.00% 6.28% 2000% TR REEN
Changzhou Wanrui Intelligent System 201483194 RMB10,000,000 Engineering services,
Engineering Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC Changzhou, the PRC
19 March 2014
THERERTRERAT hESM AEB10000000  9372%  80.00% 6.28%  2000% ERE PEEN
Jiangsu Dashun Elevator Co., Ltd. 2012654318 RMB10,000,000 Maintenance services,
Changzhou, the PRC Changzhou, the PRC
31 May 2012
BNmTRFEEARAT hEEA AREs00000  9372%  80.00% 628%  2000% 7REERH PEFN
Changzhou Pingan Property 199959A2R RIMB500,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC Changzhou, the PRC
2 September 1999
MERDZREERAT hEA AEHB000,000T  9372%  80.00% 6.28%  2000% EEE - PEGN
([MER]) 199951 56 RIB8,000,000 Property management
Hangzhou Wan Yue Property Hangzhou, the PRC Hangzhou, the PRC
Management Co., Ltd. 5 January 1999
(“Hangzhou Wan Yue")
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13 F27 @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
HMRL /B
ThEER BERAS BRARARRE  REEMBEAEES  FERERFEEGEER IIEEH/OEnd
Place and date Ownership Ownership interest
Names of the of incorporation/ Issued and interest held by held by non-controlling  Principal activities/place
subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital the Group interests of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
2018% 0175 20185 0175
2018 2017 2018 2017
BMFEESRGBRAA hEEN AEB1,000000  9372%  80.00% 6.28%  2000% EMFRREE FERN
Changzhou Xincheng Information 2014%9A308 RMB1,000,000 Software development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC maintenance, Changzhou,
30 September 2014 the PRC
B nEREERAA hEE ARE1,000000m  93.72% TR 6.28% TER  MEEERE REHN
Suzhou Xinchengyue Property 2018%3A128 RMB1,000,000 Property management services.
services Co., Ltd. Suzhou, the PRC Suzhou, the PRC
12 March 2018
INERDEREERAA hEDH ARES00,000m  93.72% NaR 6.28% TER  MEEERE PEEHN
Erzhou Xinchengyue Property services 20184 £25A RMBS500,000 Property management services.
Co., Ltd. Erzhou, the PRC Suzhou, the PRC
25 April 2018
(a) ARRRRZEFARIFHEA Bk R RE - (a) The Company has direct or indirect equity interests in these subsidiaries
MZEFRAREMF AR ES EZLHEER which have direct or indirect equity interests in the other subsidiaries.
o ZEFRRAINKEBERHESREBETMK These subsidiaries were incorporated in British Virgin Islands or Hong Kong
3o RFTBEMTFRARFBEAMKYL - FTE and all the other subsidiaries were established in mainland China. All the
FRAIRBRAEMFERRA ° subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies.
(b) FAFARIEBIEFMAT /AR BEAEH o (b) All the subsidiaries are operating principally in their place of incorporation/

establishment.

(c) BRAFRIABKBEIN  HEFE  MEFAA () Save for disclosed in this annual report, none of the subsidiaries had issued
BEITEMEHES any debt securities at the end of the year.
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13

FRTF (&)
EAFERMES

BEEAFZRMEZN—BF2

AN BEERHE

TXEIEAREM S HEBERAIE
R R R ) F R R PR A S B

RANAEERLE -

13  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Material non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information on the subsidiary

with material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
subsidiary, Tibet Xinchengyue and its subsidiaries, which has

non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

BBMRREEE Summarised statements of financial position
»
As at
20184 20174
12H31H 12A318
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RED Current
BE Assets 954,679 750,826
=R Liabilities (672,654) (633,682)
B EERRE Total current net assets 282,025 117,144
FERED Non-current
BE Assets 54,439 53,743
aE Liabilities (1,050) (947)
BEFH Net assets 335,414 169,940
et IR R S Accumulated non-controlling interests 17,878 35,188
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13 S48 @& 13  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
BEARFERMER (8) Material non-controlling interests (Cont'd)
2HKARBE Summarised statements of comprehensive income
BZ12A31ALEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20185 20174
2018 2017
ARBTT ARBTTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
WA Revenue 1,149,949 866,370
FRFE Profit for the year 165,252 91,678
1551 £ Income tax expense (42,207) (21,273)
wERmEmA Total comprehensive income 165,252 91,678
DR FEE R MR A ) Profit allocated to non-controlling interests 12,196 18,336
[ FEFE 1 1 2 2 AT D AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests = (19,000)
B REBRBE Summarised statements of cash flows
BZ12A318LFE
For the year
ended 31 December
20185 20174
2018 2017
AR®ETF T ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
MRS EARIRSFE Net cash generated from
operating activities 205,598 198,270
WEFESEL,(FR) B FHE Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 3,961 (7,719)
BEEBANRESFR Net cash generated used in
financing activities (129,137) -
B4 RIS EEYEINESE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 80,422 190,551
FUNRERBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 620,269 429,718
EXRMBLLESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 700,691 620,269
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14 FiBSHEHR 14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BZE12AMBLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
ARETFT AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BNHAFR1S B Current income tax
— BTSN — PRC Corporate income tax 49,629 24,730
FEIEFTISH (5E30) Deferred income tax (Note 30)
— R EMEN - PRC Corporate income tax (2,265) (3,457)
47,364 21,273

(a) PFASEHSHER

ARABBENSRATDERHE
BB AR IR S A R A
A EY BAMRESESH
8% -

(b) BEFEH
ARAREBREZE2018F ILFE
W AT A BN T B B B A Uk
A IR E SRS B AT e
# (20174 : ) -

(a)

(b)

Cayman Island income Tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profit tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group did not derive any income subject to Hong Kong
profits tax during the year ended 2018 (2017: nil).
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14 FEBHEA @

(c)

B AT

AEEB P E AL L ERS
PIERBRDIRBRITER B
BLED  ATRMFERERTA
EERREGE -

PR M E RS RN B R A F
([EFEFHEBE]) R2015F124
17 B8 E Rk ST it B F N B
A& - (ERT S @ 3R 8
BEE)— 2B © 220204 (FE PR
HBESERFA15% M E R E - T
FHERPESEESETOA
A) o RIEM AT E R ROER -
AEEBIBA HFAREN T NPT
BN RAIMERBIMAEITAG
TR - ERTEWRAMNS0% 5
BETREBAR - MARMBQFR
BIR15% T EEMFTEH - &
RHARABRTS0% D #HED A
A MDA RIAEKR25% T EY
METSE - BEUE AN FEH MG
T EH20% °

gEoh - RIBCTEB B Am B
SREBEERIENB) (K
E%[2014]515%) - R20175F12 A
318 - ek imEtE e
JEBMM T ERBR T BRI
DEBNIHLD o AL B E2017
F12A318 L FE - AR
HEANSEHREE—PRE
18.5% °

14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(c)

PRC Corporate Income Tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at
the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable
profits for the years, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co., Ltd. (“Tibet
Xinchengyue”) applied a preferential tax rate of 15%
until 2020 for its head office in Tibet as part of the
Western Region Development strategy after it changed
its place of incorporation from Changzhou to Tibet on
17 December 2015. Tibet Xinchengyue has a number
of branches across China. According to the relevant
tax laws and regulations, the Group files its income tax
return by combining the taxable income of head office in
Tibet and all of its branches with 50% of the aggregate
taxable income apportion to the head office in Tibet
which is subject to income tax rate of 15% and the
remaining 50% among the branches which are subject to
income tax rate of 25%, resulting in an average of 20%
applicable income tax rate.

In addition, according to Zang Zheng Fa [2014] No. 51,
“Announcement on the Distribution of the Implement
Policy concerning the Enterprise Income Tax in Tibet
Autonomous Region”, Tibet Xinchengyue was entitled
to an exemption of income tax for local retention of
income tax attributed to the local tax bureau generated
from head office in Tibet till 31 December 2017.
Accordingly, Tibet Xinchengyue's applicable income tax
rate was further reduced to 18.5% for the year ended 31
December 2017.

MR R AR 2 7 XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
20184 # 2018 Annual Report

F-163



PR RaR Myt

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

14 FEHEA @ 14
() HEDEFmER (&)
BIE (hzE A REME 0 EFE
Box) ERRMAAREEE

AN BIRBER BB EFTTS
MR ER25% °

(d) TXEHINGERGFEZERAR
B ATFE R AER R R ES
FRSAE RS HER

Et

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
(c) PRC Corporate Income Tax (Cont'd)

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the entities
located in Mainland China out of Tibet Autonomous
Region is 25% according to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC.

(d)  The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on
the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the
income tax expenses is listed below:

HE12A31BLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

2018F 20174
2018 2017
ARETT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
T B A E Profit before income tax 210,566 113,015
REATEMEHNE25% Tax calculated at applicable
FrERIE corporate income tax rate of 25% 52,642 28,253
T EBERKZE Tax effects of:
— BBRIEmF AR E — Expenses not deductible for
& H (MTEE ) taxation purposes (Note (i) 6,860 410
— AR REAN TR E - Different tax rate applied
in Tibet companies (9,834) (7,153)
— RERBELEFSHEERN — Deductible tax losses and
CIEEE b RE] opi= YR gl temporary differences not
TR ER recognised for deferred
income tax assets 91 30
— R TSR R S e E B — Effect on deferred income tax
FEFRENEENTE assets due to change of
(B 7 Gii)) income tax rates (Note (ii)) (970) -
BAERBUA - Income not subject to tax (4,613) -
— BT (FIEEGi)) — PRC withholding tax (Note (iii)) 4,646
— H — Others (1,458) (267)
47,364 21,273
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14 FSHBER W

(d)

(&)

Wi

@@

(i)

(iii)

BFERGE T REER
BIEME MG
H(EERBELTH
BEBINBA LT H
SREER) -

FR A 75 B 7% R PR A
WATEE (RAREA
BHMR) HEHIRE
SRISH MR EIE -
H Z=2018F12A31
BIEFE ' AAA
AHREMSHARE
B PSR R
18.5% 18 E20% °

CEMEREARER
48 AR E R B R
R4 % 362008514
1BREEHRF -
MEPBEAINGE
ERR A AR B H AR S
B B R10%8) B
B M R20084F 148
1B RTEEXM KD IR
B B R # R AR %
TEMB o R IR P B E
BB L
T BEEBEERRQ
RIS A B - TR
AR A5%E R
R # =2018%F
12A318 I+t & & -
AEEGREPHER
EE®ES D RFIK
10%8) Bt & &1 52 R
B RN BEARE
4,646,0007T (2017
FrT) AEEE
%% F A RIMR
BB B W Al 8
TR RARDIK
REDZERF

14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(d)

(Cont'd)

Note: (i)
(i)
(iii)

The Group recorded certain expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes, which mainly include certain listing
expenses and entertainment expenses not eligible for
tax deduction.

With the expiration of the exemption of income tax
for local retention of income tax attribute to the local
tax bureau generated from head office in Tibet, the
applicable income tax rate the Company calculated
the deferred income tax assets for the year ended 31
December 2018 increased from 18.5% to 20%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by
a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate holding
company outside PRC for earnings generated beginning
1 January 2008 and undistributed earnings generated
prior to 1 January 2008 are exempted from such
withholding tax. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding companies are
established in Hong Kong according to the tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group accrued for
PRC withholding tax with amount of RMB4,646,000
(2017: nil) based on the tax rate of 10% on a portion
of the earnings generated by its PRC entities. The Group
controls the dividend policies of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable that a
majority of these earnings will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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15 ZARAFEBEABRGLESRER 15

BREERBEFTIEARR BHEAE ARG F)
R AF N B 2175 k632,164,000
% (20174 : 600,000,0000%) &) A04EF
BEGETE - 20174 (5 B )& AR 4
B E N7 (Msk25(d)
BOIRMOEEELEYEAR  BERA
2 E2017F1 A 1H##EET -

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 632,164,000 (2017: 600,000,000)
in issue during the year. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in 2017 has been retrospectively adjusted
for the effects of the issue of shares in connection with the
Capitalisation Shares (Note 25(d)) were deemed to have been in

issue since 1 January 2017.

BZ12A31BLLEE

For the year

ended 31 December

20185 20174
2018 2017
BF Earnings:
AEERERRFAANAAR Profit attributable to owners of the
wEAEGHAE (AREFIT) Company used in the basic earnings
per share calculation (RMB’'000) 150,397 73,406
ROEE : Number of shares:
AEFNEREETERRD Weighted average number of ordinary
98 (PATFE) shares in issue during the year per
share calculation (in thousand) 632,164 600,000
FRARNEHEE AEGEFED Basic earnings per share for profit
FREREFN AARBHIR) attributable to the owners
of the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB) 0.24 0.12

#H ZE2018%F K2017412A31H Ik £
E - AR EEERD  SREERF
EREREALET -

i

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, diluted
earnings per share was equal to the basic earnings per share as

there were no dilutive shares.
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16 Y% BWERRE 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BF EnRE EYRfE Rt &t
Transportation Electronic Other
Buildings equipment equipment machines Total
ARETR AR®TR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#2018%1R1A As at 1 January 2018
AR Cost 10,910 1,053 7,493 1,506 20,962
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (499) (232) (3,826) (762) (5.319)
REEE Net book amount 10,411 821 3,667 744 15,643
BZ2018F12831ALEE For the year ended
31 December 2018
FERFE Opening net book amount 10,411 821 3,667 744 15,643
NE Additions - 43 1,637 280 1,960
SRE () Cancellation of additions (Note) (7,502) = - - (7.502)
A Deduction - 3) (12) (146) (161)
NEER Depreciation charge (115) (99) (1,216) (187) (1,617)
ERBEHFE Closing net book amount 2,79 762 4,076 691 8,323
R2018%12A31H As at 31 December 2018
R Cost 3,408 1,092 8,993 1,575 15,068
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (614) (330) (4,917) (884) (6,745)
BRERE Net book amount 2,794 762 4,076 691 8,323
®2017%1R1A As at 1 January 2017
A Cost 10,910 250 6,145 951 18,256
Z2iE Accumulated depreciation (391) (154) (2,815) (473) (3,833)
RERE Net book amount 10,519 9% 3,330 478 14,423
HE2017F12A31ALEE For the year ended
31 December 2017
FNRAFE Opening net book amount 10,519 9% 3,330 478 14,423
AE Additions - 803 1,363 555 2,121
il Deduction - - (1) - (15)
TEER Depreciation charge (108) (78) (1,011) (289) (1,486)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 10,411 821 3,667 744 15,643
R20175128318 As at 31 December 2017
A Cost 10,910 1,053 7,493 1,506 20,962
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (499) (232) (3,826) (762) (5,319)
BREEE Net book amount 10,411 821 3,667 744 15,643
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M-  BMEKRRZRE @

GEX

FEBAFAGASERARATE

7N £ E 7 ¥ FTibet Shuntong Real
Estate Property Co., Ltd. fE B ¥ E ARR
W RERARE?,876,8207T (1
B BEMEER2016512ARN T
ANEE - B2018F5A310 * ARASE
B RIS R ENERSE - WLA
HERENETRRARERTE - K
SEKZMENEFERAETBEERE
$HE AR ° Tibet Shuntong Real Estate
Property Co., Ltd.#§#201848 A30H Al
mASEEERANRE  NEEKR2018
FIORNBHAIKEERBEERT - BRP
NREHAREZIAFERRE  ZEEXRT
& - R20185F 124310 - ZWEEH
BER - MAKEDRER KRS IR
I8 o

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Note:

The Group purchased a property for office with a consideration of
RMB7,876,820(including the VAT) from Tibet Shuntong Real Estate
Property Co., Ltd., the seller, and the property was delivered to the Group
in December 2016. On 31 May 2018, as the Group had not obtained title
certificates as previously agreed, and arbitrated by Lhasa Intermediate
People’s Court of Tibet Autonomous Region, the Group and the seller of
the property settled to cancel the Commodity House Sales Contract. Tibet
Shuntong Real Estate Property Co., Ltd. shall repay the Group the total
consideration before 30 August 2018 and the Group shall revert the rights
of property to seller before 31 September 2018. The property was not
depreciated because the office was not ready for use. As at 31 December
2018, the property had been returned to the seller and the Group had
collected the full amount from the seller.

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following categories

Al in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20185 20174
2018 2017
AR®ETF T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEX AR Cost of sales 661 574
1T E A Administrative expenses 956 912
1,617 1,486
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BEEE 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
TERBRG 4 wE &t
Computer
software Licenses Goodwill Total
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2018F1A18 As at 1 January 2018
B AR Cost 4,886 84 6,585 11,555
ZEtEE Accumulated amortisation (749) 9) - (758)
REFE Net book amount 4,137 75 6,585 10,797
BZ2018F128310 LEE For the year ended
31 December 2018
ENERFE Opening net book amount 4,137 75 6,585 10,797
NE Additions 1,673 - - 1,673
b Amortisation (431) (8) - (439)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 5,379 67 6,585 12,031
20185 12A31H As at 31 December 2018
B AR Cost 6,559 84 6,585 13,228
B Accumulated amortisation (1,180) (7) - (1.197)
REFE Net book amount 5,379 67 6,585 12,031
R2017F1818 As at 1 January 2017
B AR Cost 1,573 84 6,585 8,242
Z2EtEE Accumulated amortisation (435) (1) - (436)
REFE Net book amount 1,138 83 6,585 7,806
BZE2017F128310 LEE For the year ended
31 December 2017
FUREFE Opening net book amount 1,138 83 6,585 7,806
NE Additions 3,313 - - 3,313
B Amortisation (314) 8) - (322)
FRKEFE Closing net book amount 4,137 75 6,585 10,797
R2017%512A318 As at 31 December 2017
AR Cost 4,886 84 6,585 11,555
ZEtEE Accumulated amortisation (749) (9) - (758)
REFE Net book amount 4,137 75 6,585 10,797
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17 8|BEEE @ 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)
BREEHEHEA AGZEEZEKRAERA Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the
N consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows:
BZ12A318LEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR¥TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
THER Administrative expenses 439 322
M2016E8 8128 » AN A Al LA A R # On 12 August 2016, the Company completed its acquisition
3,000,0007C B £ {8 52 i ¥ 41 00 & 1% of 100% of the equity interests in Hangzhou Wan Yue (the
100% 0 AN AE 25 UK BE (TUR BE ) - #71 “Acquisition”) at a consideration of RMB3,000,000. Total
MBS A EEemAsARE identifiable net liabilities of Hangzhou Wan Yue were amounted
3,584,9567T  FTUKEE Al 4 B B (& % E to RMB3,584,956. The excess of the consideration transferred
MEEAREBRAEA R EENSEE AR over the fair value of the identifiable net liabilities acquired is
Bl AP o recorded as goodwill.
AR 3,000,000 KR E BB ATE The consideration of RMB3,000,000 was based on an
BRI 2 E B (HEME G0 arm’s-length negotiation with reference to the fair value of
MNBHEHARBEET - Hangzhou Wan Yue as appraised by an independent valuer.
TREHVZTIEEBNR2018F K2017F12 The following table sets forth each key assumption at 31
A31HREER S REEAETEER December 2018 and 2017, on which management has based
BRSNS EFERE its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:
R12A31R
As at 31 December
20185 20174
2018 2017
AR¥T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HgEZ 15 E R Revenue growth of the first year hereafter 0% 12%
(FEEEF L) (% annual growth rate)
HgE 26584598 Revenue growth from the second year 3% 5%
WAEE (FIEEEHF D) to fourth year hereafter
(% annual growth rate)
FHE (FRAB D) Gross margin (% of revenue) 10 - 15% 10 - 15%
FHATAL IR = Pre-tax discount rate 13.3% 13.3%
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17 8BEEE &

MA2018%F NM2017F12A318  MiINE
AR ESESFBEEIEARE
3,700,0007T &% A R #¥3,300,0007T °

17

EREOERRTAEEGEEBRNA
WA EE BB A EAN
130 5 1 {8 4 M D 2 B AT B
o

EREEAEMBBREMED  #
BBCBLETRAEEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the excess of the
recoverable amount over the carrying amount of Hangzhou Wan
Yue were RMB3,700,000 and RMB3,300,000.

The management have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes for other key assumptions and have not
identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount of
Hangzhou Wan Yue to exceed its recoverable amount.

Had the assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation been
changed, the headroom would have been decreased to the
amount as included in the following table:

M12H31H

As at 31 December
2018%F 20174
2018 2017
ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Iz R T E5% Growth rate of revenue decreased by 5% 3,453 3,009
FEFETPESY% Gross margin decreased by 5% 2,592 2,320
TATARERE EHA5% Pre-tax discount rate increased by 5% 3,082 2,893

TN 8 5 T B R A R
B HEEBEREBMT -

The recoverable amount of Hangzhou Wan Yue would equal
its carrying amount if the key assumptions were to change as
follows:

®12A831H
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
B =9 Annual growth rate of revenue 90% 66 %
EF = Gross margin 17% 17%
TRRTARIR = Pre-tax discount rate 44% 73%

# Z=201749 %2018 12A318 » £ &
BROAEAIEEEDETSEEUNE -

KL2E2018F12 A31 B ER ] @
SF - ARAIEERET - REIE2018%F
1FF S I R B VR R o

Reasonable possible changes in key assumptions would not lead
to impairment as of 31 December 2017 and 2018 respectively.

With reference to the recoverable amount assessed as at 31
December 2018, the directors of the Company determined that
there was no provision for impairment of goodwill for the year
ended 2018.
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18 BREREAINEMTAH

REBEBEATSRIA

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The group holds the following financial instruments:

MR12H831H
As at 31 December
201845 20174
2018 2017
AR®TR ARBTTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
SREE Financial assets:
R AT BN RIEE Financial assets at amortised cost
H SR TE Trade receivables 128,873 76,918
FENRIE - e N EMMERFUA Prepayments, deposits and other
(T EEEAFE RS T IR receivables (excluding prepayments
HETEIZ(ETR) and input VAT to be deducted) 51,689 32,991
HENREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 1,277,821 633,456
BEARBEFAREMEERAD Financial assets at fair value through
TREE other comprehensive income 1,660 1,660
1,460,043 745,025
MR12H831H
As at 31 December
201845 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
SREE - Financial liabilities:
KA ENCRIEE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B RHEMEWFE (TeE Trade and other payables (excluding
Bt & M EMENTTE) accrued payroll and other tax payables) 315,435 270,929
)= Loans from related parties - 65,900
FERT AR B Dividend payable = 19,000
315,435 355,829

AEEMENE3 I ESRTAEH
BZERER - P IREHREEORAE
SRR LASEeREENKREE -

The group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in note 3.1. The maximum

exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.

F-172  ##HiR#EKRER 2T XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018F F %R 2018 Annual Report



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2018F12 A31H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

19

20

BOABESAREMEEK 19
ANERMEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BZE12AMBLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

20184 20174

2018 2017

ARETT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

M1 AB18 As at 1 January 1,660 1,300
NE Additions - 360
M12A31H As at 31 December 1,660 1,660

R2018% K2017F12A3MA L A £ B
Bt ARMEEBRANEREERSHE
FEE AR LT AR ESRE

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 represented equity
investments in two unlisted companies in the PRC.

T RIE 20 PREPAYMENTS
MW12831H
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TEfHEE Prepaid rental fees 5,393 6,078

BNFRENERB S T BEREERE
BESREEARNNESER  HEH
—WA=ZE+F-

Non-current portion of prepayments mainly represented prepaid
rental fees to the lessors for leasing of parking lots, normally
with 3-10 years of term of lease.
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22

7 21 INVENTORIES
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
ARBTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
5 PR 2 (B AR S RO 4B 14 I R Rt Components and raw materials to
be used in value-added services 7,820 2,998
TR Spare parts 777 766
W R ER Less: allowance for impairment = -
8,597 3,764
B S EWRIE 22 TRADE RECEIVABLES
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
B S RrEWGRE (MizE@a)) Trade receivables (Note (a))
— BT (M97E35(d)) — Related parties (Note 35(d)) 49,762 12,539
—F=5 — Third parties 116,521 91,544
166,283 104,083
BB S ENEUE R ERE Less: allowance for impairment
of trade receivables (37,410) (27,165)
128,873 76,918

(@) EIERUKBEZIZREREHF
ETEENMEEERS RIEE
R - REBRBIETERNYE
EE R ATIRIZERE Y 2
AR 55 195 5k LB 3¢ 3 IO HR FHR AR 75
BXATR B Y X E RS W

A e

(a) Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
services managed under lump sum basis and value-added
services. Property management services income under
lump sum basis are received in accordance with the term
of the relevant property service agreements. Service
income from property management services is due for

payment by the property owners upon rendering of

services.
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22

B 2 EWRIE 49) 22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
MR20184F &2017F12A318 + E RN # As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of the
ZEHHME S EVRFRENIRER DT trade receivables based on invoice date were as follows:
T~
MW12831H
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
1FE AN Within 1 year 108,828 61,659
1226 1 to 2 years 23,132 20,072
2E3F 2 to 3 years 13,588 6,643
3E4F 3 to 4 years 5,536 4,828
4E54F 4 to 5 years 4,515 2,289
5L E Over 5 years 10,657 8,592
166,283 104,083

M20184F NM2017%12A318 - B 5 JE
WHIBBAAREE  EZEKFEA
AEEREREERLD - WEERRY
RIS E RSB IEAR RS W 1550 - R
HABZRIEER -

AEEERB BV BRELENESRR
ERTEEERBAGER  HAER
BAFTMEEZEWFESFERFER
MIEFTMBEARER - AET=TEHER
B BHREFBERBEERMERAR
SRE LA ASHETOME BHEIK
RIBRBEREZSHIPRME3I12 R
20184 N20179F12831H HE S &
WskIE @ EERER T AR 37,410,000
M AR®27,165,0007T KR BB E © A
BEREREZ2018FILFEEMN - RHA
T E SRR IBESRIEN -

20184 M2017F12A31H » K&
BEEAR IR E 5 FEUGRIE AERE X -

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the trade receivables were
denominated in RMB, and the fair value of trade receivables
approximated their carrying amounts. Property management
services and value-added services are received in accordance
with the terms of the relevant services agreements, and due for
payment upon the issuance of invoice.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Movements on the
provision for impairment of trade receivables are shown in
Note 3.1.2. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, a provision of
RMB37,410,000 and RMB27,165,000 was made against the
gross amounts of trade receivables. The provision for impairment
increased during the year ended 2018 due to the increase of
trade receivables balance.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, no trade receivables of the
Group was pledged to secure borrowings granted to the Group.
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23 BEMARE-ZREeRHMAEKR 23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
Mg RECEIVABLES
R12A31H
As at 31 December
201845 20174
2018 2017
AR®TR AR¥EFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BN FEENHA BN HA FEBIHA
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
T FOE Prepayments
— NAFREE NMINEARE - Utilities and outsourced
services 28,694 - 12,809 -
— IR RAEERBREME - Raw materials for
engineering and
maintenance services 3,844 - 816 -
N Subtotal 32,538 - 13,625 -
¥ 30 HR B9 3 B 1L (E Input VAT to be deducted 1,047 - 1,332 -
by Deposits 18,021 2,840 8,753 2,280
HAth pE R IE Other receivables
— REERF (M) — Payments on behalf of
property owners (Note) 31,986 - 23,476 -
— Hfh - Other 6,476 - 4,025 -
/INEF Subtotal 38,462 - 27,501 -
HEt Total 90,068 2,840 51,211 2,280
W E A EGRIE & Less: allowance for
B mERE impairment of other
receivables and deposits (7,606) (28) (5,519) (24)
82,462 2,812 45,692 2,256
MEE : 20184 %20174128318 » %48t Note:  As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amounts represented the payments
BARETBNNYEKSEREHE on behalf of property owners in respect of mainly utilities and elevator
SRR N ST AT ERIE o maintenance costs of the properties.
20184 N20174128318 » FE = As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, prepayments, deposits and
T8 - e R EA R ERIEY A R other receivables were denominated in RMB.
=K
ERNHE e hEMEKRZE (T8 Movements on the provision for impairment of prepayments,
BEMZERGFEINEBERZE) ME R deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input
B EIAMIFES.1.2 - BERENEZE VAT to be deducted) are shown in Note 3.1.2. The provision for
2018F12 A31HILFEEM - RHALZFE impairment increased during the year ended 31 December 2018
NFIE - we REMERZE (81 due to the increase of balance of prepayments, deposits and
BN EIE R AR INETARIZE) &Se012 0 - other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be
deducted).
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24 BERBESEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

MA12H31H

As at 31 December
201845 20174
2018 2017
AR%TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHERE Cash on hand 881 1,480
RITRE Cash in banks 1,276,095 630,252
ZRNTFaRE Cash in payment platforms 845 1,724
1,277,821 633,456

ReLR2EEMEHNKREELTS

The carrying amount of Cash and cash equivalents balances are

EMEELE - denominated in the following currencies:
M12A318
As at 31 December
2018 20174
2018 2017
AR®TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ETT usb 1,168 1,174
AR RMB 714,944 632,282
BT HKD 561,709 -
1,277,821 633,456
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25 KA 25 SHARE CAPITAL
KRARER2018F1A16HEHERS The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
FEMAC AL o REEMACS B B - JEERA January 2018. At the date of incorporation, the authorised
A51,200% 7T+ 9 A51,2000 & EE share capital is USD51,200 comprising 51,200 ordinary shares of
1.003 7T &9 & 3@ A% - 12018512431 USD1.00 each. As at 31 December 2018, the authorised share
B AT A10,000,000,000/% & f% was 10,000,000,000 shares at par value of USD0.01.
E{BE0.01ETTHIRR (D ©
BEEITRHRERR Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
RHOEE £ AR
Number of
shares usbD RMB
2018517168 (FEMpZBHI) At 16 January 2018
(Kizta) (date of incorporation) (Note a) 1 1 6
BITE®AR (M5tb) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note b) 1 1 6
BRI (M5 Sub-division of ordinary shares
(Note ¢) 198 - -
BT (MisEd) Capitalisation issue (Note d) 599,999,800 5,999,998 41,445,000
PEREH RN AFAEE (Kite) Global initial public offering
(Note e) 200,000,000 2,000,000 13,815,000
T AR R AR A (BT EES) Exercise of over-allotment option
(Note f) 20,000,000 200,000 1,379,000
#2018 12A31H At 31 December 2018 820,000,000 8,200,000 56,639,012
B E Note:
(a) MR2018F1A16B e % R TR EE (a) 1 share of USD1.00 was allotted and issued on 16 January 2018.
1.00E TR -
(b) 7201863 H29H AL % K& B 1T1R HE & (b) 1 share of USD1.00 was allotted and issued on 29 March 2018.
1.00E TR -
() RIERENR2018F4818H BBHEZ@E (0) Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 18 April
REBR - ARAEEMESREMET.00 2018, the Company sub-divided all its issued and unissued shares with
EILH B BT RARBEITRG 44100 par value of USD1.00 each into 100 shares of USD0.01 each. Accordingly,
REREE.0IETHRG - FAlt - B the number of issued ordinary shares increased from 2 shares to 200
BITELRAREE B2MRIEINZE2008% © 1t shares. In addition, the Company increased its authorised share capital
HN -+ ANA RS B IE R B YN, 994,880,000 from USD51,200 divided into 5,120,000 ordinary shares of a par value
% % £ - 7§ B K E B AR $151,200%% 7T of USD0.01 each to USD100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
(% /5,120,0008% & % [ 180.01€ T &) ordinary shares of a par value of USD0.01 by the creation of an additional
L@ A%) 5 HNZ 100,000,000 7T (9 A 9,994,880,000 shares.
10,000,000,0008% & % 1 {80.013 7T &)
LEAR) ©
(d) BYE H B B2018F 11 A6 H M iR Rk (d) Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution dated 6 November 2018, the
B ARABEEMBEROERSE Company capitalised an amount of USD5,999,998 (approximately
5,999,998 jt (X1 A R #41,445,000 RMB41,445,000), standing to the credit of its other reserve account and to
L) BN BAEBEERERAQR appropriate such amount as capital to pay up 599,999,800 shares in full at
MR IREE B R A A B R AR EL Il 7B 8 par to the then shareholders of the Company in proportion to their then
R EESR599,999,800% % 15 - respective shareholdings in the Company.
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25

26

B (@) 25 SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
fifaE « (48) Note: (Cont'd)
(e) R2018F 11 A6H + AR T ghE 2 B (e) On 6 November 2018, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
ELEKRONEBEBR ARG LT - shares at HKD2.90 each with USD0.01 per share in connection with its
% & B B% 192.907% T % 77200,000,000 global offering and commencement of the listing of its shares on the Stock
IR @ RR0.01E T L mAR - HEME Exchange on the same date and raised gross proceeds of approximately
FRIE 4B FE47580,000,00078 7T (HHE R A HKD580,000,000 (equivalent to RMB511,444,000).The excess over the
R¥511,444,0007T) ° 52 5 KAL) par value of USD2,000,000(equivalent to RMB13,815,000) net of the
A R %24,138,0007t + ™ {&2,000,000 transaction costs of approximately RMB24,138,000 was credited to other
Xt (& M AR %13,815,0007T) #) reserve account with an amount of RMB473,491,000.
BRECTALMBEER  2HEAARE
473,491,0007T °
() 72018512848 + A 2 Al 17 £ B # (f) On 4 December 2018, the Company exercised over-allotment option to
B A 1 32 = B R 92.9008 T 1T issue 20,000,000 new ordinary shares at HKD2.90 each with USD0.01
20,000,000% & A%0.013€ T & 37 & @ per share and raised gross proceeds of approximately HKD58,000,000
% - 3 & F7 15 318 42 %8 £958,000,000 (equivalent to RMB51,156,000).The excess over the par value of
7T (M & W A R #51,156,0007T) ° USD200,000(equivalent to RMB1,379,000) net of the transaction costs of
MBS A LA REES2,0000T - HE approximately RMB42,000 was credited to other reserve account with an
200,000% 7T (48 & M A R 1,379,000 amount of RMB49,735,000.
TT) MBRTEE R AHMBERER - 2BAA
R ¥49,735,0007T °
(EX] 26 RESERVES
R2017F1818 As at 1 January 2017 54,427
ETE BB (@) Appropriation of statutory reserves (Note(a)) 6,576
201756128318 As at 31 December 2017 61,003
7A2018F1A1H As at 1 January 2018 61,003
STk E B IR A R A T SRR ER Capital contribution from the previous
& (F3EDb)) shareholder of Xincheng Fuyue Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. (Note(b)) 127,000
FEERIRR B E (MEE) Contribution from non-controlling
shareholder (Note(c)) 2,071
KRR ALE (HFEd) Capital contribution from the owners of the
Company (Note(d)) 226,997
5 B T ) D B e (M RE(e)) Buy-back of minority interests of
Tibet Xinchengyue (Note(e)) (53,302)
WEgE STk = 4 (BEE() Acquisition Xincheng Fuyue (Note(f)) (241,455)
B a7 (KIFE25(d)) Capitalisation issue (Note 25(d)) (41,445)
2HRERARES (MFE2506)) Global initial public offering(Note 25(e)) 473,491
1T{E B RERC A (P EE25(F)) Exercise of over-allotment option (Note 25(f)) 49,735
7A2018%12H31H As at 31 December 2018 604,095
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26

ER-RE D)

(a)

RAE R BABRAR B AR B - BReR
INEEDREIN  FTAERBERARY
BEEREFENI0% (RPEH
RAIRROIEE) BEEAE
HEES EEATHERESZR
FHAAREE R H M E ARI50% ©
ETE R E (AT AL AR B R AL
HEE - AREHERTFEEES
BEEIMAREAR °

M20185%1H298  FWEIHE
I B9 IR SR AT E 0 E B AR
127,000,0007C - ZE £ 5 A
i o

R2018F2 188 » W E A
R RNEBR A AT
1% K 7 255,968,706 7T (49 A
R¥4,796,00070) ° X & & FHEL
L REE BN EEY] B
-

M2018%3H298 ° & 2 A A
Innovative Hero Limited#155*
£36,000,000% 7T (FRARE
226,997,0007T) ' A E S REHER
EEZ FEEY AREE -

26

RESERVES (cont'd)

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC, except for sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises, all PRC companies are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation calculated under PRC
accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the fund reaches
50% of their registered capital. The statutory reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset losses carried forward from previous
years or to increase capital of the respective companies.

On 29 January 2018, the then shareholder of Xincheng
Fuyue injected capital of RMB127,000,000 to Xincheng
Fuyue. The amount was recorded as reserve.

On 18 February 2018, Xincheng Fuyue issued 1% interest
to Yuexi Co., Limited, non-controlling shareholder at
HK$5,968,706 (approximately RMB4,796,000). The
difference between the amount of capital contributed
and the carrying value of the interest was recorded to an
addition of reserve.

On 29 March 2018, the Company received capital
contribution of USD36,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB226,997,000) from Innovation Hero Limited, the
difference between the amount contributed and the par
value was recorded as reserve.
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26 f&fE ) 26  RESERVES (Cont'd)
(e) M2018F37128 + 3E & & | (e) On 12 March 2018, non-controlling shareholders, namely

RAABREERNEEEE
ERRAAI(RAEFEER]D A
BEREEBRAR ((EAK
B -®BNmMBEERIES
RAar ((BEER) RENE
BEEARLAR ([EREEE]D)
M WMENEHEERERA
T T R 14.67 % B AR 7R HE 25
KRE D5 A AR 12,845,000
7T+ A K 28,026,000 *
A R #25,708,0007T & A R #
15,353,0007C ° 7 # # T K
& I ERFEAEBT AN
94.67% /% AN #E % - T 825.33%
f& A HE 7 R 55— FEIE AR AR R &M
BEEERAREE  FiR=
HREREER FARKE - BH
ERREERE O RIEEA
BB IR R M S BRI E AR
#£53,302,0007T 2 MR Z 585 &
fE s -

2018439308 @ JTE TN
2R AR A B BT E S AR
R EN (— K =P
LBARIMNPEAR AT EE
BIRIEH]) 99% B BEITIRA - R
BA AR®241,454,8007T ° 3%
EREFIREBREHR -

Tibet Tongxin Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd.
("Tongxin Capital”), Tibet Zhiying Investment Co., Ltd.
("Zhiying Investment”), Changzhou Tongrun Construction
Co., Ltd. (“Tongrun Construction”), Changzhou Yijian
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yijian Investment”) transferred
their aggregated 14.67% equity interests in Tibet
Xinchengyue to Xincheng Fuyue at considerations of
RMB12,845,000, RMB28,026,000, RMB25,708,000 and
RMB15,353,000 respectively. Upon the completion of the
transfer, Xincheng Fuyue held 94.67% equity interests in
Tibet Xinchengyue and the other 5.33% equity interests
were held by Changzhou Zhuofan Advertising Co., Ltd.,
another non-controlling shareholder; the difference
between the amount paid by Xincheng Fuyue to Tongxin
Capital, Zhiying Investment, Tongrun Construction
and Yijian Investment and the carrying value of the
non-controlling interests acquired with the amount of
RMB53,302,000 was recorded as reserve.

On 30 March 2018, Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings
Company Limited acquired 99% of the issued share
capital of Xincheng Fuyue, a PRC company which controls
the PRC operating companies and is ultimately controlled
by Mr. Wang, from its then shareholder at a consideration
of RMB241,454,800. The consideration was accounted
for as a deduction of reserve.

PROVISION
MA12H31H

As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EERE Legal claims 1,050 947

R2018% F2017612831H » K& H As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group made the
MAETE T NI EE RN ELEE provisions for the potential losses to be incurred from certain
BEHE RS o properties owners and former employees.
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28 BABIERN

28 LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES

MA12H31H

As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®TT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Ral% 5 B3k (B9EE35(d)) Loans from related parties (Note 35(d)) = 65,900
MR2017F12A318 - AEEE REE At 31 December 2017, the Group's loans were unsecured and
RIAAREE T8 - BT ER denominated in RMB, bearing interest at nil. The loans from

MR2018F1 308 &5 °

29 EFRHMENSFE

related parties were settled on 30 January 2018.

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

MW12A831H
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR%TF T ARBET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
B SRR FIE (i) Trade payables (Note (a))
—F=5 — Third parties 71,835 56,323
H fth T 50E Other payables
— [EETEA — Accrued expenses 19,780 17,863
— REFWEHFIA — Amounts collected on behalf
of property owners 219,788 193,748
— Eftb - Others 4,032 2,995
243,600 214,606
JE A<t 7 B Accrued payroll 72,026 59,861
H{th fE 40 F 18 Other tax payables 20,098 14,537
407,559 345,327
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29 EBEEZREMENRKE @

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

(a) M2018F K&20179F12H318 - (a) At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis
ERBEZHHMNE FENIEDN of the trade payables based on invoice date were are
REDTAT follows:

M12H31H

As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®F T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
1FELAR Within 1 year 70,914 55,065
1229 1 to 2 years 533 1,000
2E3F 2 to 3 years 251 174
3FLE Over 3 years 137 84
71,835 56,323

(b) EBIREMENFBEAHKNKE (b)
BN TIIERERHE -

The carrying amount of trade and other payables
balances are denominated in the following currencies:

MR12H831H

As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR¥TT ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 419,458 345,327
T HKD 4,101 -
423,559 345,327
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30 EIEFBH

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

REMBIRRERNELERSHEE S The analysis of deferred tax assets in the consolidated statements
mawr of financial position was as follows:
®12A831H
As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR®T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEFTSTHEE - Deferred tax assets:
— MR 1218 B &Y= By R E — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
S EE after more than 12 months 48 399
— 128 A AU EIFEIEATSTiEE - Deferred tax asset to be recovered
within 12 months 24,172 16,910
24,220 17,309
BEFTSHAE - Deferred tax liabilities:
— MR 1218 B &Y= AR T — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
FrisBiasE after more than 12 months = -
— 128 A AU EIERIEMETIAE - Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
(FFEE14(d)) within 12 months (note 14(d)) 4,646 -
4,646 -
BEFTSFHEE — FE Deferred tax assets — net 19,574 17,309
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30 EIEFTEMH @)

TERBR—EHME 2 EREH - B E
2018 F ILFEMBEEMEREERAR

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

during the year ended 2018, without taking into consideration

ZEEWT the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as
follows:
AERE  EGEH HEER Bk RERAPRE REEMH Eh
Allowance Unrealized  Withholding
on doubtful Accrued Interco- tax for
debts payroll  Tax losses Provision transactions dividend Total
ARETT  ARETR ARMTR  ARETR AR¥TR  ARETn  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(3t(a))
(note (a))
#2018E1818 As at 1 January 2018 6,603 10,132 399 175 - - 17,309
HA/(HB)EAZEUAR  Credited/(Charged) to
the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income 3,019 4,208 (351) 35 - (4,646) 2,265
2018512318 At 31 December 2018 9,622 14,340 18 20 - (4,646) 19,574
201751818 As at 1 January 2017 4370 6,474 707 63 2,238 - 13,852
HA/UGIB) BARERAR  Credited/(Charged) to
the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income 2,233 3,658 (308) 12 (2,238 - 3,457
2017128318 At 31 December 2017 6,603 10,132 399 75 - - 17,309
(a) M2018F12A31H AEEE (a) As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities

FLRBIEINGE B EGEE TR
F N 7] B AR B ) AT 4 > B FI) A
TE & 1 5 B S ST O TB N T FE R IR
EFTS LB E A R%4,646,000
JC (20174 &)

R2018F12A31H » R&EE K
FARBEEINGEEEEE THE
F AR AEARE108,354,000
7T (201745 « F) WAREL AT 5
& A E A E B E 2 T A9 TR N
MIERABAREMSHAEEA
R #10,835,0007T (20174 :
) @ HRZSEFNEERIER
BEE -

of RMB4,646,000 (2017:nil) have been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable upon remittance, in
respect of a portion of the unremitted distributable profits
of certain PRC subsidiaries attributable to the investors
outside PRC.

As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB10,835,000 (2017:nil) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable upon remittance,
in respect of the unremitted distributable profits of certain
PRC subsidiaries attributable to the investors outside PRC
amounting to RMB108,354,000 (2017: nil) as such profits
are intended to be reinvested.
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30

31

ELEFREH () 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

(b) EHBRAEELEERENEE (b) Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
REBEBBEKRA - AlepgE s carried forward to the extent that the realisation of
REEBEBRELHSHEE - the related tax benefits through future taxable profit is
H E2018F12A31H L F & - probable. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
7 5 B 37 £ 5 A R 1,883,000 Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
ot (2017%F + A R #2,537,000 RMB471,000 (2017:634,000) in respect of tax losses
TC) BOR IE B 18 e e EL A] i A amounting to RMB1,883,000 (2017: RMB2,537,000) that
FA LA 85 B 12 FE R B A R IR can be carried forward against future taxable income. Tax
RSB B E AR M471,0007T losses of group companies operated in the PRC could be
(20174 : AR #634,0007T) ° carried forward for a maximum of five years. These tax
REBPRPEEENE TR losses will expire up to and including years 2019, 2020,
MEBEEEAAEEZIF - % 2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively.

ERIEEBIE R D HIR20195
2020¢ C 20214 2022 &
20234 FIEIH -
RE 31 DIVIDENDS
BZ12A318LLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
i g5 Dividends 59,000 19,000

MR2018F 18308 » FWM B A EE
IR R = RS AR #59,000,0007T °

HE2017F12A31B L EE - AR
WA EEFEEBRBRRERKEEARE
19,000,0007T ©

HE2018FILFE - AR AU B

B o
=

M201943 A8HEITHESRS S5
EEERTAROEERRESTRED
fEARB01TTH2018F REAR & 4
IRAR B R 52 S B IS R P P ERES
B8 - AN AR R EERER
FREg LIERIIEERZ2019F12 A31
HiEFEHREEDIK

On 30 January 2018, Xincheng Fuyue declared dividends of
RMB59,000,000 to its then shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Tibet Xinchengyue
declared divided of RMB19,000,000 to its non-controlling
shareholder.

No dividends had been paid by the Company during the year
ended 2018.

At a Board meeting held on 8 March 2019, the directors
proposed a final dividend for 2018 of RMBO.1 per ordinary share
using the share premium account. This proposed dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of reserves for the year
ending 31 December 2019 upon approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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32 BEeRhER
(a) R ETBHFEBRLSTE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Net cash generated from operating activities

HE12AMBLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

20185 20174
2018 2017
AR®F T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
& PS54 BT A1) E Profit before income tax 210,566 113,015
HFEE Adjustments for:
— JETR BN TR FRIB 8 — Amortisation of non-current
portion of prepayments 1,086 1,347
— ¥ BELRERE — Depreciation of property, plant and
(Ft3E16) equipment (Note 16) 1,617 1,486
—EEEEESN ([H:E17) — Amortisation of intangible
assets (Note 17) 439 322
- SRMEERBEBBEFE — Net impairment losses on financial
(M$3E3.1.2) assets (Note 3.1.2) 12,336 10,682
— HEWE - BEREED - Net losses on disposal of property,
EsigsEE (KisE11) plant and equipment (Note 11) 42 8
— SNEWACFEEE (FIaE11) — Net foreign exchange gains (Note 11) (18,451) -
LIEEEH) Changes in working capital:
- 75 - Inventories (4,833) 12,572
— EnBRe — Non-current portion of deposits (560) (480)
— B 5 W EIE — Trade receivables (62,200) (33,015)
—FEFRIE - EBek — Prepayments, deposits and
H e R IE other receivables (39,232) (9,596)
— B — Provisions 103 607
—&HatE — Contract liabilities 68,051 72,301
— B 5 REMENFE — Trade and other payables 62,230 61,654
231,194 230,903
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32 BEeEREE @
(b) FEEEAGR

THEIINEMREENFRE

S RFRERS -

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the

movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

®W12H31H
As at 31 December
201845 20174
2018 2017
AR®TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEE Net debt:
B RESESEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,277,821 633,456
B —R—FREE Borrowings — repayable within one year = (65,900)
FRE Net debt 1,277,821 567,556
ReEkRE &R —
ZEY R-FREE st
Borrowings
Cash and - repayable
cash within
equivalents one year Total
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2018F1H1HAFEME  Net debt as at 1 January 2018 633,456 (65,900) 567,556
REeERE Cash flows 625,914 65,900 691,814
EXESHHIRERIASE Effect of exchange rate changes
BYNFE on cash and cash equivalents 18,451 - 18,451
MR2018F12A31HH) Net debt as at
FAE 31 December 2018 1,277,821 - 1,277,821
201741 B1AMEAME  Net debt as at 1 January 2017 442,922 (65,900) 377,022
Bens Cash flows 190,534 - 190,534
72017412 431 BHF A 1E Net debt as at
31 December 2017 633,456 (65,900) 567,556
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32

33

BERER @ 32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)

() FREMEEH (c) Non-cash financing activities
RIEBEA2018F 11 A6 H KR Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution dated 6 November
RRER  ARFIKHEEMEE 2018, the Company capitalised an amount of USD5,999,998
AR /Y 3 BR 85,999,998 JT (49 (approximately RMB41,445,000), standing to the credit of
ANER#41,445,0007T) &AL its other reserve account and to appropriate such amount
HARAHESERNERRATRE as capital to pay up 599,999,800 shares in full at par to
BEZBRAR AR FI7E the then shareholders of the Company in proportion to
% F B 81 £599,999,8000% % their then respective shareholdings in the Company which
5 BB AIE N - E increased share capital and reduced other reserve by
R AR #41,445,0007T ° RMB41,445,000.

AHEIE 33 COMMITMENTS

REBEERE —EREABEA Operating lease commitments - as lessee

ANEERE AN S LHAOBBREA The Group leases offices and staff dormitories under non-cancellable

=ZREIFES - HAHNFE—ZHE A operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and 5

KL TR T SE A A years, and the majority of lease agreements are signed with related

ERBIRTEEY - parties and renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate.

AT LAY EM AR RERE The future aggregate minimum lease payments under

R EEENT non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

M12H31H

As at 31 December
20184 20174
2018 2017
AR¥T T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FER No later than 1 year 2,452 2,066
112 B5F R Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 4,537 1,492
6,989 3,558
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34 ERFERMEZNRS 34 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS
(a) R2018F2A18H » # ¥ = 11 (a) On 18 February 2018, Xincheng Fuyue issued 1% interest
IA5,968,706/8 T (41 A R ¥ to Yuexi Co., Limited, non-controlling shareholder at
4,796,0007T) A JF 2 % IR R A% HK$5,968,706 (approximately RMB4,796,000). The
BERAREITI %R - 2 difference between the amount of capital contributed
AECHEAERREENEEA and the carrying value of the interest was recorded to an
RREEE I - 8 £20185F12 addition of reserve. The effect on the equity attributable
A3MBIEFE  ARFRHESB AR to the owners of the Company for the year ended 31
IHEm e MmN T December 2018 is summarised as follows:
HZ2018F
12318 LFE

For the year
ended 31 December

2018
AR¥T T
RMB’000
EWGEE R R R E Consideration received from the

non-controlling shareholders 4,796
R R REE Carrying amount of non-controlling interests (2,725)

PRSP HER D URFEFERR I #E 25K 8 Excess of consideration of non-controlling
BT R R RAEN SR interests received recognised in equity 2,071
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34 BEFERMESHRSZ @)

(b)  FA20184F3A  FE I IK M
HERBREERSRD 2R
B A AR%81,932,0007T (M &E
26(e)) ° #E20184%12H31H 1t
FE - AREHEARGETZH
AT

34 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (Cont'd)

(b)

In March 2018, Tibet Xinchengyue repurchased its
own shares from minority shareholders at the total
consideration of RMB81,932,000 (Note 26(e)). The effect
on the equity attributable to the owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is summarised as
follows:

B ZE2018%F
12A318LFEE

For the year

ended 31 December
2018

AR®T R
RMB’000

B IR R AAE

Consideration paid to the non-controlling
shareholders 81,932

e S A BRE(E Carrying amount of non-controlling interests (28,630)
ST BRI IER R SRS B ) Difference between consideration and carrying
FREERZERE value of non-controlling interests charged
to reserve 53,302
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35 BEBAXRS 35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BB SBBRERESNEE (@) Names and relationship with related parties
AN A T B 4% A 7] Alnfinity The Ultimate Holding Company of the Company is
Fortune Development Limited & Infinity Fortune Development Limited and the Ultimate
SRR AT A o Controlling Shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wang.
(b) BEAEXS (b) Transactions with related parties
BZE12A31BLFE
For the year
ended 31 December
20185 20174
2018 2017
AR¥TR ARBEFTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Provision of services
— BTN ER - Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 271,944 179,684
—ERANEEREBERE — Joint ventures and associates
of Mr. Wang 92,604 51,758
364,548 231,442
IRITE A EMA Interest income from deposit
with a bank
—XTEAETAFENER — Entities significantly influenced
by Mr. Wang 18 25
HEEH Rental expenses
— FhEAEEGINEE — Entities controlled by the Mr. Wang 1,549 1,636
BT R ARSEE TR Payment on behalf of the Group
by related parties
— ERAEEFINESR - Entities controlled by the Mr. Wang 28,018 26,631
BEER Repayments of loans
— TREEFINERE — Entities controlled by the Mr. Wang 65,900 -
TR E R AT B HEBEIR The prices for the above service fees and other
EAYHTHESTNIERETE - transactions were determined in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed by the contract parties.
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35 RBEEEARB (@)

(9]

(d)

AREEASHMH

R EEABNHM (HEE35F
P 58 HO 5 S S B ER 51 ) #5140

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
() Key management compensation

Compensations for key management other than those for
directors as disclosed in Note 35 is set out below.

To
FeRhHEMEEREERA Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 3,820 2,798
EERAEE 5 Y AEER (d) Balances with related parties
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20185 20174
2018 2017
AR®EF T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e W A 5 5k TE Receivables from related parties
B 5 FEW R IE Trade receivables
— ERAEEFINESR — Entities controlled by the Mr. Wang 29,909 9,250
— FREMNEGE RBEDE - Joint ventures and associates of
Mr. Wang 19,853 3,289
49,762 12,539
JE Wy B ES: T BB AR RE Total receivables from related parties 49,762 12,539
RaEE 7 IRITER (MIEE) Bank deposit with
a related party (Note)
—XTEAEEARENER — Entity significantly influenced
by Mr. Wang 10,259 28,117

M EERAERETE-RTES
MASBEEZRITESRITF

-
LN

Note: The Group has bank deposits at a bank which Mr. Wang acts as
one of the directors of the bank.

JiE < BB 5 0B
B (M5E28)
— FhRAESINEE

Payables to related parties
Loans (Note 28)
— Entities controlled by the Mr. Wang - 65,900

H fth FE - 58 Other Payables
— TREEFINERE - Entities controlled by Mr. Wang = -
aRaE Contract liabilities
— TREEGINERE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang = 2,042
— PR A A - Joint ventures and associates of

SERBE R the Ultimate Holding Company = 367

- 2,409

JE A5 RE S 5 BB AR SR Total payables to related parties = 68,309
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36 EEMFSZRER

36

BHZE2018%F12A31H U TEERSR

ERERLER

BITES
BUNREE (BEER)
RfEBELL
MFELEE

FHITES

FiRELLE (ML (a))
B/ (K@)
BB AR sE A (FHRE(a))

BYFIITES
SRR L
ENESd
APETR A

a) EE=EM£

H E2018F12A318 I F &
ETEASKEMKERNME (7
HEZAAEZZAIDRIARR
EREREESD) BT

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

Until 31 December 2018, the following directors and senior

managements were appointed:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Chairman

Ms. Wu Qiangian

Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhenhua (Note (a))
Mr. Lv Xiaoping (Note (a))

Mr. Lu Zhongming (Note (a))

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan

Mr. Zhu Wei

Mr. Xu Xinmin

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in

their role as senior management and employee before

their appointment as directors respectively) for the year

ended 31 December 2018 as follows:

EEHER
ne e A RIRGH B @t
Housing
allowances and
contributions
to a retirement
i Name Fees Salaries Bonus scheme Total
ARETR AR®TR AR%Tn ARETR AR%®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HTESR Executive Directors
N Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 1,800 960 98 2,858
REBELT Ms. Wu Qiangian - 703 297 98 1,098
HFELE Mr. Lan Ziyong - 637 313 87 1,037
BUFMTESR Independent non-executive
Directors
RRLLT Ms. Zhang Yan 90 = = = 90
REFE Mr. Zhu Wei 90 - - - 90
FREE Mr. Xu Xinmin 40 - - - 40
220 3,140 1,570 283 5,213
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36

EENAmRER @) 36 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

(a) ESME (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)
HE2017F12A318 L F E The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
BEZaASEMKENM e (£ their role as senior management and employee before

(b)

(c)

HEZERESZADHIASH
EEENEESD) T

their appointment as directors respectively) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 as follows:

FEMHER
ik e bizan RN IR st
Housing
allowances and
contributions
to a retirement

jiE4 Name Fees Salaries Bonus scheme Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WOIES Executive Directors
N Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 1,800 900 84 2,784
REELZL Ms. Wu Qiangian - 499 304 84 887
HFELE Mr. Lan Ziyong - 514 238 83 835
BUFNITER Independent non-executive
Directors
RiEZL Ms. Zhang Yan 200 - - - 200
KEFE Mr. Zhu Wei 200 - - - 200
400 2,813 1,442 251 4,906
EEMERKREFR (b) Retirement benefits of directors

H E20184F N2017F12A31H
LIEFE - BRARYR A B R Al K2 (41
KRR AIET BTN - B
REBTEINDRIKBFI ©

EEMNEBER (c)
#H £2018%F K2017%F12A31H

HFE BT KRESHBE

F o

During the for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, there were no additional retirement benefit
received by the directors except for the attribution to a
retirement benefit scheme in accordance with the rules
and regulations in the PRC.

Termination benefits of directors

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no termination benefits received by the
directors.
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36 ESEHAsERER @) 36 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

d) HNESESERBOE=FR (d) Consideration provided to third parties for
HORE making available the services of directors
B £2018%F &20179F12A31H During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
IEFE - BEINRENESE consideration was paid for making available the services
NRAEFHEREMRTE of the directors or senior management of the Company.

(e) LUEES -ZEBESmEZEH (e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
WEABRBREHEBGHEEN dealings in favour of directors, controlled
ERLRAZRZANER EE bodies corporate by and connected entities
MREMRZZWHEEER with such directors
B 220184 2017 12A31H During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
IEFE - ARARARATHFR there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
A (WER) ENEERE S entered into by the Company or subsidiaries undertaking
AT EMER - AERRHA of the Company, where applicable, in favour of directors.
5o
Br EXCATIiAN - REIE2018F & Except for mentioned above, no significant transactions,
20175 12A3MB L FEF#E arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
20184 K20174F12A31H IEF business to which the Company was a party and in which
EREARE - NABBE L a director of the Company had interests, whether directly
HAEBXGEER  BAQFE or indirectly, subsisted at the year ended 31 December
ERETRAEEERHEERD 2018 and 2017 or at any time during the year ended 31
EMEARS - RHEMEL December 2018 and 2017.

37 AR 37 CONTINGENCIES

20184 &2017512A31H - K& As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any

IS =75 89 R A I A (] B A SK significant contingent liabilities or outstanding guarantees in

ARBESCRERER - respect of payment obligations to third parties.
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REAF BRI R ERE

I

NGRS O
#2018 12A31H

38 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Company statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2018

20184
2018
B 5T AR¥T T
Note RMB’000
&E Assets
I RBEE Non-Current asset
A G a/NCIE /¢ Amount due from a subsidiary 195,871
EMBEERTE Total Non-current asset 195,871
REBEE Current assets
FERFIE - ke REAERFIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 16
WERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 555,631
mENEELARE Total current assets 555,647
EEAE Total assets 751,518
R Equity
AREEE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
i Share capital 25 56,639
B Reserves 708,778
Z5TEE Accumulated losses (19,551)
B Total equity 745,866
REAE Current liabilities
B 5 REAMENE Trade and other payables 5,652
BB EEEE Total current liabilities 5,652
B EHEE Total liabilities 5,652
EEkEEHEE Total equity and liabilities 751,518
REBEEEE Net current assets 551,547

A 2 BB AR 2 B R B
—FIRE -

KRR ARBELEEZH2019
FEIAHEIENHRINTEERARES

The above Company statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Company statement of financial position was approved by
the Board of Directors on 8 March 2019 and were signed on its
behalf

/A WFE Qi Xiaoming Lan Ziyong
EE E Director Director
HIH IR = R AR A 7] XINCHENGYUE HOLDINGS LIMITED  F-197
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38 DRI BEMRRRHEEE 2 38 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

AR EEE Reserve movement of the Company

#2018 12A31H

As at 31

December

2018

ARBT T

RMB’000

A2018F1A1H As at 1 January 2018 =
KRR ALE (H7E26 (d) Capital contribution from the owners of

the Company (Note26(d)) 226,997

AR BT (MI5E25(d)) Capitalisation issue (Note 25(d)) (41,445)

BT (MFE25) ~ (f) Issue of ordinary (Note 25(e), () 523,226

720185 12H31H As at 31 December 2018 708,778
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